
 

 

 
06th September 2025 
 
To, 
The Department of Corporate Service (DCS-CRD)   
BSE Limited 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 
Dalal Street, Fort,  
Mumbai – 400 001 
 
Ref:  YASH CHEMEX LIMITED        BSE SCRIP CODE: 539939         SYMBOL: YASHCHEM 
 
Sub.:  FILING OF 19TH ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 UNDER REGULATION 34(1) OF THE SEBI 

(LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015. 
 
Dear Sir, 
 
Please refer to our letter dated 13th August 2025 intimating that the 19th Annual General Meeting (“AGM 
2025”) of the Members of the Company is scheduled to be held on Tuesday, September 30, 2025, at 
04:30 PM IST  at registered office of the Company in physical mode. 
 
Pursuant to Regulation 30 and 34(1) of Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) as amended from time to time, 
we are submitting herewith the copy of the Annual Report 2024-25 of the Company. 
 
As per the circulars issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs and SEBI, the aforesaid documents are 
electronically dispatched to those members whose email IDs are registered with the Company / Bigshare 
Services Private Limited ("Registrar and Share Transfer Agent" of the Company) or the Depositories. 
 
The Annual Report 2024-25 will also be uploaded on the Company’s website. 
 
You are requested to kindly take note of the above and display the same on notice of the exchange. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Yours faithfully, 
 
For Yash Chemex Limited 
 
 
Pritesh Y Shah 
Managing Director 
DIN 00239665 
 
Encl: A/a 
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411, Sigma Icon -1, 132ft Ring Road, Opp. Medilink Hospital, Satellite 
Ahmedabad, Gujarat-380015, India 

Website: www.yashchemex.com  
E mail ID: cs@yashchemex.com 
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Introduction of Yash Chemex Limited and Other Group Entities: 

Mr. Pritesh Y Shah is the founder and Promoter of Yash Chemex Limited. In the year 1990, he started this 
business as sole proprietor of Yash Chem. The quality of products and services provided by us, customer 
relations and market reputation resulted in the immense growth of our business. Hence, with a view to 
expanding our business, in the year 2006, Yash Chemex Private Limited was incorporated and converted 
into Yash Chemex Limited in the year 2016. 

The Company has been known as the leading company offering fine and specialist chemicals which are 
widely used in various industries. We have always exceeded the expectations of all our clients with our 
products and services. Ever since the company was founded, we have climbed the ladder of success. Our 
clientele has increased more than ever before since the day it started. 

Transformative Innovation for Dyes and Intermediary Industries – With this visionary motto, Yash 
Chemex Limited was incorporated in 2006. Headquartered in Ahmedabad, Yasons Chemex Care Limited 
is also better known to the world through their registered brand name PLXO. Keeping up with the 
growing demand in the sector, the mother unit further acquired Rishit Polysurf LLP, which has been 
promoted by industry thinkers Mr. Pritesh Shah and Mr. Yashwant Shah. 

As indigenous Indian players, Yasons Chemex Care Limited & Rishit Polysurf LLP with expertise across 
manufacturing & production of Specialty Chemicals & FMCG products. Taking a leaf from the slow 
growth of the Indian chemical industry, Yasons Chemex Care Limited has initiated research & 
production of exclusively customized products to cater to dyes and intermediary industries in the 
country & expand exports in coming years. 
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MISSION 

 
MISSION: 

 
At Yash Chemex Limited, our mission is to add value to the services which we offer to our customers or 
clients. We achieve more targets every year to enjoy constant growth to serve more and more clients 
from every industry. We believe in following the industry’s standards to fulfil all our missions and aims 
to make a great difference in our products and services. Our team of professionals always work towards 
the mission of the Company. 
 
VISION: 

 
Our vision is to achieve the topmost place in the respective industry by abiding by the rules of 
regulations of the industry. We want to cater to the needs of clients from different industries by keeping 
our level of services the highest quality. Most importantly, we want to make a difference in the life of all 
of clients with the quality of our chemicals. Our team of professionals are always ready to take up the 
challenges of the industry with their in- 
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CORPORATE INFORMATION 
 

Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP): 
S. No. Name Designation 

1. Mr. Pritesh Y. Shah Managing Director and CFO 
2. Mrs. Dimple P. Shah Whole-Time Director 
3. Mr. Jinal D. Shah Independent Director 
4. Ms. Angee R. Shah Independent Director 
5. Mr. Rushabh A. Shah Independent Director 
6. Ms. Riddhi D. Shah (Upto 25th May 2024) Company Secretary 
7. Mrs. Pragati Jain (w.e.f 13th August 2024 Company Secretary 

 
Audit Committee 
S. No Name Designation 

1. Mr. Jinal D. Shah Chairperson 
2. Mr. Pritesh Y. Shah Member 
3. Ms. Angee R. Shah Member 
4. Mr. Rushabh A. Shah Member 

Shareholder’s Relationship Committee 
1. Mr. Jinal D. Shah Chairperson 
2. Ms. Angee R. Shah Member 
3. Mr. Rushabh A. Shah Member 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
1. Mr. Jinal D. Shah Chairperson 
2. Ms. Angee R. Shah Member 
3. Mr. Rushabh A. Shah Member 

  
 
 
 
 

Bankers of the Company                                              Registrar & Share Transfer Agent                                   
Yes Bank Limited, Ahmedabad                                        Big Share Services Pvt. Ltd. 
Axis Bank Limited, Ahmedabad                                     Office No. S6-2,6th Floor, Pinnacle Business Park,  
                                                                                                 Next to Ahura Centre, Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri  
                                                                                                 East, Mumbai, Maharashtra, 400093 
Registered Office   
411, Sigma Icon-1, 132ft Ring Road  
Opp. Medilink Hospital, Satellite  
Ahmedabad-380015  
Tel. No.: 079- 40028639  
Website: www.yashchemex.com

Internal Auditor M/s N. H. Desai & Co. Chartered Accountants 
Secretarial Auditor M/s Kunal Sharma & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary                                    
Statutory Auditors M/s S. L. Patel & Co. Chartered Accountants 
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NOTICE OF THE 19TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 19TH (NINETEENTH) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE 
MEMBERS OF YASH CHEMEX LIMITED WILL BE HELD ON TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 30, 2025, AT 
04:30 PM IST AT REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY AT 411, SIGMA ICON-1, 132FT RING 
ROAD, OPP. MEDILINK HOSPITAL, SATELLITE, AHMEDABAD TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING 
BUSINESSES. 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESSES: 
 
1. TO RECEIVE, CONSIDER AND ADOPT THE AUDITED STANDALONE AND CONSOLIDATED 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 
2025, AND THE REPORTS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE STATUTORY AUDITORS 
THEREON, INCLUDING ANNEXURES THERETO: 

 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution: 

 
a. “RESOLVED THAT the Audited Standalone Financial Statement of the Company for the financial 

year ended March 31, 2025, and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, as 
circulated to the Members, be and are hereby considered and adopted. 
 

b. “RESOLVED THAT the Audited Consolidated Financial Statement of the Company for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2025, and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors 
thereon, as circulated to the Members, be and are hereby considered and adopted. 
 

2. TO APPOINT A DIRECTOR IN PLACE OF MR. PRITESH Y. SHAH (DIN: 00239665), WHO RETIRES 
BY ROTATION AND BEING ELIGIBLE, OFFERS HIMSELF FOR RE-APPOINTMENT: 

 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Pritesh Y. Shah (DIN: 00239665), who retires by rotation at this 
meeting, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company.” 

 
SPECIAL BUSINESSES: 

 
3. APPOINTMENT OF SECRETARIAL AUDITOR OF THE COMPANY FROM THE CONCLUSION OF 

19th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING TILL THE CONCLUSION OF THE 24th ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING AND TO FIX THEIR REMUNERATION:  

 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, and 
Regulation 24A of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and other applicable provisions, if any, including any statutory 
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modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force, M/s Kunal Sharma & 
Associates, Company Secretaries (M. No: F10329 and CP: 12987) be and is hereby appointed as the 
Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a term of 05 (Five) consecutive financial years commencing 
from the financial year 2025-26 to 2029-30 i.e. from the conclusion of 19th Annual General Meeting 
till the conclusion of 24th Annual General Meeting of the Company, to conduct the Secretarial Audit of 
the Company as required under the applicable laws and regulations, on such remuneration, excluding 
service tax, other applicable levies, and out-of-pocket expenses, etc. as may be mutually agreed upon 
by the Board of Directors and the Secretarial Auditor;  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including its Committee 
thereof) and Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary be and are hereby severally authorized 
to do all acts and take all such steps as may be considered necessary, proper or expedient to give 
effect to this resolution.” 
                                                                                                             For & on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Yash Chemex Limited 
SD/- 

Pritesh Yashwantlal Shah 
                                                                                                                             Managing Director  

                                                                                                                            DIN: 00239665 
Date: 13th August 2025     
Place: Ahmedabad                                                                                                                                                                                                                
 
Registered Office: 
411, Sigma Icon-1, 132ft Ring Road, Opp. Medilink Hospital 
Satellite, Ahmedabad-380015. Tel. No.: 079- 40028639, Website: www.yashchemex.com;  
Email: cs@yashchemex.com. CIN: L74110GJ2006PLC0483 

 
NOTES: 
 
1. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Wednesday, 

September 24, 2025, to Tuesday, September 30, 2025 (both days inclusive) for Annual General Meeting. 
2. IN TERMS OF SECTION 105 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE 

AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT ONE OR MORE PROXIES TO ATTEND AND, ON A POLL, VOTE 
INSTEAD OF HIMSELF, SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.  

3. A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding 50 [fifty] and holding in aggregate not more 
than ten (10) per cent of the total share capital of the Company. In case proxies proposed to be appointed by 
a Member holding more than ten (10) percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights, 
then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any such other person or shareholder. 

4. In line with MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the Annual Report for the financial year 2024-25 along with 
Notice of 19th AGM of the Company inter-alia indicating the process and manner of e-voting are being sent 
only by electronic mode to those members whose email IDs are registered with the Company/Depository 
Participant(s) for communication. Members may note that the aforesaid documents may also be downloaded 
from the Company’s website www.yashchemex.com and the website of BSE Limited In line with MCA 
Circulars, the Company has enabled a process for the limited purpose of receiving the AGM Notice and Annual 
Report (including remote e-voting instructions) electronically. 

5. The relative Explanatory Statement (For Point No. 3), pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(the Act), setting out the material facts relating to special businesses to be transacted at the 19th 
(Nineteenth) Annual General Meeting, as set out in this Notice is annexed hereto. 

6. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their Shareholding, maintained under Section 
170 of the Act, will be available for inspection by the Shareholders at the AGM. 

7. In compliance with Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014, as substituted by the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Amendment, Rules 2015, and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the Company has provided a facility to the members to exercise their votes electronically 
through the electronic voting service facility arranged by Bigshare Services Private Limited. The facility for 
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voting through ballot paper will also be made available at the AGM and members attending the AGM, who have 
not already cast their votes by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the AGM through ballot 
paper. Members who have cast their votes by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may attend the AGM but shall 
not be entitled to cast their votes again. The instructions for e- voting are annexed to the Notice. 

8. The e-voting rights of the Members/beneficial owners shall be reckoned in proportion to ordinary shares held 
by them in the Company as on 23rd September 2025 (cut –off date fixed for this purpose). The Company has 
appointed Mr. Kunal Sharma & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary (COP: 12987), to act as the 
Scrutinizer, to conduct the scrutiny of the votes cast. 

9. Pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard – 2 issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries 
of India, the brief profile/particulars of the Director of the Company seeking their re-appointment at the AGM 
are stated at the end of the Explanatory Statement annexed hereto. 

10. Shareholder Entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) is entitled to Appoint a Proxy 
To attend and vote in the AGM instead of himself/ herself, and the proxy need not be a shareholder of the 
Company. 

11. During the period beginning 24 (Twenty-Four) hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the AGM 
and ending with the conclusion of the AGM, a Shareholder would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged 
with the Company at any time between the business hours at the Registered Office of the Company, provided 
that not less than 3 (Three) days’ of notice in writing is given to the Company. 

12. Dispatch of Annual Report through Electronic Mode: In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI 
Circular dated May 13, 2022, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2024-2025 being sent only 
through electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail address is registered with the Company / Registrar 
and Transfer Agent / Depository Participants / Depositories. Members may note that the Notice and Annual 
Report 2024-2025 will also be available on the Company’s website www.yashchemex.com, websites of the 
Stock Exchange, that is, BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com, and on the website of Company’s Registrar and 
Transfer Agent, Bigshare service Pvt Ltd at www.bigshareonline.com. Shareholder(s)/Proxy(ies)/Authorised 
Representative(s) should bring/are requested to bring the duly filled in Attendance Slip enclosed herewith to 
the AGM mentioning therein details of DP ID and Client ID. 

13. The Register of Contracts and Arrangements in which the Directors are interested, maintained under Section 
189 of the Act, will be available for inspection by the Shareholders during the AGM. 

14. All documents in connection with the accompanying Notice are available for inspection at the Registered 
Office of the Company from 10.00 a.m. (IST) to 4.00 p.m. (IST) on all days except Saturday, Sunday and Public 
Holidays, up to the date of the AGM. 

15. Shareholders holding shares in dematerialized form are requested to direct changes, if any, pertaining to their 
name, email address, telephone / mobile numbers, address and bank account details including change in bank 
account number, IFSC, MICR Code, name of bank and branch details, to their respective Depository 
Participants. 

16. Pursuant to Sections 101 and 136 of the Act read with relevant Rules framed thereunder, companies can serve 
Annual Reports and other communications through electronic mode to those Shareholders who have 
registered their e-mail address either with the Company or with the Depository Participant(s). Shareholders 
holding shares in dematerialised form are requested to register their e-mail address with their Depository 
Participant(s). In case of any change, the Shareholders are requested to update their e-mail address with the 
Depository Participant(s) to enable the Company to send electronic communications. 

17. Shareholders of the Company who have registered their e-mail address are also entitled to receive such 
communication in physical form, upon request. For Shareholders who have not registered their e-mail 
addresses, physical copies would be sent by the permitted mode. 

18. Members may also note that the Notice of 19th (Nineteenth) Annual General Meeting and the Annual Report 
for the Financial Year (F.Y.) 2024-25 will also be available on the Company’s website www.yashchemex.com 
for download. 

19. Unless the Shareholders have requested hard copies of the same, the Notice of AGM, Annual Report, 
Attendance Slip, Route Map for the AGM Venue and Proxy Form are being sent in electronic mode to Members 
whose email address(es) are registered with the Company or the Depository Participant(s). Physical copy of 
the Notice of AGM, Annual Report, Attendance Slip, Route Map for the AGM Venue and Proxy Form are being 
sent to those Members who have not registered their e-mail address with the Company or Depository 
Participant(s). Shareholders who have received the Notice of AGM, Annual Report, Attendance Slip, Route Map 
for the AGM Venue and Proxy Form in electronic mode are requested to print the Attendance Slip and submit 
a duly filled in Attendance Slip at the registration counter at the AGM. Members are requested to furnish the 
printed Attendance Slip along with valid identity proof such as PAN Card, Passport, Aadhaar Card or Driving 
License while entering the AGM hall. 

20. Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 124 and 125 of the Act, there is no amount of Dividend remaining 
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unclaimed / unpaid for a period of 7 (seven) years and/or unclaimed Equity Shares which are required to be 
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). 

21. Shareholders who have not encashed the dividend warrants for any previous year, are requested to make 
their claim with Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd. at 1st Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building, Opp. Vasant Oasis, 
Makwana Road, Marol, Andheri East, Mumbai-400059. As per the provisions of Section 124(2) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the Company has also uploaded details of Unclaimed dividend amount(s) for the 
Financial Year 2024-25, lying with the Company as on date of Annual Report on the website of the Company 
i.e., www.yashchemex.com. 

22. Shareholders are requested to send in their queries at least a week in advance to the Company Secretary at 
the Registered Office of the Company to facilitate clarifications during the AGM. 

23. All the work related to share registry in terms of both physical and electronic are being conducted by 
Company’s Registrar & Transfer Agent, Bigshare Services Private Limited, Office No. S6-2,6th Floor, Pinnacle 
Business Park, Next to Ahura Centre, Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri East, Mumbai, Maharashtra, 400093. The 
Shareholders are requested to send their communication to the aforesaid address or via email at 
investors@bigshareonline.com. 

24. The SEBI has vide Circular no. MRD/DOP/Cir-05/2009 dated 20th May, 2009 mandated the submission of 
PAN by every participant in the security market. Members holding shares in electronic form /physical form 
therefore, Members are requested to submit their PAN to the Company or the RTA. 

25. The Company has designated an exclusive Email ID: cs@yashchemex.com for redressal of Shareholders’/ 
Investors’ complaints/ grievances. In case you have any queries, complaints or grievances, then please write 
to us at the above-mentioned e-mail address. 

26. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice calling the AGM are available for inspection 
through electronic mode up to the date of the AGM. Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an 
email to cs@yashchemex.com. 

27. The notice of Annual General Meeting along with the Annual report 2024-25 is being sent by electronic mode 
to those members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories. 

 
THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDRES FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER: 
 

i. The Remote E-Voting period begins on 27th September 2025 at 09:00 AM IST and ends on 29th September 2025 
at 05:00 PM IST. During this period shareholders of the Company holding shares either in physical form or in 
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 23rd September 2025 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting 
module shall be disabled by Bigshare for voting thereafter. 

ii. Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting venue. 
iii. Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 

of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ 
resolutions. However, it has been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional 
shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level. 
 
Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities in India. 
This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the 
shareholders. 
 
In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been decided to 
enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through their demat 
accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their 
vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also 
enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process. 
 
In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020, on e-Voting facility 
provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised 
to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 
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1. Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode is given below: 

Type of 
shareholders 

Login Method 

 
Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
Demat mode 
with CDSL 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their 
existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting 
page without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to 
Easi/Easiest is https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/home/login or visit 
CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi 
Tab and then use your existing my easi username & password. 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting 
option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the 
information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will 
be able to see e-Voting page of BIGSHARE the e-Voting service provider and you 
will be re-directed to i-Vote website for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of 
all e-Voting Service Providers i.e. BIGSHARE, so that the user can visit the e-
Voting service providers’ website directly. 

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiRegistration  

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat 
Account Number and PAN No. from a link 
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin The system will 
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded 
in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see 
the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress, and also able to directly 
access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. Click on BIGSHARE and you 
will be re-directed to i-Vote website for casting your vote during the remote e-
voting period. 

 
Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
demat mode 
with NSDL 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services 
website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once 
the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon 
under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. 
You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful 
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-
Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click 
on company name or e-Voting service provider name BIGSHARE and you will 
be re-directed to i-Vote website for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period. 

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available 
at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click   
at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 
URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a 
mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon 
“Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen 
will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat 
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account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as 
shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to 
NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider name BIGSHARE and you will be redirected 
to i-Vote website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding 
securities in 
demat mode) 
login through 
their 
Depository 
Participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through 
your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  
After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on 
e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after 
successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to 
e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period. 

  

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID 
and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues 
related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 

     
Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
Demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at 022- 
23058738 and 22-23058542-43. 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
Demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 
990 and 1800 22 44 30  

 
2. Login method for e-Voting for shareholder other than individual shareholders holding shares in Demat 

mode & physical mode is given below: 
 
 You are requested to launch the URL on internet browser: https://ivote.bigshareonline.com  
 Click on “LOGIN” button under the ‘INVESTOR LOGIN’ section to Login on E-Voting Platform.                              
 Please enter you ‘USER ID’ (User id description is given below) and ‘PASSWORD’ which is shared 

separately on you register email id. 
o Shareholders holding shares in CDSL demat account should enter 16 Digit Beneficiary ID as user 

id. 
o Shareholders holding shares in NSDL demat account should enter 8 Character DP ID followed by 

8 Digit Client ID as user id. 
o Shareholders holding shares in physical form should enter Event No + Folio Number registered 

with the Company as user id. 

Note If you have not received any user id or password please email from your registered email id or contact 
i-vote helpdesk team. (Email id and contact number are mentioned in helpdesk section). 

 Click on I AM NOT A ROBOT (CAPTCHA) option and login.  
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NOTE: If Shareholders are holding shares in demat form and have registered on to e-Voting system of 
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com  and/or voted on an earlier event of any company then they can use their 
existing user id and password to login. 

 If you have forgotten the password: Click on ‘LOGIN’ under ‘INVESTOR LOGIN’ tab and then Click on 
‘Forgot your password? 

 Enter “User ID” and “Registered email ID” Click on I AM NOT A ROBOT (CAPTCHA) option and click on 
‘Reset’. 

(In case a shareholder is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail address). 

Voting method for shareholders on i-Vote E-voting portal: 
 

 After successful login, Bigshare E-voting system page will appear. 
 Click on “VIEW EVENT DETAILS (CURRENT)” under ‘EVENTS’ option on investor portal. 
 Select event for which you are desire to vote under the dropdown option. 
 Click on “VOTE NOW” option which is appearing on the right hand side top corner of the page. 
 Cast your vote by selecting an appropriate option “IN FAVOUR”, “NOT IN FAVOUR” or “ABSTAIN” and 

click on “SUBMIT VOTE”. A confirmation box will be displayed. Click “OK” to confirm, else “CANCEL” to 
modify. Once you confirm, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.  

 Once you confirm the vote you will receive confirmation message on display screen and also you will 
receive an email on your registered email id. During the voting period, members can login any number of 
times till they have voted on the resolution(s). Once vote on a resolution is casted, it cannot be changed 
subsequently. 

 Shareholder can “CHANGE PASSWORD” or “VIEW/UPDATE PROFILE” under “PROFILE” option on 
investor portal. 

 
3. Custodian registration process for i-Vote E-Voting Website: 

 
 You are requested to launch the URL on internet browser: https://ivote.bigshareonline.com  
 Click on “REGISTER” under “CUSTODIAN LOGIN”, to register yourself on Bigshare i-Vote e-Voting 

Platform. 
 Enter all required details and submit. 
 After Successful registration, message will be displayed with “User id and password will be sent via 

email on your registered email id”. 
 
NOTE: If Custodian have registered on to e-Voting system of https://ivote.bigshareonline.com  and/or 
voted on an earlier event of any company then they can use their existing user id and password to login. 
 

 If you have forgotten the password: Click on ‘LOGIN’ under ‘CUSTODIAN LOGIN’ tab and further Click on 
‘Forgot your password? 

 Enter “User ID” and “Registered email ID” Click on I AM NOT A ROBOT (CAPTCHA) option and click on 
‘RESET. 
 
(In case a custodian is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail address). 
 
Voting method for Custodian on i-Vote E-voting portal: 
 

 After successful login, Bigshare E-voting system page will appear. 
 
Investor Mapping: 

 
 First you need to map the investor with your user ID under “DOCUMENTS” option on custodian portal. 
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o Click on “DOCUMENT TYPE” dropdown option and select document type power of attorney (POA). 
o Click on upload document “CHOOSE FILE” and upload power of attorney (POA) or board resolution for 

respective investor and click on “UPLOAD”. 

Note: The power of attorney (POA) or board resolution has to be named as the “InvestorID.pdf” 
(Mention Demat account number as Investor ID.) 

o Your investor is now mapped and you can check the file status on display.  

                Investor vote File Upload: 
 

 To cast your vote select “VOTE FILE UPLOAD” option from left hand side menu on custodian portal. 
 Select the Event under dropdown option. 
 Download sample voting file and enter relevant details as required and upload the same file under upload 

document option by clicking on “UPLOAD”. Confirmation message will be displayed on the screen and also 
you can check the file status on display (Once vote on a resolution is casted, it cannot be changed 
subsequently).  

 Custodian can “CHANGE PASSWORD” or “VIEW/UPDATE PROFILE” under “PROFILE” option on 
custodian portal. 

Helpdesk for queries regarding e-voting: 
 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Shareholder‘s other than individual 
shareholders holding shares in Demat 
mode & Physical mode. 

In case shareholders/ investor have any queries regarding 
E-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions 
(‘FAQs’) and i-Vote e-Voting module available at 
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com, under download section 
or you can email us to ivote@bigshareonline.com or call us 
at: 1800 22 54 22. 

 
PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE 
COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES. 
 

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy 
of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested 
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to cs@yashchemex.com/ investors@bigshareonline.com. 

2. For Demat shareholders - Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository 
Participant (DP). 

3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository 
Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository. 

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Yash Chemex Limited 

SD/- 
Pritesh Yashwantlal Shah 

                                                                                                                             Managing Director  
                                                                                                                            DIN: 00239665 

Date: 13th August 2025     
Place: Ahmedabad                                                                                                                                                                                                                
 
Registered Office: 
411, Sigma Icon-1, 132ft Ring Road, Opp. Medilink Hospital 
Satellite, Ahmedabad-380015. Tel. No.: 079- 40028639, Website: www.yashchemex.com;  
Email: cs@yashchemex.com. CIN: L74110GJ2006PLC0483 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE ACT: 
 
Pursuant to the amended provisions of Regulation 24A of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI LODR Regulations) vide SEBI 
Notification dated 12 December 2024 and provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) 
and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, 
based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors of the Company at its 
meeting held on 13th August 2025 have recommended to the Members of the Company for their approval, 
the appointment of M/s Kunal Sharma & Associates, Company Secretaries (M. No: F10329 and CP: 
12987), as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company, for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years from the 
conclusion of this 19th Annual General Meeting of the Company, till the conclusion of the 24th Annual 
General Meeting of the Company to be held in the calendar year 2030. 

 
Credentials:  
 
M/s Kunal Sharma & Associates, Company Secretaries, is a leading firm registered with ICSI. Mr. Kunal 
Sharma, Proprietor is having more than 11 years of professional experience in the areas of Company Law 
Compliances and Advisory, Foreign Exchange and Cross Border Transactions, SEBI Listing Compliances 
and Advisory, Transaction Support Services, Secretarial Audit, Corporate Law Assurance and Attestation 
services. Mr. Kunal Sharma is a Fellow Member of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India having 
Mem. No.: F10329, COP: 12987, and Peer Review No.: 1933/2022.  

 
They have furnished a declaration to the Company that they are eligible to be appointed as Secretarial 
Auditor of the Company for a term of 05 (five) consecutive years i.e., to hold office from the conclusion 
of the 37th Annual General Meeting of the Company, till the conclusion of the 42nd Annual General Meeting 
of the Company to be held in the calendar year 2030.  

 
The details required as per Regulation 36(5) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (“LODR Regulations”) are provided below: 
 

Name of the Secretarial 
Auditor 

M/s Kunal Sharma & Associates, Company Secretaries 

Terms of appointment 
For a term of 05 (Five) consecutive years from the conclusion of 
ensuing AGM, till the conclusion of the 24th AGM of the Company to 
be held in the calendar year 2030.  

Proposed Fees payable to the 
Secretarial Auditors 

The fees payable to M/s Kunal Sharma & Associates, Company 
Secretaries in connection with the Secretarial Audit of the 
Company during FY 2025-26 would be INR 75,000/- (Indian 
Rupees Seventy-Five Thousand Only).  
 
Applicable taxes, travelling and other out-of-pocket expenses 
incurred by Secretarial Auditor would be in addition to the above-
mentioned remuneration. 

 
The fees for services in the nature of secretarial certifications and 
other permissible professional work will be in addition to the fees 
mentioned above and will be determined by the Board of Directors 
of the Company in consultation with the said Secretarial Auditor 
and as per the recommendations of the Audit Committee. 

 
The proposed fees payable to the Secretarial Auditor is based on 
knowledge, expertise, experience, time and effort required to be 
put in by them.  

Material changes in the fee There are no material changes. The proposed fees payable is 
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payable to such auditor from 
that paid to the outgoing 
auditor along with the 
rationale for such change 

commensuration with the size of the Company and prevailing 
market practices in case of Listed entities.  

Basis for recommendation for 
appointment 

The proposal for the appointment of M/s Kunal Sharma & 
Associates, Company Secretaries as the Secretarial Auditor of the 
Company was duly considered and recommended by the Audit 
Committee, based on the following grounds: 
 
a. Mr. Kunal Sharma has had a long-standing professional 

association with the Company. 
b. He has been engaged in secretarial practice for the past Eleven 

(11) years. 
c. He possesses substantial exposure to secretarial practices 

applicable to listed companies. 
d. He holds a valid Peer Review Certificate issued by the Institute 

of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI), bearing Certificate No. 
1933/2022, in compliance with the prescribed requirements. 

 
No order has been passed by ICSI/SEBI/MCA/any other competent authority/Court, both in India or 
outside India, against the proposed secretarial auditor. 
 
Taking into account the credentials of M/s Kunal Sharma & Associates, Company Secretaries and based 
on the evaluation of the quality of the audit work, the Board of Directors of the Company based on the 
recommendation of the Audit Committee, unanimously recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set out 
in Item No. 03 of this Notice for the approval of the Members of the Company.  
 
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are, in any way, 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 03 of this 
Notice, except to the extent of their respective shareholding, if any, in the Company.  

 
For & on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Yash Chemex Limited 
SD/- 

Pritesh Yashwantlal Shah 
                                                                                                                             Managing Director  

                                                                                                                            DIN: 00239665 
Date: 13th August 2025     
Place: Ahmedabad                                                                                                                                                                                                                
 
Registered Office: 
411, Sigma Icon-1, 132ft Ring Road, Opp. Medilink Hospital 
Satellite, Ahmedabad-380015. Tel. No.: 079- 40028639, Website: www.yashchemex.com;  
Email: cs@yashchemex.com. CIN: L74110GJ2006PLC0483 

 
Annexure-A to the Notice 

 
Brief Resume of Director’s seeking appointment/re-appointment. 

Details of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the 19th Annual General Meeting pursuant to 
the provisions of (i) Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 and (ii) Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (‘SS-2’), issued by The Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India and are provided herein below: 

 
Name of Director  Mr. Pritesh Y. Shah 
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DIN  00239665 
Date of Birth   April 25, 1975 
Date of Appointment  June 03, 2006 
Relationship with Other Director inter se  Husband of Executive Director 
Qualification  BSC 

Nature of Expertise in specific functional areas 
 Twenty years of Experience in the field of    
 Dyes and Chemical Segment. 

No. of Equity Shares held in the Company  25,52,720 
List of other Companies in which 
Directorships are held 

 Yasons Chemex Care Limited 

List of committees of board of Directors 
(Across all other companies) in which 
chairmanship/membership is held 

 Member of   Audit   Committee of Yash 
 Chemex Limited and Yasons Chemex Care 
 Limited. 

Category Managing Director (Executive and Promoter) 

Nationality Indian 

In the case of Independent Directors, the skills 
and capabilities for the role and the manner in 
which the proposed person meets such 
requirements. 

Not Applicable 

Details of Board Meetings attended during the 
year. All Board Meetings attended during the Year. 

Term and Condition of appointment along with 
Remuneration. 

As per Appointment letter and Resolution of 
respective Director. 

Remuneration last drawn 
As per Appointment letter and Resolution of 
respective Director. 

Remuneration proposed to be paid. 
As per Appointment letter and Resolution of 
respective Director. 

Terms and Conditions of reappointment. 
As per Appointment letter and Resolution of 
respective Director. 

Information as required pursuant to Per 
Exchange Circular No. LIST/COMP/ 14/2018-
19 Dated 20 June 2018 W.R.T. Enforcement Of 
SEBI Orders Regarding Appointment of 
Directors By Listed Companies 

He is not debarred from holding the office of 
Director by virtue of any order of Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (SEBI) or any other 
such authority. 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

To, 
The Shareholders 
Yash Chemex Limited 

 
Your directors have pleasure in presenting the 19th Annual Report of your Company along with the 
Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 
2025. 

 
1. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

 
The Audited Financial Statements of your Company as of March 31, 2025, have been prepared in 
accordance with the relevant applicable Accounting Standards, Regulation 33 of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing 
Regulations”), and the applicable of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) 

    (Amount in INR Lakhs) 

Particulars 
Standalone Consolidated 

2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24 

Revenue from operations 5796.47 6134.90 9528.29 9490.92 

Other Income 6.22 79.84 224.46 161.65 

Total Income 5802.69 6214.74 9752.75 9652.57 
Less: Expenditure 5539.67 6292.59 9198.96 9493.41 
Profit/Loss before Interest, 
Depreciation and Tax 263.02 (77.85) 553.79 159.16 

Less: Interest 64.63 77.45 155.84 154.87 
Less: Depreciation and 
Amortization 

1.05 1.15 9.89 11.37 

Less: Extra Ordinary Items - - - - 
Profit/Loss Before Tax 197.34 (156.45) 388.06 (7.08) 
Less: Tax Expenses 74.90 (65.22) 104.45 (39.94) 
Current Tax 63.15 8.31 83.41 35.91 
Tax in respect of earlier 
year 

3.20 4.86 7.40 10.17 

Deferred Tax Asset 8.55 (78.39) 13.64 (86.02) 
Profit/Loss After Tax 122.44 (91.23) 283.61 32.86 

 
Performance Review & State of Company’s Affairs 
 
Standalone Operating Results 

 
Your Company operates single segment business viz. Trading of Chemical. At standalone level, the net 
revenue from operations for the financial year 2024-25 is Rs. 5796.47 Lakhs compared with Rs. 6134.90 
Lakhs for the Previous Year. The Profit before tax for the financial year 2024-25 is Rs 197.34 Lakhs as 
against loss of Rs. (156.45) Lakhs for the Previous Year. Total Comprehensive Income for financial year 
2024-25 is Rs. 127.42 Lakhs compared to Rs. (36.01) Lakhs for the Previous Year. 
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Consolidated Operating Results 
 
The Net Consolidated Revenue from operations for the financial year 2024-25 is Rs. 9528.29 Lakhs as 
against Rs. 9490.92 Lakhs for the Previous Year. The Consolidated operating Profit before tax for the 
financial year 2024-25 is Rs. 388.06 Lakhs as against Loss of Rs. 7.08 Lakhs for the Previous Year. Total 
Comprehensive Income for the financial year 2024-25 is Rs. 287.89 Lakhs compared to Rs. 86.87 Lakhs 
for the Previous Year. 

 
2. DIVIDEND 

 
With a view to conserve the financial resources, your directors have considered it financially prudent in 
the long-term interests of the Company to reinvest the profits into the business of the Company to build 
a strong reserve base, therefore no Dividend has been recommended by the Board on the Equity Shares 
of the Company for the financial year 2024-25.  
Further there was no Unclaimed and Unpaid Dividend Amount in the Company. 

 
3. TRANSFER TO RESERVES 
 
Your Company has incurred a Profit of Rs. 122.44 Lakhs during the Financial Year 2024-25, there are no 
amount transfer to reserves.  
 
4. PUBLIC DEPOSITS 

 
The Company has not accepted any public deposits, nor any amount of principal or interest thereof was 
outstanding in terms of Sections 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, for the financial year ended 2024-25. 
 
The details of transactions of Loans and Advances undertaken between the Company and its 
Directors/Relatives of Directors have been disclosed in Note No.: 46 (Related Party Transactions) which 
forms part of the Financials Statements attached to this Report. 
 
The Company has received declarations from its Directors and their Relatives that all the Loans 
extended/to be extended by them to the Company are their owned funds only and not borrowed from 
any person or entity. 

 
5. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY: 
 
During the Financial Year 2024-25, the Company has not changed its nature of business. 
 
6.  CAPITAL STRUCTURE 
 
During the year under review, there has been no change in the Capital Structure of the Company. 

 
A. Authorized Share Capital 

 
As on 31st March 2025, The Authorized Share capital of the Company is Rs. 11,00,00,000/- (Rs. Eleven 
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Crore only) divided into 1,10,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10 /- each. 
 
B. Issued Capital, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital 

 
The Paid-up Equity share Capital of the Company is Rs. 10,24,34,250/- (Rs. Ten Crore Twenty-Four Lakhs 
Thirty-Four Thousand Two Hundred Fifty only) divided into 1,02,43,425 Equity Shares of Rs 10 /- each. 
 
Depository System: 
 
As the members are aware, the Company’s Equity Shares are compulsorily tradable in electronic form. 
As on 31st March 2025, 100% of the Company’s total paid up Equity Capital representing 1,02,43,425 
Equity shares are in dematerialized form. 
 
The SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 mandate that the transfer, 
except transmission and transposition, of securities shall be carried out in dematerialized form only. In 
view of the numerous advantages offered by the Depository system as well as to avoid frauds, members 
holding shares in physical mode are advised to avail of the facility of dematerialization from either of the 
depositories. The Company has, directly as well as through its RTA, sent intimation to shareholders who 
are holding shares in physical form, advising them to get the shares dematerialized. 
 
The Company has not issued any Shares with or without differential rights or Debentures or any other 
securities by way of Public Offer, Private Placement, Preferential allotment, Rights issue, Bonus Issue, 
Sweat Equity Shares, and Employee Stock Option Scheme or in any such other manner.  
 
7. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINACIAL POSITION OF THE 

COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE 
COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL YEAR RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT. 

 
In terms of Section 134(3) (l) of the Companies Act, 2013, except as disclosed elsewhere in this Report, 
no material changes and commitments which could affect the Company’s financial position occurred 
between the end of the financial year of the Company and date of this Report. 
 
8. POLICY ON APPOINTMENT & REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS. 

 
To ensure compliance with the requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 
19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and any other 
applicable provisions, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of the 
Company have formulated the Nomination and Remuneration Policy. 

 
The Nomination and Remuneration Policy of your Company have been made available on the website of 
the Company i.e., www.yashchemex.com 
 
9. INSURANCE. 

 
The Company has a broad-banded approach towards insurance. Adequate cover has been taken for all 
movable and immovable assets against numerous risks and hazards. 

 
10. PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE & INTERNAL COMPLAINTS 

\COMMITTEE. 
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Your Company is committed to providing and promoting a safe, healthy and congenial atmosphere 
irrespective of gender, caste, creed or social class of the employees.  
 
Pursuant to provisions of section 134(3)(q) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, required disclosure is given below:  
 
(a) The Company has constituted Internal Committee as per provisions of the Sexual Harassment of 

Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and also has a policy and 
framework for employees to report sexual harassment cases at workplace and its process ensures 
complete anonymity and confidentiality of information. Workshops and awareness programmes 
against sexual harassment are conducted across the organization.  

 
(b) Details of complaints at the opening of, filed and resolved during, and pending at the end of, the 

financial year are as under:  
 

Particulars Number of Complaints 
Number of complaints at the opening of the Financial Year Nil 

Number of complaints filed during the Financial Year Nil 
Number of complaints disposed of during the Financial 

Year Nil 

Number of complaints pending as on end of the Financial 
Year Nil 

 
11. RISK MANAGEMENT. 
 
Risk Management is an integral part of our strategy for stakeholders’ value enhancement and is 
embedded into governance and decision-making process across the Organization. The Company has in 
place the Risk Management Policy to ensure effective responses to strategic, operational, financial and 
compliance risks faced by the Organization. 
 
This Policy deals with identifying and assessing risks such as operational, strategic, financial, security, 
property, regulatory, reputational, cyber security and other risks and the Company has in place an 
adequate Risk Management infrastructure capable of addressing these risks. The Board of Directors of 
your Company is of the opinion that, at present, there are no elements of risks which may threaten the 
existence of the Company. 
 
12. NAMES OF THE COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE SUBSIDARIES, JOINT 

VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES. 
 
At the end of the financial year under review, None of the Companies have become or ceased to be Joint 
Ventures or Associate Companies. 
 
Yasons Chemex Care Limited is a Subsidiary Company of Yash Chemex Limited. 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, a statement containing the salient features of the financial statements 
of our Subsidiary in the Form AOC-1 is annexed and form part of the Annual Report as Annexure A. In 
accordance with Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Audited Financial Statements, including the 
consolidated financial statements, audited accounts of the Subsidiary and other documents are available 
on your Company’s website: www.yashchemex.com. 
 
13. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
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The Board of Directors of the Company met 6 times during the year. i.e. 22.05.2024, 13.08.2024, 
03.09.2024, 14.11.2024, 13.02.2025, and 27.03.2025 respectively, proper notices were given and 
proceedings were properly recorded, signed and maintained in the minute’s book kept by the Company. 
 
The time gap between the two meetings was in accordance with the requirements. Every Director 
currently on the Board of the Company has personally attended at least one Board Meeting in the 
financial year 2024-25. All the information required to be furnished to the Board was made available 
along with a detailed Agenda. 
 
During the year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of Secretarial Standard 1 
(relating to Meetings of the Board of Directors) and Secretarial Standard 2 (relating to General Meetings) 
issued by the Institute of the Company Secretaries of India. 
 
14. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL. 
 
DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

 

As on 31st March 2025, the Board composition is as under: 

 
S. No. Name Designation 

1. Mr. Pritesh Y. Shah Managing Director 
2. Mrs. Dimple P. Shah Whole-Time Director 
3. Mr. Jinal D. Shah Independent Director 
4. Ms. Angee R. Shah Independent Director 
5. Mr. Rushabh A. Shah Independent Director 

 
Appointments: 
 
During the year under review, No Director was appointed on the Board of the Company. 
 
Retire by rotation and Re-appointments: 

 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and the Articles of Association of your 
Company, Mr. Pritesh Y. Shah is liable to retire by rotation at 19th AGM and being eligible offer himself 
for reappointment. 
 
An appropriate resolution for his re-appointment is being placed for your approval at 19th AGM. The brief 
resume of Mr. Pritesh Y. Shah with other related information has been detailed in the Notice of AGM 
which is forming part of the Annual Report. 
 
Resignations/Retirements along with facts of resignation: 
 
During the year under review, No Director has resigned from the office of Director of the Company. 
Key Managerial Personnel: 
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There are changes in the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company: 

 
Sr. 
No. 

Name 
Nature 

(Resignation/Appointment) 
Designation Effective Date 

1                                                                                                                            Riddhi D. Shah Resignation 
 Company 
Secretary 25/05/2024 

2 Pragati Jain Appointment Company 
Secretary 

13/08/2024 

 
The following are the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of your Company pursuant to the provisions 
of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, throughout the Financial Year 2024 -25: 
 
1. Mr. Pritesh Y. Shah - Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer. 
2. Mrs. Dimple P. Shah - Whole Time Director. 
3. Miss. Pragati Jain -Company Secretary and Compliance Officer (Appointed w.e.f 13th August 2024) 

 
Annual Evaluation of Board’s Performance: 
 
In terms of the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations’), an annual performance evaluation of the Board, 
its Committees and the Directors was undertaken which included the evaluation of the Board as a whole, 
Board Committees and peer evaluation of the Directors. The criteria for performance evaluation covers 
the areas relevant to the functioning of the Board and Board Committees such as its composition, 
oversight and effectiveness, performance, skills and structure etc. The performance of individual 
directors was evaluated on parameters such as preparation, participation, conduct, independent 
judgment and effectiveness. The performance evaluation of Independent Directors was done by the 
entire Board of Directors and in the evaluation of the Directors, the Directors being evaluated had not 
participated. The evaluation process has been explained in the corporate governance report section in 
this Annual Report. 
 
Declaration of Independence: 
 
Your Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors under Section 149(7) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 confirming that they fulfill the criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Schedules and Rules issued thereunder as well as under 
Regulation 16(b) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfil the conditions specified under the Act and 
Listing Regulations and are independent of the management. The Board skill/expertise/ competencies 
matrix of all the Directors, including the Independent Directors is provided in the Corporate Governance 
Report forming part of this Annual Report. All the Independent Directors of the Company have registered 
themselves with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (“IICA”).  
 
Familiarization Program for Independent Directors: 
 
At the time of the appointment of an Independent Director, the Company issues a formal letter of 
appointment outlining his/her role, function, duties and responsibilities. Further, the Independent 
Directors are introduced with the corporate affairs, new developments and business of the Company 
from time to time. The Familiarization program is also available on the website of the Company.  
 
Pecuniary relationship: 
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During the year under review, except those disclosed in the Audited Standalone Financial Statements, 
the Non-Executive Directors of the Company had no pecuniary relationship or transactions with the 
Company. 

 
15. COMMITTEES TO THE BOARD: 

 
In compliance with the requirement of applicable laws and as part of best governance practices, the 
Company has followed Committees of the Board as on 31 March 2025: 
 
a) Audit Committee. 
b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 
c) Stakeholders Relationship Committee. 

 
a. AUDIT COMMITTEE: 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177(8) of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 6 of the Companies 
(Meetings of Board & its Powers) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 18 read with Part C of Schedule II of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, the Audit Committee comprises of the following Members: 

 
1. Mr. Jinal D. Shah: Chairperson - Non-Executive, Independent Director 
2. Ms. Angee R. Shah: Member –Non-Executive-Independent Director 
3. Mr. Rushabh A. Shah: Member - Non-Executive-Independent Director 
4. Mr. Pritesh Y. Shah: Member - Executive Director 

 
The Company Secretary and Compliance Officer acts as Secretary to the Audit Committee. The Audit 
Committee has made observations and recommendations to the Board of Directors, which have been 
noted and accepted by the Board. 

 
During the Financial Year 2024-25, all recommendations made by the Audit Committee to the Board of 
Director were accepted by the Board and there were no instances where the recommendations were not 
accepted. 

 
The Members of the Committee met 6 times during the year. i.e. 22.05.2024, 13.08.2024, 03.09.2024, 
14.11.2024, 13.02.2025 and 27.03.2025. 

 
b. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings 
of Board & its Powers) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 19 read with Part D of Schedule II of the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of the following Members: - 

 
1. Mr. Jinal D. Shah: Chairperson - Non-Executive, Independent Director 
2. Ms. Angee R. Shah: Member – Non-Executive-Independent Director 
3. Mr. Rushabh A. Shah: Member - Non-Executive-Independent Director 
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The Members of the Committee met 4 times during the year. i.e. 22.05.2024, 13.08.2024, 14.11.2024 and 
27.03.2025. 

 
c. STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 read with Part 
D of Schedule II of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the committee comprises of the following Members: 
 
1. Mr. Jinal D. Shah: Chairperson - Non-Executive, Independent Director 
2. Ms. Angee R. Shah: Member – Non-Executive-Independent Director 
3. Mr. Rushabh A. Shah: Member - Non-Executive-Independent Director 

 
The Members of the Committee met 4 times during the year. i.e. 22.05.2024, 13.08.2024, 14.11.2024, and 
13.02.2025. 
 
16. EXTRA ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING 

 
No Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company has been held during F.Y 2024-25. 
 
17. ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 
The Eighteenth Annual General Meeting was held on 30th September 2024 at the Registered Office of the 
Company. 
 
18. MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

 
The Independent Directors met once during the Financial Year 2024-25 i.e., on 13.02.2025. The Meeting 
of the Independent Directors was conducted in an informal manner without the presence of the Non-
independent Directors 
 
19. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

 
Pursuant to the provisions contained in sub-sections (3) (c) and (5) of Section 134 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, the Directors of your Company confirm that: - 

 
a. In the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the Financial Year (F.Y.) 2024-25, the applicable 

accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material 
departures. 

b. The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the Financial Year (i.e., March 31, 2025) and of the profit 
and loss of the Company for that period (i.e., the Financial Year 2024- 25); 

c. The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities. 

d. The Directors have prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis. 
e. The Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such 

internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and 
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f. The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
 

20. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

 
Disclosures with respect to the remuneration of Directors and employees as required under Section 197 
(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5 (1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 will be provided upon request.  
 
No employee of the Company was in receipt of remuneration more than the limits specified under Rule 
5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, during 
the financial year ended 31st March 2025. 

 
21. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

 
In terms of provisions of Section 92, 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the extract of the Annual Return is available 
on the website of the Company. 
 
22. VIGIL MECHANISM 

 
In pursuant to the provisions of section 177(9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Your Company has 
adopted a Whistle Blower Policy as a part of its vigil mechanism. The purpose of the Policy is to enable 
employees to raise concerns regarding unacceptable improper practices and/ or any unethical practices 
in the Organization without the knowledge of the Management. All employees shall be protected from 
any adverse action for reporting any unacceptable or improper practice and/or any unethical practice, 
fraud, or violation of any law, rule, or regulation. This Policy is also applicable to the Directors and 
Employees of the Company. The Policy is available on the website of the Company. On a quarterly basis, 
the Audit Committee reviews reports made under this policy and implements corrective actions, 
wherever necessary. 

 
23. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

 
Your Company does not fall under the purview of the criteria specified under Section 135(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, so provisions regarding formation / constitution of CSR Committee prescribed 
under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
24. SIGNIFICANT REGULATORY OR COURT ORDERS 

 
During the Financial Year 2024-25, there were no significant and material orders passed by the 
regulators or Courts or Tribunals which can adversely impact the going concern status of the Company 
and its operations in future. 

 
25. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES, ADVANCES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 

186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
 
During the year under review, the Company has granted advances and made an investment under the 
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provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has not given us any loan. The details 
of Loans, Guarantees and Investment made are given in the Notes to the Financial Statements, which 
forms part of this Report. 

 
26. CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES: 

 
During the financial year 2024-25, all transactions with the Related Parties as defined under Section 
2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Specification of Definitions Details) Rules, 2014 
and Regulation 23 of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 were entered in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length 
basis.  
 
The Company has a process in place to periodically review and monitor Related Party Transactions. The 
Audit Committee has approved all related party transactions for FY 2024-25 and estimated transactions 
for FY 2025-26. 
 
There were no materially significant related party transactions that may conflict with the interest of the 
Company. 
 
The Policy on materiality of related party transactions and dealing with related party transactions as 
approved by the Board of Directors may be accessed on the Company’s website. Disclosures on related 
party transactions are set out in the Notes to the Financial Statements forming part of this Annual Report. 
 
During the period under review Company has entered transactions with related parties. Transactions 
entered as per section 188 of the companies Act, 2013 during the year as are detailed in Annexure-B 
attached to this Report and Transactions with related parties, as per requirements of Accounting 
Standard 18 are disclosed in the notes to the accounts annexed to the financial statements. 
 
27. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH RESPECT TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
Your Company is committed to constantly improving the effectiveness of internal financial controls and 
processes for the efficient conduct of its business operations and ensuring security to its assets and 
timely preparation of reliable financial information. In the opinion of the Board, the internal financial 
control system of the Company is commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of business 
operations of the Company. 

 
Further, the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements are adequate in the 
opinion of the Board of Directors were operating effectively. 

 
The Company has a proper system of internal controls to ensure that all assets are safeguarded and 
protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and that transactions are authorized, 
recorded and reported correctly. 
 
The internal control is supplemented by an extensive program of internal, external audits and periodic 
review by the Management. This system is designed to adequately ensure that financial and other 
records are reliable for preparing financial information and other data and for maintaining 
accountability of assets. 



 

     19th Annual Report 2024-25                                                                                                             Yash Chemex Limited  

 
The Statutory Auditors and the Internal Auditors were, inter alia, invited to attend the Audit Committee 
Meetings and present their observations on adequacy of Internal Financial Controls and the steps 
required to bridge gaps, if any. The Board of Directors noted the observations and accepted the 
recommendations of the Audit Committee. 

 
28. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 
A report on Corporate Governance along with a Certificate from a Practicing Company Secretary 
confirming compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under the SEBI Listing 
Regulations and a Certificate of the CEO and CFO of the Company in terms of Regulation 17(8) of the 
Listing Regulations is appended to the Corporate Governance Report forms part of the Annual Report. 
 
29. AUDITORS 

 
STATUTORY AUDITORS: 

 
At the 18th Annual General Meeting held on 30th September 2024, M/s. S. L. Patel & Co., Chartered 
Accountants (FRN - 119211W) were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office till 
the conclusion of the 23rd Annual General Meeting.  
 
Further in terms of Clause 40 of Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 which was notified vide Notification 
dated S.O. 1833 (E) dated 7th May 2018 and effective from the date, the Proviso of Section 139(1) 
relating to ratification of Appointment of Auditors at every Annual General Meeting of the Company has 
been omitted and the requirement of Ratification of Auditors Appointment is no longer required as per 
the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Therefore, the resolution for ratification of Appointment of Statutory Auditors M/s. S. L. Patel & Co., 
Chartered Accountants (FRN - 119211W), has not been provided for the approval of the Shareholders 
and not formed as a part of Notice of the 37th AGM of the Company. 
 
The Auditors’ Report for Financial Year ended 31st March 2025 forms part of the Integrated Annual 
Report and does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remarks. 

 
SECRETARIAL AUDITORS & SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT: 

 
The Board of Directors of your Company appointed M/s Kunal Sharma & Associates, Practicing 
Company Secretaries (FCS Number: 10329, COP Number: 12987) as the Secretarial Auditors of the 
Company for the conduct of Secretarial Audit for the Financial Year 2024-25, pursuant to the provisions 
of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.  
 
The Secretarial Audit Report submitted by the Secretarial Auditor is annexed as “Annexure C” to this 
Board’s Report. 
 
Based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors of the Company has 
appointed M/s Kunal Sharma & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries as the Secretarial Auditor 
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of the Company for the financial year 2025-26 to F.Y. 2029-30 at their meeting held on 13th August 
2025. The Company has received their written consent that the appointment is in accordance with the 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder. 
 
The details required as per Regulation 36(5) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI Listing Regulations) forms part of Explanatory Statement to the 
Notice of the 19th AGM.  
 
INTERNAL AUDIT AND RECORDS 

 
In Accordance with the provisions of section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 13 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The Board 
of Directors of the Company has appointed M/s N. H. Desai & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN No. 
161645W and M. No: 631230) as an Internal Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25. 
 
The Internal Audit Report issued by the Internal Auditor was present before the Audit Committee and 
the Board of Directors of the Company. 
 
The Internal Audit Reports for financial year ended 31 March 2025 do not contain any qualification, 
reservation or adverse remarks. 
 
COST AUDITOR: 

 
As per companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 as amended by Companies (Cost Records and 
Audit) Amendment Rules, 2014, issued by the Central Government. The Company is not required to get 
its cost record audited by Cost Auditor. 
 
EXPLANATION ON AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
Statutory Auditor 
 
The notes to the accounts referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not 
call for any separate or further comments or explanations. 
 
Secretarial Auditor 
 
The Secretarial Auditor Report does not contain any Remarks/Observations. 
 
Internal Auditor 
 
The Internal Auditor Report does not contain any Remarks/Observations. 
 
30. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO. 
 
Pursuant to section 134(3)(m) of the companies Act, 2013 and read with Rule 8(3) of the companies 
Accounts Rules,2014} 
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A. Conservation of Energy: * 
 
I. Steps taken/impact on conservation of energy: N.A. 
II. Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy including waste generated: Nil 
III. Capital investment on energy conservation equipment: NIL 
 

 *Your Company is in Business of trading of Chemical, so in trading business there is no need of 
Conservation of Energy. 

 
B. Technology Absorption: * 

 
I. The efforts made towards technology absorption; N.A. 
II. The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import 

substitution; N.A. 
III. In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning 

of the financial year) - N.A. 
 

       Your Company is in Business of trading of Chemical, so in trading business there is no need of 
Technology Absorption. 
 
C. Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo (Amount in Rs.): 

 
Foreign Exchange Earning: NIL   
Foreign Exchange Outgo: NIL 
 
31. POLICIES OF THE COMPANY 

 
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) have mandated the formulation of certain policies for all listed 
companies. All the Policies are available on the Company’s website, www.yashchemex.com. 
 
The key policies that have been adopted by the Company pursuant to the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other applicable laws are as follows: 

 
Sr. 
No. Name of the Policy Brief Particulars of the Policy 

      1 Risk Management Policy 

The Company has in place, a Risk Management Policy which was 
framed by the Board of Directors of the Company. This Policy deals 
with identifying and assessing risks such as operational, strategic, 
financial, security, property, regulatory, reputational, cyber 
security and other risks and the Company has in place an adequate 
Risk Management infrastructure capable of addressing these risks. 
The Board of Directors of your Company is of the opinion that, at 
present, there are no elements of risks which may threaten the 
existence of the Company. 
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2. 
Policy for determining 
Material Subsidiaries 

This Policy is used to determine the material subsidiaries and 
material non-listed Indian subsidiaries of the Company in order to 
comply with the requirements of Regulation 16(1)(c), Regulation 
24 and Regulation 24A of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, as amended. 
 
As on March 31, 2025, Yasons Chemex Care Limited is a material 
Subsidiary of your Company. 

3. 
Nomination and 

Remuneration Policy 

This Policy formulates the criteria for determining qualifications, 
competencies, positive attributes and independence of a Director 
and also the criteria for determining the remuneration of the 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Senior 
Management Employees. 

4. 
Policy on Familiarization 

Programmes for 
Independent Directors 

Your Company has a Policy on Familiarization Programmes for 
Independent Directors, which lays down the practices followed 
by the Company in this regard, on a continuous basis. 

5. 
Whistle Blower Policy / 

Vigil 
Mechanism 

Your Company has a Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy. The 
purpose of the Policy is to enable employees to raise concerns 
regarding unacceptable improper practices and/ or any unethical 
practices in the organization without the knowledge of the 
Management. The Policy provides adequate safeguards against 
victimization of persons who use such mechanism and makes 
provision for direct access to Ms. Jinal D. Shah, Chairman of the 
Audit Committee, in appropriate or exceptional cases. 

6. 
Policy on Prevention of 

Sexual 
Harassment at Workplace 

Your Company has in place, a Policy on Prevention of Sexual 
Harassment at Workplace, which provides for a proper 
mechanism for redressal of complaints of sexual harassment and 
thereby encourages employees to work together without fear of 
sexual harassment, exploitation or intimidation. 

7. 
Policy on Related Party 

Transactions 
This Policy regulates all transactions between the Company and its 
Related Parties. 

8. 

Code of Conduct for the 
Board 

of Directors and Senior 
Management Personnel 

Your Company has in place, a Code of Conduct for the Board of 
Directors and Senior Management Personnel which reflects the 
legal and ethical values to which your Company is strongly 
committed. The Directors and Senior Management Personnel of 
your Company have complied with the Code as mentioned 
hereinabove. 

9. 
Code of Conduct for 

Insider Trading 

This Policy sets up an appropriate mechanism to curb Insider 
Trading in accordance with Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amended 
from time to time. 

10. 
Policy on Criteria for 

determining Materiality 
of Events 

This Policy applies to disclosures of material events affecting the 
Company. 
 
This Policy warrants disclosure to investors and has been framed 
incompliance with the requirements of Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations And Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time. 
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11. 
Policy for Maintenance 

And Preservation of 
Documents 

The purpose of this Policy is to specify the type of documents and 
time period for preservation thereof based on the classification 
mentioned under Regulation 9 of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. This Policy covers all business records of the 
Company, including written, printed and recorded matter and 
electronic forms of records. 

12. Archival Policy 

This Policy is framed pursuant to the provisions of the Listing 
Regulations. 
 
As per this Policy, all such events or information which have been 
disclosed to the Stock Exchanges are required to be hosted on the 
website of the Company for a minimum period of 5(five) years and 
thereafter in terms of the Policy. 

13. 

Policy for Inquiry in case 
of Leak of Unpublished 

Price Sensitive 
Information(“UPSI”) 

This Policy is framed by the Board of Directors in terms of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider 
Trading) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018. 
 
The focus of the Company is to have a Policy in place to strengthen 
the Internal Control System and prevent Leak of Unpublished Price 
Sensitive Information (“UPSI”). This policy also aims to have a 
uniform code to curb unethical practices of sharing UPSI by 
insiders, employees and designated persons with any other person 
without a legitimate purpose. 

14. 

Code of Practices and 
Procedures for Fair 

Disclosure of 
Unpublished Price 

Sensitive 
Information(“UPSI”) 

The Code intends to formulate a stated framework and policy for 
fair disclosure of events and occurrences that could impact price 
discovery in the market for the Company’s securities and to 
maintain the uniformity, transparency and fairness in dealings 
with all stakeholders and ensure adherence to applicable laws and 
regulations. 

 
32. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 
 
Your Company is compiled the Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS- 1) and 
Secretarial Standards on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.  
 
33. MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION 
 
The remuneration paid to Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company during the Financial 
Year 2024-25 was in accordance with the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company. 
 
Disclosures with respect to the remuneration of Directors and employees as required under Section 
197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 have been appended as “Annexure-D” to this Report. 
 
 
34. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT (MDAR) 

 
 As per Regulation 34 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Management and Discussion Analysis of the Financial Condition and 
results of the operations have been provided Separately in this Annual Report in Annexure-E. 
 
35. ANNUAL SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT 
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The Company has undertaken an Annual Secretarial Compliance Audit for the financial year 2024-2025 
for all applicable compliances as per Securities and Exchange Board of India Regulations and 
Circulars/Guidelines issued thereunder. The Annual Secretarial Compliance Report pursuant to 
Regulation 24A of the listing regulations read with SEBI Circular dated February 08, 2019, has been taken 
from Mr. Kunal Sharma, Secretarial Auditor of the Company. 
 
36. DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS:  
 

a) Disclosure Under Section 43(a)(ii) of the Companies Act, 2013:  
The Company has not issued any shares with differential rights and hence no information as per 
provisions of Section 43(a)(ii) of the Act read with Rule 4(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and 
Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished.  
 

b) Disclosure Under Section 54(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 2013:  
The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the year under review and hence no 
information as per provisions of Section 54(1)(d) of the Act read with Rule 8(13) of the 
Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished.  
 

c) Disclosure Under Section 62(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013:  
The Company has not issued equity shares under Employees Stock Option Scheme during the 
year under review.  
 

d) Disclosure Under Section 67(3) of the Companies Act, 2013:  
During the year under review, there were no instances of non-exercising of voting rights in 
respect of shares purchased directly by employees under a scheme pursuant to Section 67(3) of 
the Act read with Rule 16(4) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 is 
furnished. 
 
The Company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and that 
such systems are adequate and operating effectively. Related Party disclosures/transactions are 
detailed in the Notes to the financial statements.  

 
37. OTHER DISCLOSURES: 

 
(a) During the financial year 2024-25, the Company does not have any scheme or provision of 

money for the purchase of its own shares by employees or by trustees for the benefit of 
employees. 

(b) During the financial year 2024-25, no application was made, or any proceeding is pending under 
the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

(c) During the financial year 2024-25, your Company has not entered into any One-Time Settlement 
with banks or financial institutions. 

(d) The Company has not issued any debentures during the financial year 2024-25. 
(e) During the financial year 2024-25, your Company did not raise funds from Preferential Issue of 

Convertible Equity Warrants and your Board hereby confirms that there were no deviations(s) 
or variation (s) in the utilization of proceeds from the objects stated in the explanatory 
statement to the notice for the general meeting. 

 
38. COMPLIANCE UNDER THE MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT, 1961:  
 
The Company has duly complied with all applicable provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961. All 
eligible women employees have been granted the benefits as prescribed under the Act, including 
maternity leave and other related entitlements. The Company remains committed to fostering a 
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supportive and inclusive work environment, particularly for working mothers, and continues to uphold 
its responsibility towards gender equity in the workplace.  

 
39. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:  
 
This report contains forward-looking statements based on the perceptions of the Company and the data 
and information available with the Company. The Company does not and cannot guarantee the accuracy 
of various assumptions underlying such statements and they reflect Company’s current views of the 
future events and are subject to risks and uncertainties. Many factors like change in general economic 
conditions, amongst others, could cause actual results to be materially different.  
 
40. INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF) 

 
Pursuant to the Section 125 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 
(“IEPF Rules”), all the unpaid or unclaimed dividends are required to be transferred to the IEPF 
established by the Central Government, upon completion of 7 (seven) years. 
 
Further, according to the IEPF Rules, the shares in respect of which dividend has not been paid or 
claimed by the Shareholders for 7 (seven) consecutive years or more are also required to be transferred 
to the Demat account created by the IEPF Authority. 
 
During the year under review, Your Company has not transferred any unclaimed amount and Shares to 
IEPF Authority. 
 
41. GREEN INITIATIVES 

 
The Notice of the AGM and the Annual Report 2024–25 are being sent only electronically to Members 
whose email addresses are registered with the Company or depositories in accordance with Regulation 
36 of the Listing Regulations. Members may take note that the Notice and Annual Report for 2024–25 
will also be accessible at the website of the Company i.e., www.yashchemex.com 
 
42. WEBSITE 

 
In compliance with Regulation 46 of Listing Regulations, your company maintains a fully functional 
website with the domain name www.yashchemex.com. The website serves as a comprehensive source 
of basic information about our company. 
 
APPRECIATION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 
Your directors place on records their deep appreciation to employees at all levels for their hard work, 
dedication, and commitment. The Board places on record its appreciation for the support and co-
operation your Company has been receiving from its suppliers, retailers, dealers and others associated 
with the Company. The Directors also take this opportunity to thank all its clients, vendors, banks, 
Government and Regulatory Authorities for their continued support. 

 
For & on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Yash Chemex Limited 
SD/- 

Pritesh Yashwantlal Shah 
                                                                                                                             Managing Director  

                                                                                                                            DIN: 00239665 
Date: 13th August 2025     
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Place: Ahmedabad                                                                                                                                                                                                                
 
ANNEXURE-A 

Form AOC-1 
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 
 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/Associate 
Companies/Joint Ventures 

 
Part "A": Subsidiaries 

 
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs Lakhs) 

 
Sr. No. 01 

Name of the Subsidiary Yasons Chemex Care Limited 

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different 
from the holding company's reporting period 

NA 

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of 
the relevant financial year in the case of foreign 
subsidiaries. 

NA 

Share capital 1930.39 

Reserves & surplus 2137.74 

Total assets    5280.17 

Total Liabilities 1212.04 

Investments NIL 

Turnover 4583.91 

Profit before taxation 190.73 

Provision for taxation 29.55 

Profit after taxation 161.81 

Proposed Dividend Nil 

Extent of Shareholding (in Percentage) 51.468303 

  For & on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Yash Chemex Limited 

SD/- 
Pritesh Yashwantlal Shah 

                                                                                                                             Managing Director  
                                                                                                                            DIN: 00239665 

Date: 27th May 2025     
Place: Ahmedabad  
 
ANNEXURE-B                                                                                                                       

FORM AOC-2 
(Pursuant to clause (h)of sub section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 including certain Arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto) 
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Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/Arrangements/transactions entered into by the company 
with related parties referred in sub section (1) of the section 188 of the companies Act, 2013 including 
certain Arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto. 
 
1. Details of contracts or Arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length Basis: NIL 
2. Details of contracts or Arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length Basis: 
 

Name 
of 

Related 
Party 

Nature of 
relationship 

Nature of 
Contracts/ 
Arrangem 
ents/trans 

actions 

 
Proposed/ 
Amount of 

Transaction 

Salient 
terms 

& 
Condit 

ions 

Date of 
Approval 

of 
the Board, 

if 
any 

Amount 
paid as 

advanced 
, if any 

Amount of 
Transactions 

(in 
Lakhs) 

   

Yasons 
Chemex 

Care 
Limited 

Subsidiar
y 

Company 

Sales of 
Goods 500.33 

In the 
Ordinary 
Course of 
Business 
and on 
Arms 

Length 

- - 500.33 

Yasons 
Chemex 

Care 
Limited 

Subsidiary 
Company 

Purchase 
of Goods 351.76 

In the 
Ordinary 
Course of 
Business 
and on 
Arms 

Length 

- - 351.76 

Yash 
Chem 

Controlled 
by Key 

Managerial 
Persons 

Sales of 
Goods 

 
Purchase 
of Goods 

115.89 
 

257.75 

In the 
Ordinary 
Course of 
Business 
and on 
Arms 

Length 

- - 
115.89 

 
257.75 

Yash 
Corpora

tion 

Controlled 
by Key 

Managerial 
Persons 

Sales of 
Goods 

 
Purchase 
of Goods 

90.22 
 

235.75 

In the 
Ordinary 
Course of 
Business 
and on 
Arms 

Length 

- - 
90.22 

 
235.75 

Rishit 
Polysurf 

LLP 

Fellow 
Subsidiary 

Sales of 
Goods 

 
Purchase 
of Goods 

116.79 
 

211.63 

In the 
Ordinary 
Course of 
Business 
and on 
Arms 

Length 

- - 
116.79 

 
211.63 

 
For & on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Yash Chemex Limited 
SD/- 
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Pritesh Yashwantlal Shah 
                                                                                                                             Managing Director  

                                                                                                                            DIN: 00239665 
Date: 13th August 2025     
Place: Ahmedabad 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
ANNEXURE-C 

FORM NO. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
 
To, 
The Members, 
Yash Chemex Limited 
(CIN: L74110GJ2006PLC048385) 
411, Sigma Icon-1, 132ft Ring Road,  
Satellite, Ahmedabad-380015. 
 
I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by Yash Chemex Limited (CIN: L74110GJ2006PLC048385) 
(hereinafter called “the Company”) for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025. Secretarial Audit 
was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 
 

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the Company, to the extent the information provided by the Company, its 
officers, agents and authorised representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations 
and clarifications given to us and the representations made by the Management, I hereby report that in 
my opinion, the Company has during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 
2025, generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has 
proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to 
the reporting made hereinafter. 
 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed, and other records made 
available to us and maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025, according 
to the provisions of: 
 

I. The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), as amended from time to time (the Act) and the rules made there 
under; 

 
a) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under; 
b) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Byelaws framed thereunder; 
c) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings; 

d) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of         
      India Act, 1992 (SEBI Act):  

 
e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; 
f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 
g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
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Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period) 
h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 

Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period) 
i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 

Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period); 
j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with clients; 
k) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 (Not 

applicable to the Company during the audit period); 
l) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not 

applicable to the Company during the audit period) 
 

II. I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses and regulations of the following: 
 

a) Secretarial Standards applicable clauses with respect to the meeting of the Board of Directors 
(SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India 
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 w.e.f. July 1, 2015 amended from time to time and; 

b) The Listing Agreement / The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation & Disclosure 
Requirement) Regulation, 2015 (“SEBI (LODR)”) and amendments made thereunder. 

 
I further report that the compliance of applicable general laws, labour laws and financial laws including 
direct & indirect tax laws and GST law by the company has not reviewed in this audit since the same has 
been subject to review by the statutory auditors and other designated professionals. 

From the verification of records and as per the information and explanation furnished to me, during the 
period under review, the Company has materially complied with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.  
  
I further report that: 
 
i. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with required no. of Executive Directors, 

Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of 
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the 
provisions of the Act. 

ii. Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agendas were sent in advance, 
a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items 
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting based on the representation made 
by the company and its officers. 

iii. All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings were carried out unanimously. As per 
records available in the said minutes there were no dissenting views expressed by any directors 
during the meetings. 

iv. Based on general review of compliance mechanisms established by the Company and on basis of 
management representations and compliances certificates issued by department heads, there are 
reasonable systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of 
the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines. 

v. As informed, the company has responded appropriately to notices received from various 
statutory/regulatory authorities including initiating actions for corrective measures, wherever found 
necessary. 

                                                                                                                                  
Date: 13th August 2025                          For Kunal Sharma & Associates 
Place: Ahmedabad                                                              Company Secretaries 

SD/- 
CS. Kunal Sharma 
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                                                                       Proprietor 
                                                            M. No: FCS 10329 
                                                                    CP No: 12987 

                                                                                                                              Firm Code No: I2014GJ1135000 
                             Peer Review No: 1933/2022 

                         UDIN: F010329G000997183 
 
This report is to be read with the letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure and forms an integral 
part of this report. 
 
ANNEXURE 
 
My Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, of even date is to be read along 
with this letter. 

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter: 

 
1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 
2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 

about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on a test 
basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and 
practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial records and Books of Accounts 
of the company. 

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, 
rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards 
and its proper and adequate presentation and submission in prescribed formats is the responsibility 
of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedure on a test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as compliance in totality nor the future viability 
of the Company nor the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 
affairs of the Company. 

 
Date: 13th August 2025                          For Kunal Sharma & Associates 
Place: Ahmedabad                                                              Company Secretaries 

SD/- 
CS. Kunal Sharma 

                                                                       Proprietor 
                                                            M. No: FCS 10329 
                                                                    CP No: 12987 

                                                                                                                              Firm Code No: I2014GJ1135000 
                             Peer Review No: 1933/2022 

                         UDIN: F010329G000997183 
                                                                                                                     
ANNEXURE - D 
 

STATEMENT OF PARTICULARS AS PER RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND 
REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 
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Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director/ Key 
Managerial Personnel 

and Designation 

Remuneration of Director / 
Key Managerial Personnel 
for the year ended March 

31, 2025 
(Rs. in lakhs) 

Ratio in the 
remuneration 

of each 
Director to the 

median 
remuneration 

of the 
e9mployees 

% increase in the 
remuneration in the 

year ended March 31, 
2025 

1. 
Mr. Pritesh Y. Shah, 
Managing Director NIL NA NA 

2. 
Mr. Dimple P. Shah, 
Whole time Director NIL NA NA 

3. 
Mr. Pritesh Y. Shah, 

CFO NIL NA NA 

4. 

Mrs. Riddhi D Shah, 
Company Secretary 

(Resigned w.e.f 
25.05.2024) 

NIL NA NA 

5. 

Ms. Pragati Jain 
Company Secretary 

(appointed w.e.f 
13.08.2024) 

NIL NA NA 

 
2. The Median Remuneration of the Employees of the Company during the year ended as on March 
31, 2025, is Rs. 3,30,000/- 
 

1. The Number of permanent Employees of the Company on the rolls of 
the Company as on 31st March, 2025 

5 

2. 

Average percentile increases already made in the salaries of Employees 
other than the Managerial Personnel in the last financial year and its 
Comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial 
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any 
exceptional circumstances for increase  in the managerial 
remuneration 

8-10% 

3. 
Affirmation that the Remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of 
the Company 

The remuneration paid 
to Key Managerial 

Personnel is as per the 
remuneration policy 

of the Company. 
 

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Yash Chemex Limited 

SD/- 
Pritesh Yashwantlal Shah 

                                                                                                                             Managing Director  
                                                                                                                            DIN: 00239665 

Date: 13th August 2025     
Place: Ahmedabad 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

 
In accordance with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“the Listing Regulations”), the Directors of Yash Chemex 
Limited (“the Company” / “YCL”) have pleasure in presenting the Company's Report on Corporate 
Governance for the Financial Year (F.Y.) ended March 31, 2025. 
 
1. Company’s Philosophy on Code of Corporate Governance: 

 
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) has introduced a Code of Corporate Governance for 
a Listed Company, which is implemented through the Listing Regulations. Corporate Governance is a set 
of systems and practices to ensure that the affairs of a Company are being managed in a manner which 
ensures accountability, transparency, and fairness in all its transactions in the widest sense and meet the 
aspirations and expectations of the Stakeholders’ and the society as a whole. Corporate Governance 
refers to the framework of rules and practices by which the Company ensures ethical and integral 
relation with all its Stakeholders. Corporate Governance necessitates professionals to raise their 
competency and capability levels and upgrade systems and processes to meet the expectations in 
managing the enterprise and its resources effectively with the highest standards of ethics. 
 
Effective Corporate Governance practices and strong foundation of Yash Chemex Limited have been 
YCL’s hallmark which has an established reputation of honesty, integrity and sound governance since 
inception. Your Company is committed to maintaining the highest standards of Corporate Governance in 
its conduct towards Shareholders, Employees, Regulators, Customers, Suppliers, Lenders and Other 
Stakeholders. The Company strongly believes that good Corporate Governance and fairness in actions, 
words and deeds will form the base of the Company’s Corporate Governance philosophy. 
 
At YCL, we believe that Corporate Governance is a pre-requisite for meeting the needs and aspirations of 
the Stakeholders’. Corporate Governance is journey which leads to corporate growth and long-term gain 
in shareholders’ value. Your Company is the compliance with the requirements of Corporate Governance 
stipulated under the Listing Regulations. 
 
2. Appropriate Governance Structure with Defined Roles and Responsibilities 

 
The Chairman takes a lead role in managing the Board and facilitating effective communication among 
Directors. The Chairman actively works with the Human Resources, Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee to plan the Board and Committees’ composition, induction of directors to the Board, plan for 
Director’s succession and provide constructive feedback and advice on performance evaluation to 
directors. The Company Secretary assists the Chairperson in management of Board’s administrative 
activities such as meetings, schedules, agendas, communications and documentations. 
 
The Chairperson is responsible for fostering and promoting the integrity of the Board while nurturing a 
culture where the Board works harmoniously for the long-term benefit of the Company and all its 
stakeholders. The Chairperson guides the Board for effective governance in the company. 
  
3. Audits and Internal Checks and Balances 

 
M/s S. L. Patel & Co., Chartered Accountants are the Statutory Auditor of the Company. Statutory Auditors 
and the Group Internal Audit perform independent reviews of the ongoing effectiveness of Yash Chemex 
Limited which integrates the various components of the systems of internal control. 
 
4. Board of Directors 
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A. Board Structure: 

 
The Company has an active, well experienced and a well-informed Board with an optimum mix of 
Executive and Independent Directors, which is headed by Mrs. Dimple P. Shah, Chairperson. The 
Company has the right blend of Directors on the Board who possess the requisite qualifications, 
competence, expertise and practical knowledge in General Management, Finance, Human Resources, 
Compliances, Legal, Research and other allied activities connected to the area of operation of the 
Company which enables the Board to function smoothly. 

 
The Board provides and evaluates the Company’s strategic decisions, management policies and their 
effectiveness, which shapes the Corporate Governance practices of the Company and ensures that 
Shareholders’ long-term interests are served. Mr. Pritesh Y. Shah, Managing Director, is assisted by Senior 
Managerial Personnel in overseeing the functional matters of the Company. 

 
The Board of Directors of your Company comprises 5 (Five) Directors as on March 31, 2025. The 
composition of the Board of Directors is summarized below: - 
 

Category 

No. of Directors 
on Board as on 
March 31, 2025 

No. of Directors as on 
the date of this 

Report 

Chairperson and Executive, Non-Independent 
Director (Women Director) (Executive Director) 1 1 

Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer 
(Executive Director) 

1 1 

Executive, Non-Independent Director (Women 
Director) 1 1 

Non-Executive, Independent Director 2 2 

Non-Executive, Independent Directors 
(Women Directors) 

1 1 

Total 5 5 

 
B. Board Training and Induction: 

 
At the time of appointing a director, a formal Letter of Appointment is given to him / her, which inter alia 
explains the role, function, duties and responsibilities of a Director of the Company. The Director is also 
explained in detail the compliances required from him / her under the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Listing Regulations and other relevant Regulations and his / her affirmation is taken with respect to the 
same. 

 
C. Familiarization Programmes for Independent Directors: 
 
The Directors are provided with the requisite documents and reports to enable them to familiarize with 
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the Company’s performance and practices. Periodic presentations are made at the Meetings of the Board 
and Committees thereof, on the business and performance of the Company. 
 
Quarterly updates on relevant statutory changes covering important applicable laws are discussed at the 
Meetings of the Board. 
 
The details of familiarization program for Independent Directors have been disclosed on the Company’s 
website at the www.yashchemex.com 
 
D. Board Procedure and Meetings: 

 
The Board, inter alia, focuses on Strategic Planning, Risk Management, Compliance, Corporate 
Governance to maintain high standards of ethical conduct and integrity and succession planning for the 
Directors. 

 
The Board of Directors meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on business strategies/ polices 
and reviews the financial and operational performance of the Company and its Subsidiary. 

 
The Agenda for the Meetings of the Board and its Committees are circulated in advance as per the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder and Secretarial Standard – 1 
(SS-1) on “Board Meetings” issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) to the Directors 
to ensure that sufficient time is provided to Directors to prepare for the Meetings. The Board meets at 
least once in a quarter to, inter alia, review, approve and take note of quarterly Standalone and 
Consolidated Financial Results of the Company, various Compliance Report(s) under the applicable laws, 
major legal issues, regulatory developments, Minutes of the Meeting(s) of the Board and its Committees 
and those of its Subsidiary Companies, significant transactions entered into with Related Parties and note 
compliances with other law(s) as applicable to the Company and the Listing Regulations. 

 
The Board has unrestricted access to all the Company-related information which includes information 
mentioned under Regulation 17 read with Schedule II(A) of the Listing Regulations. 

 
In the path of digitization and with a view to ensure its commitment to “Go-Green” Initiative of the 
Government and the Yash Chemex Limited, respectively, the Company has started circulating to its 
Directors, Agenda, Notices and other relevant notes & documents for the Board/Committee Meetings 
through an electronic platform thereby ensuring high standards of security and confidentiality of Board 
Meeting related documents. 

 
The Company adheres to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules framed 
thereunder, Secretarial Standards and Listing Regulations with respect to convening and holding the 
Meetings of the Board of Directors and its Committees. 

 
The Company Secretary attends all the Meetings of the Board and its Committees and is, inter alia, 
responsible for recording the Minutes of such Meetings. The draft Minutes of the Meetings of the Board 
and its Committees are sent to the Members for their comments in accordance with the Secretarial 
Standards and then, the Minutes are entered in the Minutes Book within 30 (thirty) days of the conclusion 
of the Meetings, subsequent to incorporation of the comments, if any, received from the Directors. 

 
The Meetings of the Board of Directors and its Committees are generally held at the Registered Office of 
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the Company at 411, Sigma Icon-1, 132ft Ring Road, Opp. Medilink Hospital, Satellite, Ahmedabad -
380015. 

 
During the Financial Year (F.Y.) 2024-25, 6 (Six) Board Meetings were held on  22.05.2024, 13.08.2024, 
03.09.2024, 14.11.2024, 13.02.2025, and 27.03.2025 and the maximum interval between any 2 (two) 
consecutive Board Meetings was well within the maximum allowed gap of 120 (One Hundred and 
Twenty) days. The necessary quorum was present for all the Meetings. 

 
The details of composition of the Board, Directors’ attendance at the Board Meetings and at the last Annual 
General Meeting (“AGM”), are given hereunder: -
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Sr. 
 No. 

Name of 
the 

Directo
r 

Categor
y of 

Directo
r 

Inter-se 
Relatio
nship 

amongs
t 

Directo
rs 

Appoi
ntmen

t/ 
Cessat

ion 
during 

the 
Financ

ial 
Year 

2024-
25 

No. of 
Board 

Meeting
s 

attende
d 

during 
the 

Financi
al Year 
2024-

25 

Wheth
er 

attend
ed last 
AGM 
held 
on 

Septe
mber 

30, 
2024 

(Prese
nt / 

Absen
t) 

Direct
orship
s held 

in 
other 
public 
Compa

nies 
incorp
orated 

in 
India 
as on 

March 
31, 

2025 

Number of 
Chairmanship/ 
Membership in 

Board Committees 
in other companies 

as on March 31, 
2025 

Chairma
nship 

(excludin
g 

Members
hip of 

Committ
ees) 

Membe
rship 

1. 

Mr. 
Pritesh Y. 

Shah 
(DIN:002
39665) 

Promote
r and 

Executiv
e 

Son of 
Mr. 

Yashwan
tlal 

C. Shah 
Husband 

of Mrs. 
Dimple 
P. Shah 

N/A 6/6 Yes 1 1 1 

2. 

Mrs. 
Dimple 
P. Shah 

(DIN:069
14755) 

Promote
r and 

Executiv
e 

1. Wife of 
Mr. 

Pritesh 
Y. Shah 

2.Daught
er in law 

of Mr. 
Yashwan

tlal 
C. Shah 

N/A 6/6 Yes 1 Nil Nil 

3. 

Mr. Jinal 
D. Shah 

(DIN:074
67703) 

Non- 
Executiv

e, 
Indepen

dent 

- N/A 6/6 Yes Nil Nil Nil 

4. 

Ms. 
Angee R. 

Shah 
(DIN:074
86980) 

Non- 
Executiv

e, 
Indepen

dent 

- N/A 6/6 Yes 1 Nil 3 



 

 19th Annual Report 2024-25                                                                                                       Yash Chemex Limited      19th Annual Report 2024-25                                                                                                             Yash Chemex Limited     19th AnYash Chemex Limited 

5. 

Mr. 
Rushabh 

A. 
Shah 

(DIN:090
12222) 

Non- 
Executiv

e, 
Indepen

dent 

- N/A 6/6 Yes 3 2 5 
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Details of Directorship of Directors in other Listed Entities and the category of their Directorship 
as on March 31, 2025: 

 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director 
Name of Listed Entity where 

Directorship is held 
Category of Directorship 

1. Mr. Pritesh Y. Shah Yasons Chemex Care Limited Managing Director 

2. Mrs. Dimple P. Shah Yasons Chemex Care Limited Whole-Time director 

3. Mr. Rushabh A. Shah 

Hindprakash Industries Limited 
Vivanta Industries Limited 
Stitched Textiles Limited 

Yasons Chemex Care Limited 

Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

4. Ms. Angee R. Shah Yasons Chemex Care Limited 
Non-Executive Independent 

Director 

5. Mr. Jinal D. Shah - - 

 
Note: 
 
1. None of the Directors of the Company as mentioned above is: 

 
a. A Director in more than 10 (ten) Public Limited Companies - As per Section 165 of the Companies Act, 

2013; 
b. A Director in more than 8 (eight) Listed Companies- As per Regulation 17(A) of the Listing Regulations 
c. An Independent Director in more than 7 (seven) Listed Companies or 3 (three) Listed Companies (in case 

he / she serves as a Whole Time Director in any listed Company - As per Regulation 17 of the Listing 
Regulations. 

d. A Member of more than 10 (ten) Committees and Chairman of more than 5 (five) Committees across all 
the Indian Public Limited Companies in which he / she is a Director - As per Regulation 26 of the Listing 
Regulations.  

e. Number of Equity Shares held by the Directors of the Company and the Dividend paid to them during the 
Financial Year 2024-25:- 
                            

Sr. 
No

. 
Name of Director 

Shares held as on 
March 31, 2025 

Dividend paid during the 
Financial Year 2024-25 (in 

Rs.) 

1. Mr. Pritesh Y. Shah 25,52,720 Nil 

2. Mrs. Dimple P. Shah 11,24,229 Nil 

3. Mr. Jinal D. Shah NIL Nil 

4. Ms. Angee R. Shah NIL Nil 

5. Mr. Rushabh A. Shah NIL Nil 
 

f. Directors seeking Appointment / Re-appointment: Mr. Pritesh Y. Shah, Managing Director and CFO of 
the Company is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing 19th (Nineteenth) AGM of your Company and 
being eligible, have offered himself for re- appointment. 

 
3. Committees of the Board of Directors– Composition and Terms of Reference: 
a. Composition of the Committees: 
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The composition of various Committees constituted by the Board of Directors during the Financial 
Year 2024-25 is summarized below: - 

 

Name of the  
Director 

Independent 
/ Non- Independent 

Position in the Committee (whether 
Chairman/Member) 

Audit Committee 
Nomination & 
Remuneration 

Committee 

Stakeholders’ 
Relationship 
Committee 

Mr. Jinal D. Shah  Independent Director Chairperson Chairperson Chairperson 

Ms. Angee R. Shah Independent Director Member Member Member 

Mr.  Rushabh A. 
Shah 

Independent 
Director 

Member Member Member 

Mr. Pritesh Y. Shah 
Non- Independent 

Director 
Member N/A N/A 

 
Attendance details of Committee Meetings of Board of Directors during the Financial Year 2024-25 is 
summarized below: 

 

Name of the 
 Committee 

Audit Committee 
Nomination & 
Remuneration 

Committee 

Stakeholders’ 
Relationship Committee 

Number of Meetings 
held 

6 3 4 

Attendance of Directors 

Mr. Jinal D. Shah  6/6 4/4 4/4 

Ms. Angee R. Shah 6/6 4/4 4/4 

Mr.  Rushabh A. 
Shah 

6/6 4/4 4/4 

Mr. Pritesh Y. Shah 6/6 NA NA 
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DATE OF COMMITTEE 
 MEETING 

JINAL SHAH ANGEE SHAH 
PRITESH 
Y. SHAH 

RUSHABH A 
SHAH 

AUDIT COMMITTEE  

22/05/2024 YES YES YES YES 

13/08/2024 YES YES YES YES 

03/09/2024 YES YES YES YES 

14/11/2024 YES YES YES YES 

13/02/2025 YES YES YES YES 

27/03/2025 YES YES YES YES 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

22/05/2024 YES YES N/A YES 

13/08/2024 YES YES N/A YES 

14/11/2024 YES YES N/A YES 

27/03/2025 YES YES N/A YES 

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

22/05/2024 YES YES N/A YES 

13/08/2024 YES YES N/A YES 

14/11/2024 YES YES N/A YES 

13/02/2025 YES YES N/A YES 

 
Note: 
 
N.A. indicates not a Member of the Committee. 

 
b. Skills Matrix for the Board of Directors: 

 
At YCL, we recognize the importance of having a Board comprising of Directors who have a range of 
experiences, capabilities and diverse point of view which helps in creating an effective and well-
rounded Board. 

 
The list of Core skills/expertise/capabilities for the Board Members outlined by the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors and approved by the Board are as under: 

 
• Strategy & Business- Is or has been the Director or held any other leadership position in an 
organization leading to significant experience in strategy or business management; Brings ability to 
identify and assess strategic opportunities and threats in the context of the business. 

 
• Industry Expertise- Has expertise with respect to the sector in which the organization operates 
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in; Has an understanding of the ‘big picture’ in the given industry and recognizes the development of 
industry segments, trends, emerging issues and opportunities. 

 
• Market Expertise- Has expertise with respect to the geography in which the organization operates 
in; Understands the macro-economic environment, the nuisances of the business, consumers and trade 
in the geography, and has the knowledge of the regulations & legislations of the market/(s) the 
business operates in. 

 
• Technology Perspective– Has expertise with respect to business specific technologies such as in 
the field of R & D. Has experience and adds perspective on the future ready skills required by the 
organization such as E-Commerce, Digital, Sustainability, etc. 

 
• People & Talent Understanding- Has experience in Human Resource Management such that they 
bring in a considered approach to the effective management of people in an organization. 

 
Governance, Finance & Risk- Has an understanding of the law and application of Corporate 
Governance principles in a commercial enterprise of similar scale. Capability to provide inputs for 
Strategic Financial Planning, Assess Financial Statements and oversee budgets for the efficient use 
of resources. Ability to identify key risks for the business in a wide range of areas including legal and 
regulatory. 

 
• Diversity of Perspective- Provides a diversity of views to the Board that is valuable to manage our 
Customer, Consumer, Employee, Key Stakeholder or Shareholders 

 
c. Composition and Terms of Reference of the Committees: 

 
i. Audit Committee: 

 
In terms of Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations and Section 177 of the Act, the Audit Committee of 
the Board of Directors, as on March 31, 2025, comprised of the following 4 (Four) Directors as 
Members: 

 
Sr.  
No. 

Name of Director(s) Nature of Membership & Designation 

1. Mr. Jinal D. Shah Chairman (Independent Director) 

2. Ms. Angee R.Shah Member (Independent Director) 

3. Mr. Rushabh A. Shah Member (Independent Director) 

4. Mr. Pritesh Y. Shah Member (Executive, Non-Independent Director) 

 
All the Members of the Audit Committee are financially literate and possess sound knowledge of 
Financial Management, Accounting Practices and Internal Controls. 

 
Ms. Riddhi D. Shah, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer, was the Secretary to the Audit 
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Committee. (Up to 25th May 2024) and Ms. Pragati Jain is the Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
w.e.f 13th August 2024. 

 
The terms of reference of Audit Committee include the matters specified in Section 177 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 as well as the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time, are as follows: 
1. Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial 

information to ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible; 
2. Recommendation of the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of Statutory 

Auditors and Secretarial Auditors, of the Company. 

3. Reviewing, with the Management, the quarterly Financial Statements before submission to the 
Board for approval. 

4. Reviewing, with the Management, the statement of uses/ application of funds raised through an 
issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for the 
purposes other than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/ notice and the report 
submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights 
issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter; 

5. Reviewing and monitoring the Auditor’s independence and performance and effectiveness of audit 
process. 

6. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions with Related Parties of the Company. 

7. Scrutiny of Inter-Corporate Loans and Investments. 

8. Considering valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary. 

9. Evaluation of Internal Financial Controls and Risk Management Systems. 

10. Reviewing, with the Management, performance of Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors and 
Secretarial Auditors. 

11.  Reviewing with the Management adequacy of the Internal Control Systems. 

12. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any including the structure of internal audit 
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure 
coverage and frequency of internal audit. 

13. Discussion with Internal Auditors of any significant findings and follow up thereon. 

14.  Formulating the scope, functioning, periodicity of and methodology for conducting the internal 
audit. 

15. Reviewing show cause, demand, prosecution notices and penalty notices, which are materially 
important. 

16. Reviewing any material default in financial obligations to and by the Company, or substantial non-
payment for goods sold by the Company. 

17. Reviewing any issue, which involves possible public, or product liability claims of substantial 
nature, including any judgement or order which, may have passed strictures on the conduct of the 
Company or taken an adverse view regarding another enterprise that may have negative 
implications on the Company. 

18. Details of any Joint Venture or collaboration agreement. 

19. Sale of investments, subsidiaries, assets which are material in nature and not in normal course of 
business. 

20. Quarterly details of foreign exchange exposures and the steps taken by Management to limit the 
risks of adverse exchange rate movement if material. 
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21. Reviewing the utilization of loans and / or advances from / investment by the holding Company in 
the subsidiary exceeding Rs. 100 Crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower 
including existing loans / advances / investments. 

22. Investigation into any above matter or referred to it by the Board of Directors and for this purpose, 
it to have full access to information contained in the records of the Company and external 
professional advice, if necessary. 

23. Carrying out any other function as mandated by the Board from time to time and / or enforced by 
any statutory notification, amendment or modifications as may be applicable. 

24. Further, the Quorum for a Meeting of the Audit Committee shall either be 2 (two) Members or 1/3rd 
(One Third) of the total strength Of the Committee, whichever is greater, with at least 2 (two) 
Independent Directors in attendance and the Audit Committee shall meet at least 4 (Four) times in 
a year and not more than 120 (One Hundred and Twenty) days shall elapse between two Meetings. 

 
The Members of the Committee met 6 times during the year. i.e. 22.05.2024, 13.08.2024, 03.09.2024, 
14.11.2024, 13.02.2025 and 27.03.2025. 
 
The necessary quorum was present for all the Meetings of the Audit Committee of the Board of 
Directors. 

 
ii. Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 

 
a. Composition: 

 
In terms of Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations and Section 178 of the Act, the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, as on March 31, 2025, comprised of the following 3 (Three) Directors as 
Members: 

 

Sr. No. Name of Director(s) 
Nature of Membership & 

Designation 
1. Mr. Jinal D. Shah Chairman (Independent Director) 

2. Ms. Angee R. Shah Member (Non -Executive, Independent Director) 

3. Mr. Rushabh A. Shah Member (Non -Executive, Independent Director) 
 
Ms. Riddhi D. Shah, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer, was the Secretary to the Audit 
Committee. (Up to 25th May 2024) and Ms. Pragati Jain is the Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
w.e.f 13th August 2024. 

 
b. Terms of Reference: 

 
The terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee have been re-stated as per the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
(Amendment) Regulations, 2018. 

 
The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as follows: - 
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a. To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a 
director and recommend to the Board of Directors a policy relating to the appointment and 
remuneration in whatever form payable to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other 
Senior Management employees. 

b. To formulate criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the Board of 
Directors in accordance with the Nomination and Remuneration Policy. 

c. To devise a policy on diversity of Board of Directors. 

d. To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior 
management in accordance with the criteria laid down and to recommend to the Board their 
appointment and or removal. 

e. To consider extension or continuation of the term of appointment of the Independent Directors on 
the basis of the report of performance evaluation of Independent Directors; 

f. To specify the manner for effective evaluation of performance of Board, its Committees and 
Individual Directors to be carried out either by the Board, by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee or by an independent external agency and review its implementation and compliance. 

g. To recommend to the Board of Directors, qualifications, appointment, remuneration (in whatever 
form) and removal of directors, key managerial personnel and persons in senior management 
positions in accordance with the Nomination and Remuneration Policy; 

h. To make necessary recommendation(s) to the Board of Directors for amendment/revision of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company from time to time, as it may deem fit. 

i. To carry out any other function as mandated by the Board from time to time and / or enforced by 
any statutory notification, amendment or modifications as may be applicable. 

 
The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall be as mentioned herein below 
or as may be prescribed by the Companies Act and the Listing Regulations. The Chairman of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall be an Independent Director and shall be present at 
Annual General Meeting. 

 
The Quorum for the Meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall either be 2 (two) 
Members or 1/3rd (one third) of the total strength of the Committee, whichever is higher (including at 
least one Independent Director in attendance) and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall 
meet at least once in a year. 

 
During the Financial Year (F.Y.) 2024-25, there were 4 (Four) Meetings of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors were (i.e. on 22.05.2024, 13.08.2024, 14.11.2024 
and 27.03.2025). The necessary Quorum was present for all the Meetings of the Nomination and 
Remuneration of the Board of Directors held during the Financial Year 2024-25. 

 
c. Performance Evaluation Criteria for Independent Directors: 

 
Performance evaluation of Directors is carried out through a structured questionnaire which was 
prepared after taking into consideration various aspects of the Board’s functioning, composition of the 
Board and its Committees, culture, execution and performance of specific duties, obligations and 
governance. 

 
The evaluation of Independent Directors shall be done by the entire Board of Directors which shall 
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include – 
 
a. Performance of the Directors; and 
b. Fulfilment of the independence criteria as specified in this Terms of Reference and their 
Independence from the management: 

 
Provided that in the above evaluation, the Directors who are subject to evaluation shall not 
participate. 
 
In particular, an Independent Director shall be a person who shall: 

 
I. Uphold ethical standards of integrity and probity. 
II. Act objectively and constructively while exercising his duties. 

III. Exercise his responsibilities in a bona fide manner in the interest of the Company. 
IV. Devote sufficient time and attention to his professional obligations for informed and balanced 

decision making. 
V. Not allow any extraneous considerations that will vitiate his exercise of objective independent 

judgment in the paramount interest of the company as a whole, while concurring in or dissenting 
from the collective judgment of the Board of Directors in its decision making. 

VI. Not abuse his position to the detriment of the Company or its Shareholders or for the purpose of 
gaining direct or indirect personal advantage or advantage for any associated person. 

VII. Refrain from any action that would lead to loss of his independence. 
VIII. Where circumstances arise which make an Independent Director lose his independence, the 

Independent Director must immediately inform the Board accordingly. 
IX. Assist the Company in implementing the best Corporate Governance practices. 

 
d. Remuneration to Directors: 

 
• Directors with Material Significant Related Party Transactions, pecuniary or business 

relationship with the Company: 

 
Except drawing remuneration by Managing Director, receipt of Sitting Fees by other Directors for 
attending the Board / Committee Meetings, none of the Directors have any other Material Significant 
Related Party Transactions, pecuniary or business relationship with the Company. Attention of the 
Shareholders is drawn to the disclosures of transactions with related parties set out in Note No. 46 to 
the Standalone Financial Statements forming part of this Annual Report 2024-25. 

 
• Remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors: 
 
1. Remuneration / Commission: 
 
The remuneration / commission shall be in accordance with the statutory provisions of the Act and the 
Rules made thereunder for the time being in force. 
 
2. Sitting Fees: 
 
The Non- Executive / Independent Director receive remuneration by way of fees for attending 
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meetings of the Board or Committee thereof. Provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed 
the maximum amount as provided in the Act, per meeting of the Board or Committee or such amount 
as may be prescribed by the applicable law from time to time. 

 
3. Limit of Remuneration / Commission: 

 
Remuneration/ Commission may be paid within the monetary limit approved by Shareholders, subject 
to the limit not exceeding 1% of the Net Profits of the Company computed as per the applicable 
provisions of the Act. 

 
4. Stock Options: 

 
An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option of the Company. 

 
The details of Sitting Fees & Commission paid to Non-Executive Directors during the Financial Year 
2024-25 are as follows: - 

 
Sr. 

No
. 

Name of Non-executive 
Director 

Sitting Fees (in Rs.) 
Total (in 

Rs.) For Board 
Meetings 

For Committee 
Meeting 

1. Mr. Jinal D. Shah 5000 5000 30,000 

2. Ms. Angee R. Shah 5000 5000 5000 

3. Mr. Rushabh A. Shah 5000 5000 30,000 

  
• Remuneration of the Executive Director: 

 
Attention of the Shareholders is drawn to the disclosures of remuneration mentioned in the Notice 
of Meeting and Explanatory Statements thereto forming part of this Annual Report 2024-25. 

 
• Policy for Selection and Appointment of Directors and their Remuneration: 

 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has adopted a Policy which, inter alia, deals with the 
manner of selection /appointment of Directors on the Board of Directors, including Managing Director 
and Whole Time Director, if any, and their remuneration. 

 
The Nomination & Remuneration Committee evaluates the candidature of prospective in line with the 
Nomination and Remuneration Policy and the skill sets stated above and makes suitable 
recommendation to the Board for final approval. 

 
The Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company has been uploaded and can be accessed on 
the Company’s website at www.yashchemex.com.  
 

iii. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee: 
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In terms of Regulation 20 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Section 178 of the Act, the Stakeholders’ 
Relationship Committee, as on March 31, 2025, comprised of the following 3 (Three) Directors as 
Members: 

 

Sr. No. Name of Director(s) 
Nature of Membership & 

Designation 

1. Mr. Jinal D. Shah Chairman (Independent Director) 

2. Ms. Angee R. Shah Member (Non -Executive, Independent Director) 

3. Mr. Rushabh A. Shah Member (Non -Executive, Independent Director) 
 
The terms of reference of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of the Board of Directors to include 
the amendments of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018. 
 
The functioning and the terms of reference of the Committee are as prescribed and in due compliance 
with Regulation 20 read with Part D of Schedule II to the Listing Regulations and Section 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

 
The terms of reference of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee are as follows: - 

 
a. To oversee and review all matters connected with transfer of Company’s securities. 
b. To approve issue of duplicate of shares / debentures certificates. 
c. To oversee the performance of the Company’s Share Transfer Agent. 
d. To resolve the grievances of the Security Holders of the Company including complaints related 

to transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared 
dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc. 

e. To investigate into complaints relating to allotment of shares, approval of transfers or 
transmission of shares, debentures, or any other securities. 

f. To review the measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by Shareholders. 
g. To review adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various 

services being rendered by the Share Transfer Agent and recommend methods to upgrade the 
service standards adopted by the Company. 

h. To review various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of 
unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual 
reports/statutory notices by the security holders of the Company. 

i. To investigate into complaints relating to allotment on Shares, approval of Transfer or 
Transmission of Shares, Debentures, or any other securities. 

j. To specifically look into various aspects of Shareholders, Debenture Holders and other Security 
Holders. 

k. To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and / or enforced 
by any statutory notification, amendment or modifications as may be applicable.” 

 
The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee shall comprise of at least 3 (three) Directors, at least one 
being Independent Director or the composition shall be as may be prescribed by the Companies Act and 
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the SEBI Listing Regulations. The Chairman of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee shall be an 
Independent Director and shall be present at every Annual General Meeting of the Company. 

 
The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee shall meet at least once in a year. 
 
During the Financial Year (F.Y.) 2024-25, there were 4 (Four) Meetings of the Stakeholders’ 
Relationship Committee of the Board of Directors were held i.e. on 22.05.2024, 14.11.2024, 13.08.2024 
and 13.02.2025. The necessary Quorum was present for all the Meetings of the Nomination and 
Remuneration of the Board of Directors held during the Financial Year 2024-25. 
 
Name and Designation of Compliance Officer: 

 
Ms. Riddhi D. Shah, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer, was the Secretary to the Audit 
Committee. (Up to 25th May 2024) and Ms. Pragati Jain is the Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
w.e.f 13th August 2024. 
 
Details of Investor Complaints received during the Financial Year 2024-25, are as follows: 

 
Complaints outstanding as on April 1, 2024 Nil 

Complaints received during the year ended March 31, 2025 1 

Complaints resolved during the year ended March 31, 2025 1 

Complaints outstanding as on March 31, 2025 Nil 

 
i. Meeting of Independent Directors: 

 
Pursuant to Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 & Regulation 17 of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, one-half of the 
composition of the Board of Directors consists of Independent Directors. 

 
During the year under review, the Independent Directors met on 13.02.2025, inter alia, to discuss:  

 
a. Evaluation of performance of Non - Independent Directors and the Board of Directors as a whole. 
b. Evaluation of the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of 

the Executive and Non - Executive Directors. 
c. Evaluation of the quality, content, and timeliness of flow of information between the 

Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform 
its duties. 

 
The Independent Directors have submitted declarations that they meet the criteria of Independence 
laid down under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations and are Independent from the 
Management. The Company has also issued formal appointment letters to all the Independent Directors 
in the manner provided under the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules made thereunder. 

 
1. General Body Meetings: 

 
i. Details of last three Annual General Meetings: 
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The date, time, and venue of Annual General Meetings (AGMs) held during the preceding 3 (three) 
Financial Years are as follows: 

 
AGM for the Financial 

Year 
Date Time Venue 

2021-22 (16th AGM) 
September 26, 

2022 
02.30 p.m. 

411, Sigma Icon-1, 
132ft Ring Road, Opp. 

Medilink Hospital, 
Satellite, Ahmedabad- 

380015 

2022-23 (17th AGM) 
September 26, 

2023 
02.30 p.m. 

411, Sigma Icon-1, 
132ft Ring Road, Opp. 

Medilink Hospital, 
Satellite, Ahmedabad- 

380015 

2023-24 (18th AGM) 
September 30, 

2024 
04.30 p.m. 

411, Sigma Icon-1, 
132ft Ring Road, Opp. 

Medilink Hospital, 
Satellite, Ahmedabad- 

380015 
 
ii. Details of Special Resolutions passed during the previous three Financial Years (i.e., 2021-

22, 2022-23 and 2023-24): 

 
a. Special Resolutions passed in Annual General Meetings (AGMs): 

 
Date of AGM Details of Special Resolution passed 

September 26, 
2022 

-To make loans or investments and to give guarantees or to provide 
security in connection with a loan made under Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
-- Approval of loans, investments, guarantee or security under Section 
185 of Companies Act, 2013. 
- To authorise the Board of Directors to borrow money over and above 
the paid-up capital, free reserves, and securities premium of the 
Company. 

- To authorise the Board of Directors to sell, lease or otherwise dispose of, 
to mortgage/create charges on the properties of the Company. 

September 26, 
2023 

1. To Approve loans, investments, guarantees or security under Section 
185 of Companies Act, 2013. 
2. To make loans or investments and to give guarantees or to provide 
security in connection with a loan made under Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
3. To Consider and Approve the Related Party Transaction with Yash 
Chem. 
4. To Consider and Approve the Related Party Transaction with Yash 
Corporation. 
- 5. To Consider and Approve the Related Party Transaction with Rishit 
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Polysurf LLP. 

September 30, 
2024 

NIL 

 
b. Special Resolutions passed at the Extra-ordinary General Meetings (EGMs): NIL 
 
c. Special Resolutions passed by Postal Ballot: 

 
During the Financial Year (F.Y) 2024-25, pursuant to the provisions of Section 110 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules 2014, there was not any 
Special Resolutions passed by Shareholders through Postal Ballot. 

 
1.  Means of Communication: 

 
All vital information relating to the Company and its performance, including Quarterly and Annual 
Financial Results, disclosures of material events are posted on the website of the Company, viz., 
www.yashchemex.com. The Quarterly Financial Results of the Company’s performance are published 
in leading English newspapers ‘Business Standard’ and ‘Jay Hind’ Gujarati Newspaper. The Financial 
Results of the Company are also available on the websites of BSE Limited viz., www.bseindia.com. 
 
The Company files electronically the Quarterly and Annual Financial Results, Corporate Governance 
Report, Shareholding Pattern, etc. Through BSE Listing Centre. 
 
1. Disclosures: 

 
I. Material Significant Related Party Transactions: 
 
All transactions entered with Related Parties as defined under the Act and the Listing Regulations 
during the Financial Year (F.Y.) 2024-25 were in the ordinary course of business and within the limits 
as approved by the Shareholders. There were no material significant transactions with Related 
Parties during the Financial Year 2024- 25 which were in conflict with the interest of the Company. 
 
In preparation of the Financial Statements for the Financial Year (F.Y.) 2024-25, your Company has 
adopted accounting policies which are in line with the Indian Accounting Standards notified under 
Section 133 of the Act, read together with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. 
The significant accounting policies, which are consistently applied, have been set out in the Notes to 
the Accounts. Suitable disclosure as required by the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS 24) has 
been made in the Notes to the Financial Statements. Attention of the Shareholders is drawn to the 
disclosure of transactions with Related Parties as set out for the Financial Year (F.Y.) 2024-25 in Note 
No. 46 of the Standalone Financial Statement, forming a part of the Annual Report. None of the 
transactions with any of the Related Parties conflicted with the Company’s interest. 

 
The Policy on Related Party Transactions is available on the website of the Company at the weblink 
viz., www.yashchemex.com. 

 
There were no materially significant Related Party Transactions that may have potential conflict with 
the interests of the Company at large. 
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Except for drawing remuneration by the Managing Director and payment of sitting fees to Non-
Executive Directors, none of the Directors have any other material significant Related Party 
Transactions, pecuniary or business relationship with the Company. 

 
II. Policy on Material Subsidiaries: 
 
Yasons Chemex Care Limited, is a Material Subsidiary of your Company whose turnover or net worth 
(i.e., Paid-up capital and free reserves) exceeds 20% (twenty per cent) of the consolidated turnover or 
net worth respectively of the Company and its subsidiary in the immediately preceding accounting 
year. The Audited Annual Financial Statements of Subsidiary Company is tabled at the Meeting of the 
Board of Directors of the Company. Copies of the Minutes of the Board Meetings of Subsidiary 
Companies are circulated at the subsequent Board Meetings. Your Company has formulated a Policy 
for determining the Material Subsidiaries as defined in Regulation 16 of the Listing Regulations. The 
Audit Committee reviews the Financial Statements including major investments made in Material 
Unlisted subsidiary of the Company. 
 
The Management of the unlisted subsidiary periodically brings to the notice of the Board of Directors 
of your Company, a statement of all significant transactions and arrangements entered by the 
unlisted subsidiary. 
 
This Policy on Material Subsidiaries is available on the website of the Company at the weblink viz., 
www.yashchemex.com 

 
III. Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower Policy: 
 
Your Company promotes ethical behaviour in all its business activities and has put in place a 
mechanism of reporting illegal, unethical behaviour and actual or suspected fraud or violations of 
Company’s Code of Conduct. The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy wherein the employees are 
free to report violations of laws, rules, regulations, or unethical conduct to the Whistle Blowing 
Officer of the Company. No personnel /employee of the Company has been denied access to the 
Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company. The confidentiality of the reported violations, if 
any, is maintained and the employees reporting violations are not subjected to any discriminatory 
practice. 
 
Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy is posted on the website of your Company, viz., 
www.yashchemex.com. 

 
IV.  Details of Compliance with Mandatory Requirements and Adoption of Non- Mandatory 
Requirements: 
 
The Company complies with all the mandatory requirements of Company law, Securities law & other 
applicable laws and has also adopted some of the non-mandatory requirements and has complied 
with the following non - mandatory requirements: - 
 
1.  Separate Positions of Chairman and Managing Director: 
 
The Company has separate positions for Chairman and Managing Director. Mr. Pritesh Yashwantlal 
Shah is the Managing director of the company and Mrs. Dimple Pritesh Shah (Executive / Non-
Independent) is Appointed as Chairperson of the Company. 

 
V. Policy for Prevention of Sexual Harassment at the Workplace: 
 
Your Company is committed to creating and maintaining an atmosphere in which employees can 
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work together, without fear of sexual harassment, exploitation or intimidation. Every employee is 
made aware that the Company is strongly opposed to sexual harassment and that such behaviour is 
prohibited. Your Company has formed an Internal Complaints Committee pursuant to the provisions 
of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 
(“the said Act”). While the said Act is applicable only to the women employees, your Company’s policy 
covers all the employees. 
 
The details of complaints received during the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025 are as follows: 
 

a. Number of complaints filed during the Financial Year –1 
b. Number of complaints pending as on end of the Financial Year- Nil 

 
VI. Details of Non-compliance on matters related to Capital Markets: 
 
There has not been any non-compliance by the Company and no penalties or strictures were imposed 
on your Company by any of the Stock Exchange(s) or the Securities and Exchange Board of India or 
any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last 3 (three) Financial 
Year. 

 
VII. Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified 
institutions placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A): 
 
During the Financial Year (F.Y.) 2024-25, the Company has not raised funds through any kind of issue 
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.). 
 

VIII. Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions 
placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A): 
 
During the Financial Year (F.Y.) 2024-25, the Company has not raised funds through any kind of issue 
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.). 
 
IX. Certificate from a Company Secretary in Practice that none of the Directors on the Board of 
the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 
directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India / Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs or any such statutory authority: 

 
Certificate issued by Kunal Sharma & Associates, Company Secretaries, confirming that none of the 
Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 
continuing as directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India/Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority is annexed to this Corporate Governance Report 
 
X. Disclosure about instances where the Board had not accepted any recommendation of any 
Committee of the Board, which is mandatorily required, in the relevant Financial Year: 

 
During the Financial Year (F.Y.) 2024-25, there were no instances reported / recorded, where the 
Board of Directors of the Company did not accept recommendations of any of its committees. 

 
XI. Risk Management: 

 
Your Company continuously monitors business and operational risks. All key functions and divisions 
are independently responsible to monitor risks associated within their respective areas of operations. 
Your Company has formulated the said Risk Management Policy for identification of risks is also made 
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available on the website of your Company at the weblink viz., www.yashchemex.com 

 
The Board of Directors of your Company is of the opinion that, at present, there are no elements of 
risks which may threaten the existence of your Company. 

 
XII. Commodity Price Risk or Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging Activities: Commodity 
Price Risk: 
 
Your Company is in the business of trading of Chemicals. Hence, material input price risk exists for 
the business (volatility). 

 
Currency Risk: 

 
The functional currency of Company is primarily the local currency in which it operates. The 
currencies in which the transactions are primarily denominated are in Indian Rupees (INR). The 
Company is exposed to currency risk in respect of transactions in foreign currency. Foreign currency 
revenues and expenses are in the nature of export sales and import purchases. 

 
XIII. General Shareholder Information: 
 
a) Registered Office: 411, Sigma Icon-1, 132ft Ring Road, Opp. Medilink Hospital, Satellite, 

Ahmedabad- 380015. 
 
b) 19th Annual General Meeting: 
 

Date Day Time Venue 

30th September, 2025 Tuesday 04:30 P.M. 

411, Sigma Icon-1, 132ft 
Ring Road, Opp. Medilink 

Hospital, 
Satellite, Ahmedabad-

380015 
 
c) Financial Calendar: Financial Year: From 1st April 2024 to 31st March 2025. 
 
During the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025, Financial Results were announced as 
under: 

 
Date Quarter / Annual 

23rd May,2024 Annual 
13th August,2024 Quarterly 

14th November,2024 Half Yearly and Quarterly 
14th February,2025 Quarterly 

 
d) Book Closure Dates and Dividend Payment Date: 
 
The Book Closure dates are from Wednesday, September 24, 2025, to Tuesday, September 30, 
2025 (both days inclusive). 
 
e) Corporate Identification Number (CIN): 
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Your Company's CIN, allotted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs is L74110GJ2006PLC048385. Your 
Company is registered at Ahmedabad in the State of Gujarat, India 
 
f) Listing Details & Listing Fees: 
 
Payment of Listing Fees: - 
 
The Company is listed on BSE Limited (“BSE”) The International Securities Identification Number 
(ISIN) Number of the Company for both NSDL & CDSL is INE571U01010. Your Company has paid the 
Annual Listing fees for the Financial Year 2024-25 to BSE. 

Payment of Depository Fees:- 
 
Annual Custody / Issuer Fee for the Financial Year 2024-25 has been paid by your Company to 
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited 
(CDSL). 

g) Stock Data: 
 

Name of Stock Exchange Scrip Code 
BSE Limited (BSE) 

P. J. Towers, Dalal Street, 
Fort, Mumbai – 400 001, 

Maharashtra 

539939 

 
Table 1: - Distribution of Shareholding by Size as on March 31, 2025.  
 
Table 2: Distribution of Shareholding by Ownership as on March 31, 2025. 

 
Table 1: - Distribution of Shareholding by Size as on March 31, 2025: 
 

Number of 
Shares 

Number of 
Shareholders 

Shareholders 
% 

Shareholding 
% 

1 -5000 4453 88.3532 4.0675 
5001- 10000 219 4.3452 1.6875 

10001- 20000 135 2.6786 2.0700 
20001- 30000 44 0.8730 1.0934 
30001- 40000 41 0.8135 1.4337 
40001- 50000 19 0.3770 0.8515 

50001- 100000 49 0.9722 3.5288 
100001 & 

Above 
80 1.5873 85.2675 

Total 5040 100 100 
 

Table 2: Distribution of Shareholding by Ownership as on March 31, 2025: 
 

Category (As being reported 
to Stock Exchanges) 

No. of Equity Shares % of Shareholding 

Clearing Member 2,007 0.02 
Corporate Bodies 1,96,466 1.92 
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Non-Resident Indian 34,590 0.34 
Promoters 53,28,991 52.02 

Promoters / 
Directors 

11,84,229 11.56 

Public 34,23,319 33.42 

Total 1,02,43,425 100 

 
(The details given above are as per BENPOS received from Big share Services Private Limited, 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent dated March 31, 2025. 
 
Shares held in physical and dematerialized form: 
 
As on March 31, 2025, the break-up of share capital of the Company held in physical and 
dematerialized form is as under: 
 

Mode No. of Equity Shares Percentage 
Demat shares with 

NSDL 
68,61,764 66.99 

Demat shares with 
CDSL 33,81,661 33.01 

Shares held in physical 
mode 0 0 

Total 1,02,43,425 100 

 
(The details given above are as per BENPOS received from BIGSHARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED, 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent as on March 31, 2025.) 

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Reports 

As per Regulation 76 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositary and Participants) 
Regulations 2018, a qualified Practicing Company Secretary carried out an Audit to reconcile the total 
admitted capital with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services 
(India) Limited (CDSL) and total physical holding with the total issued and listed capital. This Audit 
is carried out every quarter and report thereon is submitted to the Stock Exchange(s) where the 
Company's shares are listed. The Audit confirms that the total listed and paid-up capital is in 
agreement with the aggregate of the total number of shares in dematerialised form (held with NSDL 
and CDSL) and total number of shares in physical form, as stated in the Reconciliation Share Capital 
Audit Report submitted to the Stock Exchange(s). 

Outstanding Global Depository Receipts (GDRs) / American Depository Receipts (ADRs) / 
Warrants / Any Convertible Instruments and their likely impact on equity: 

The Company does not have any outstanding GDRs / ADRs / warrants /convertible instruments as 
on March 31, 2025. 

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents and Share Transfer System: 

Share transfer is affected within a maximum period of 30 (thirty) days from the date of receipt, 
subject to documents being valid and complete in all respects.  
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Contact details of Bigshare Services Private Limited, our Registrar and Share Transfer Agents are as 
under: - 
 
BIGSHARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED 
Office No. S6-2,6th Floor, Pinnacle Business Park, Next to Ahura Centre, Mahakali Caves Road, 
Andheri East, Mumbai, Maharashtra,400093 
Tel: 022-626382200 
E-mail: investors@bigshareonline.com. Website: www.bigshareonline.com 
 
Credit Ratings: 
 
During the Financial Year (F.Y.) 2024-25, the Credit Rating granted by SMERA Rating Limited to your 
Company has been reaffirmed at SMERA MSE -1. 
 
Address for Correspondence:  
 
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer  
411, Sigma Icon -1, 132ft Ring Road, Opp Medilink Hospital, Satellite, 
Ahmedabad - 380015 Gujarat, India 
Tel. No.: 079- 40028639 
Website: www.yashchemex.com Email: cs@yashchemex.com 
 
Investor Correspondence should be addressed to:  
 
Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd. 
Office No. S6-2,6th Floor, Pinnacle Business Park, Next to Ahura Centre, Mahakali Caves Road, 
Andheri East, Mumbai, Maharashtra,400093 
Tel: 022-626382200 
E-mail: investors@bigshareonline.com. Website: www.bigshareonline.com 
 
Exclusive e-mail id for Investors / Shareholders: 
 
The Company has designated an e-mail id to enable the Shareholders and Investors to correspond 
with the Company. The e-mail id is cs@yashchemex.com. 

 
SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES): 
 
The investor complaints are processed in a centralized web-based complaints redress system. 
 
The salient features of this system are: 
 
1. Centralized database of all complaints. 
2. Online upload of Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by concerned companies; and 
3. Online viewing by investors of actions taken on the complaint and its current status. 
 
Non-compliance of any Requirement of Corporate Governance Report of sub-paras (2) to (10) 
of Para C to Schedule V of the Listing Regulations 
 
The Company has complied with all the requirements in this regard, to the extent applicable. 
 
Code of Conduct 
 
The Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors and the Senior Management Personnel has been 
disclosed on the website of your Company at the weblink http://www.yashchemex.com . The 
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declaration by the Managing Director stating that all the Board Members and Senior Management 
Personnel have affirmed their compliance with the laid down Code of Conduct for the Financial Year 
ended March 31, 2025, is annexed to this Corporate Governance Report. 

 
Disclosures by Management to the Board of Directors 
 
Your Company had received disclosures from all the Senior Management Personnel stating that none 
of them had any personal interest in any of the financial and commercial transactions entered into by 
the Company during the Financial Year 2024- 25. Interested Directors, if any, neither participate in 
discussions, nor do they vote on such matters. 
 
Public, Rights and Other Issues: 
 
There were no Public, Rights and Other Issues during the Financial Year 2024-25. 
 
CFO and MD Certification 
 
Mr. Pritesh Y. Shah, Managing Director cum Chief Financial Officer of the Company give Annual 
Compliance Certificate in accordance with Regulation 17(8) read with Part B of Schedule II of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
The Annual Compliance Certificate given by Chief Financial Officer & Managing Director is published 
in the Annual Report. 
 
Accounting Standards/Treatment 
 
The Company has complied with the applicable Accounting Standards specified u/s 133 of the Act. 
The financial statements for the year have been prepared in accordance with and in compliance of 
schedule III notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). 
 
Going Concern 
 
The directors are satisfied that the Company has adequate resources to continue its business for the 
foreseeable future and consequently consider it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in 
preparing the financial statements. 
 
Share Capital Audit Report 
 
As required by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) quarterly audit of the Company’s 
share capital for the quarter ended is being carried out by M/s. Kunal Sharma & Associates, Company 
Secretaries with a view to reconcile the total share capital admitted with National Securities 
Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and held in 
physical form, with the issued and listed capital. The Auditors’ Certificate in regard to the same is 
submitted to Stock Exchanges. 
 
Certificate form Company Secretary in Practice regarding appointment and continuation of 
directors: 
 
The Company has obtained the Certificate from Secretarial Auditors M/s. Kunal Sharma & Associates. 
(CP No.: 10329, FCS: 12987), Company Secretaries that none of the Directors of the Company are 
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of the Company by SEBI / 
MCA or any such authority for the Financial Year ending on 31 March, 2025, which is annexed as 
Annexure E. 
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Certificate on Compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance under SEBI Listing 
Regulations 

 
The Company has obtained the Certificate from Secretarial Auditors M/s. Kunal Sharma & Associates 
(CP No.: 10329, FCS: 12987), Company Secretaries the conditions of Corporate Governance under 
SEBI Listing Regulations is complied with which is annexed as Annexure F. 

 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report 

 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms a part of this Annual Report. 

 
Disclosure of Accounting Treatment in preparation of Financial Statements 

 
The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles in India and comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) 
specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

 
Disclosures of compliance with Corporate Governance requirements specified in Regulation 17 
to 27 and Regulation 46(2)(b) to (i) of the Listing Regulations 

 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Regulation 

Complianc
e 

Status Yes/ 
No/N.A. 

Compliance observed for the following: 

1. 
Board of 
Directors 

17& 17A Yes 

• Board Composition 
• Meeting of Board of Directors 
• Review of Compliance Reports 
• Plans for Orderly Succession for Appointments 
• Code of Conduct 
• Fees/Compensation 
• Minimum Information to be placed before 
the Board 
• Compliance Certificate 
• Risk Assessment and Management 
• Performance Evaluation of Independent 
Directors 
• Explanatory Statement to be annexed to 
General Meeting 
• Maximum Number of Directorships 

2. 
Audit 

Committee 
18 Yes 

• Composition 
• Meeting of Audit Committee 
• Powers of Audit Committee 
• Role of Audit Committee and Review of 

Information by the Committee 

3. 

Nomination 
and 

Remuneration 
Committee 

19 Yes 
• Composition 
• Role of the Committee 
• Frequency of Meetings 
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4. 
Stakeholders’ 
Relationship 
Committee 

20 YES 
• Composition 
• Role of the Committee 
• Frequency of Meetings 

5. 
Risk 

Management 
Committee 

21 NA 
• Composition 
• Role of the Committee 
• Frequency of Meetings 

6. 
Vigil 

Mechanism 
22 YES 

• Formulation of Vigil Mechanism for Directors 
and Employees 
• Direct access to Chairman of Audit Committee 

7. 
Related Party 
Transactions 23 Yes 

Policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions 
and on dealing with Related Party Transactions 
• Related Party Transactions of the Company are 
in accordance with contracts duly approved by the 
Audit Committee, Board of Directors and 
Shareholders. 
• Review of transactions pursuant to aforesaid 
Contracts 

• Disclosure of Related Party Transactions 

8. 

Corporate 
Governance 

requirements 
with respect 

to 

subsidiary of 
Listed entity 

24 & 24 A YES 

• Review of Investments made by unlisted 
subsidiary companies by the Audit Committee. 
• Minutes of Meetings of Board of Directors of 
unlisted subsidiary companies placed at the 
Meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company. 
• Review of significant transactions and 
arrangements entered into by the unlisted 
subsidiary companies. 
• Secretarial Audit Report of Material Subsidiary 
to be annexed 

9. 

Obligations 
with respect 

to 
Independent 

Directors 

25 Yes 
• Maximum Directorships and Tenure 
• Meeting of Independent Directors 

• Familiarisation of Independent Directors 

10. 

Obligations 
with  respect 
to Directors 
and Senior 
Management 

26 Yes 

• Memberships/Chairmanships in Committees 
• Affirmation with compliance to Code of Business 
conduct and Ethics from Directors and 
Management 

11. 

Other 
Corporate 

Governance 
Requirements 

27 Yes 

• Compliance with discretionary 
requirements 
• Filing of quarterly compliance report on 
Corporate Governance 

12. Website 
46(2)(b) to 

(i) 
Yes 

• Composition of various Committees of Board of 
Directors 
• Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for 
Directors Management Personnel 
• Details of establishment of Vigil 
Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy 
• Policy on dealing with Related Party 
Transactions 
• Details of familiarization programmes imparted 
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to Independent Directors 

Transfer of Unpaid / Unclaimed Amounts of Dividend to Investor Education and Protection 
Fund: 

 
During the year under review, the Company was not required to transfer any amount to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) pursuant to Rule 5(4) of the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016. 

 
For & on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Yash Chemex Limited 
SD/- 

Pritesh Yashwantlal Shah 
                                                                                                                             Managing Director  

                                                                                                                            DIN: 00239665 
Date: 13th August 2025     
Place: Ahmedabad 
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DECLARATION BY MANAGING DIRECTOR 
WITH RESPECT TO COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT UNDER REGULATION 34(3) READ 

WITH PART D OF SCHEDULE V TO THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE 
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 OF YASH CHEMEX LIMITED (“THE COMPANY”) 

 
I, Pritesh Y. Shah, Managing Director of Yash Chemex Limited, hereby declare that all the Members of 
the Board of Directors and the Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the 
Code of Conduct, applicable to them as laid down by Board of Directors in terms of Regulation 26(3) 
of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015. 

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Yash Chemex Limited 

SD/- 
Pritesh Yashwantlal Shah 

                                                                                                                             Managing Director  
                                                                                                                            DIN: 00239665 

Date: 13th August 2025     
Place: Ahmedabad 
 

Managing Director & Chief Financial Officer Certificate 
To 
The Board of Directors  

Yash Chemex Limited 

 
a. We have reviewed standalone and consolidated financial statements and the cash flow 
statement for the year ended March 31, 2025, and to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

 
I. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 
contain statements that might be misleading. 
II. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

 
b. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company 
during the year ended March 31, 2025, which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s 
code of conduct. 

 
c. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial 
reporting and we have evaluated the effectiveness of Company’s internal control systems of the 
Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit 
Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are 
aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

 
d. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee: 

 
I. that there are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year. 
II. that there are no significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same 
have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and 
III.  that no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement 
therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal 
control system over financial reporting. 

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors 
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Yash Chemex Limited 
SD/- 

Pritesh Yashwantlal Shah 
                                                                                                                             Managing Director and CFO  

                                                                                                                            DIN: 00239665 
Date: 13th August 2025    
Place: Ahmedabad  

 
CERTIFICATE ON NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and schedule V para-C clause (10) (i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation 
Disclosure requirement) Regulation, 2015] 

To, 
The Members of 
Yash Chemex Limited 
CIN: L74110GJ2006PLC048385 
411, Sigma Icon-1,132ft Ring Road, Satellite, Ahmedabad-380015. 

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the 
Directors of the Yash Chemex Limited, having (CIN: L74110GJ2006PLC048385) and having 
registered office at 411, Sigma Icon-1, 132ft Ring Road, Satellite, Ahmedabad-380015 (hereinafter 
referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this 
certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V para – C sub clause 10(i) of 
the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including 
Directors Identification Number [DIN] status at the MCA portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered 
necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, we hereby certify that 
none of the Directors on the Board of Directors of the Company as stated below for the financial 
year ending on 31st March 2025, have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 
continuing as Directors of the Companies by the Securities Exchange and Board of India, Ministry 
of Corporate affairs or any such other Statutory Authority. 

 

Sr.
No 

Name of Director DIN 
Date of appointment in 

the 
Company 

1 Pritesh Yashwantlal Shah 00239665 03/06/2006 

2 Dimple Priteshkumar Shah 06914755 19/07/2018 

3 Angee Rajendrakumar Shah 07486980 09/04/2016 

4 Rushabh Shah 09012222 29/12/2020 

5 Jinal Dineshbhai Shah 07467703 09/04/2021 

 
Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/ continuity of every Director on the Board is the 
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of 
the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 
affairs of the Company. 

 
Date: 13th August 2025                  For Kunal Sharma & Associates 
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Place: Ahmedabad                                                      Company Secretaries 
SD/- 

CS. Kunal Sharma 
                                                                       Proprietor 
                                                            M. No: FCS 10329 
                                                                    CP No: 12987 

                                                                                                                              Firm Code No: I2014GJ1135000 
                             Peer Review No: 1933/2022 

                         UDIN: F010329G000997141 
 

CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REQUIREMENTS 
UNDER SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 

2015 
To, 
THE MEMBERS 
YASH CHEMEX LIMITED 
CIN: L74110GJ2006PLC048385 
411, Sigma Icon-1, 132ft Ring Road, Satellite, Ahmedabad-380015. 
 
We have examined all relevant records of Yash Chemex Limited (CIN: 
L74110GJ2006PLC048385) ("the Company") for the purpose of certifying compliance of the 
disclosure requirements and corporate governance norms Regulations 17, 17A, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 
23, 24, 24A, 25, 26, 27 and clause (b) to (i) and (t) of sub regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para 
C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (collectively referred to as “SEBI Listing 
Regulations, 2015”) for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025. We have obtained all the 
information and explanations to the best of our knowledge and belief, which were necessary for 
the purpose of this certification. 
 
The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. 
Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company 
for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor 
an expression of opinion on the Financial Statements of the Company. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as 
stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 and that none of the Directors on the Board of the 
Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of 
companies by the SEBI, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any other Statutory Authority. 
 
We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 
affairs of the Company. 
 

Date: 13th August 2025                  For Kunal Sharma & Associates 
Place: Ahmedabad                                                      Company Secretaries 

CS. Kunal Sharma 
                                                                       Proprietor 
                                                            M. No: FCS 10329 
                                                                    CP No: 12987 
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GLOBAL ECONOMY 

 
The chemical industry is expected to continue to contend with disruptions to oil, gas and feedstock 
caused by a new era marked by instability. These transformations are characterized by weaknesses 
in global governance, a rise of conflict, and mounting backlashes to multilateralism and free trade. 
The rise of a multipolar, less globalized world has been accelerated by the global pandemic and the 
war in Ukraine. With growing geopolitical tensions, more friction in supply chains could become 
the norm. And as labour costs rise in less developed economies and changes in production methods 
in some industries favor a more localized presence, there may also be less impetus for companies 
to seek production sites further afield, causing globalization to be on the retreat. All this could see 
inflationary pressures remaining more elevated over the longer term. 

 
The combination of supply chain bottlenecks, generous government spending, tight labor markets 
and a commodity shock triggered by the Russian invasion of Ukraine caused inflation to shoot well 
above central banks’ targets across many developed economies. 

The disruption of 2022 has helped the chemical industry position itself to lead the coming materials 
transformation. But with macroeconomic indicators such as volatile energy prices, higher costs, and 
the fracturing of trading patterns signaling uncertainty in the global economy, how can companies 
plan to overcome potential headwinds and position themselves for a bright long-term future? Our 
2023 chemical industry outlook explores four trends that are top of mind for business leaders in 
the year ahead. 

 
The global dyes and pigments market size was valued at USD 38.2 billion in 2022 and is expected 
to expand at a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 5.3% from 2023 to 2030. Increasing 
demand from various application industries such as textiles, paints & coatings, construction, and 
plastics is expected to drive the market growth. Major producers are actively venturing into 
enhancing their products by utilizing advanced technologies for the efficient removal of hazardous 
pollutants during the manufacturing process. Manufacturers are likely to experience varied 
production costs due to volatility in the prices of raw materials, such as benzene. A wide distribution 
network in the market is achieved through both brick & mortar stores and online retailing. 
 
Materials transformation is coming—2025. 
 
Materials transformation is coming—2025 could set the stage. 

 
The racecourse on which US chemical companies run has been dramatically altered in 2022, setting 
the trajectory for the next major change and greater sustainability in the chemical industry. This 
evolution will likely continue in 2025 amid an emerging new industrial policy in the United States, 
evolving consumer preferences, supply chain challenges, and economic uncertainty. But chemical 
companies have stewarded a good “war chest” for these uncertain times. As an industry, businesses 
in the United States have performed well in recent years. 
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Chemical producers can play a crucial role in effectively tackling climate change. Chemicals and 
materials are ubiquitous in a modern-day lifestyle, and for chemical producers to operate in an 
evolving global geopolitical landscape, there will be a strong need to make fundamental changes, 
either proactively or reactively. In the coming year, chemical companies will likely have to plan for 
challenges—from global inflation to oil price volatility. This combination could make 2025 an 
important year for a strategic shift. Explore the four trends below that will likely influence the 
direction of the industry over the next 12 months. 
 
The availability of products on e-commerce platforms has increased the client base of market 
participants. Rapid growth in the global construction industry has also been a key growth-driving 
factor for the overall market. Countries, such as U.S., U.K., China, Indonesia, India, Saudi Arabia, and 
UAE, exhibit significant growth potential in the global construction sector. 
 
The reactive dyes segment dominated the market with a revenue share of more than 57% in 2022. 
These products are composed of highly colored organic substances and have primary applications in 
tinting textiles. They have a high resistance to fading and are available in a range of bright shades, 
which makes them suitable for coloring cotton and rayon. Moreover, they can form a covalent bond 
with fibers during the process of dyeing. It also includes a parent dye, a linking group, and an active 
group. These advantages enable them to inhibit characteristics, which are superior and preferable 
over other dyes used in cellulose fibers. The segment is estimated to expand further at the fastest 
CAGR from 2023 to 2030. 
 
Inorganic pigments earned a higher share in the market as compared to organic pigments due to 
properties, such as good wetting, darker color, and leanness. However, the organic pigments segment 
is anticipated to register the fastest CAGR of 5.7%, in terms of revenue, from 2023 to 2030. Stringent 
regulations affecting the inorganic pigments demand are also likely to provide positive scope for 
organic pigments through internal substitution of the product. 
 
INDIAN ECONOMY: 
 
India’s thriving chemical industry owes its success to escalating demand and supportive government 
policies. India’s chemical sector is ranked the sixth-largest globally by output and third in Asia. 
Contributing a substantial seven percent to India’s GDP, the chemical industry is a key supplier to 
diverse industries like textiles, pharmaceuticals, and agrochemicals. Government initiatives, 
including chemical development schemes, and plastic parks, are fueling investment opportunities. 
Notably, the chemical industry allows 100 percent FDI through the automatic route, except for select 
hazardous chemicals. 
 
The Indian chemical industry is expected to reach US$304 billion by 2025, registering a compound 
annual growth rate (CAGR) of 9.3 percent. The chemical industry in India is valued at a substantial 
US$220 billion and experts predict that it could reach an astonishing US$1 trillion by 2040. 
 
By 2026, the demand for chemicals in India is expected to grow by 9 percent per annum, and the 
chemical industry is anticipated to contribute US$383 billion to India’s GDP by 2030. This increase is 
expected due to the rise in demand in the end-user segments for specialty chemicals and 
petrochemicals segment. 
 
According to Invest India, the market size of the chemical and petrochemical sector in India is US$178 
billion. The Indian chemical industry covers around 80,000 commercial products, employees over 
two million people, and makes up 3.4 percent of the global chemical industry. 
 
The production of Total Major Chemicals and Petrochemicals in 2022-23 (up to September 2022) is 
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26570 thousand MT. CAGR in production of Total Chemicals and Petrochemicals during the period 
2017-18 to 2021-22 is 4.61%. 
 
INDUSTRY TRENDS 
 
Outlook: 
 
The disruption of 2022 has helped the chemical industry position itself to lead the coming materials 
transformation. But with macroeconomic indicators such as volatile energy prices, higher costs, and 
the fracturing of trading patterns signaling uncertainty in the global economy, how can companies 
plan to overcome potential headwinds and position themselves for a bright long-term future? Our 
2025 chemical industry outlook explores four trends that are top of mind for business leaders in the 
year ahead. 
 
Internal Controls: 
 
The company has adequate systems of internal control in place, which is commensurate with its size 
and the nature of its operations. The IT system and infrastructure are continuously examined and 
improved with appropriate and timely upgradation. 
 
Internal Audit function plays a key role in providing to both the operating management and to the 
Audit Committee of the Board, an objective view and reassurance of the overall control systems and 
effectiveness of the Risk Management processes across the Company and its subsidiary. Internal 
Audit also assesses opportunities for improvement in business processes, systems and controls and 
provides recommendations designed to add value to the operations. 
 
The Audit Committee meets on a quarterly basis to review and discuss effectiveness of the internal 
control system. The Audit Committee also meets the Statutory Auditors separately to ascertain their 
views on the adequacy and efficiency of the internal control systems. 
 
GOVERNMENT INITIATIVES 
 
Chemicals industry occupies a pivotal position in meeting basic needs and improving quality of life. 
The industry is a key enabler for industrial and agricultural development of the country and provides 
building blocks for several downstream industries, such as textiles, papers, paints, varnishes, soaps, 
detergents, and pharmaceuticals. It is also among the most diversified industrial sectors and covers 
over 80,000 commercial products. 
 
The government permits 100% foreign direct investment (FDI) in this sector under the automatic 
approval route. Manufacturing of most chemical products inter-alia covering organic/inorganic, 
dyestuff and pesticides is de-licensed. Factors such as boost to speciality and agrochemicals chemicals 
due to rapid development in construction and agricultural sector, inadequate per capita consumption 
and strong demand from paints, textiles and diversified manufacturing base shall aid towards the 
development of Indian chemicals sector, the same is expected to grow at around 9% per annum and 
touch US$ 304 billion by 2025. 
 
Government of India has launched several schemes and initiatives to encourage growth of the sector 
which include: 
 
Petroleum, Chemical and Petrochemical Investment Region (PCPIR) scheme: concept of PCPIR is 
cluster approach to promote petroleum, chemicals and petrochemical sectors in an integrated and 
environmentally friendly manner on a large scale. PCPIRs have already received investments worth 
US$ 24.68 billion till now, these PCPIRs are expected to attract investment in the tune of US$ 117.42 
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billion approximately. PCPIRs are being developed in Andhra Pradesh, Gujarat, Odisha and Tamil 
Nadu and have already generated direct and indirect employment for 0.2 million people with total 
potential of 3.4 million. 
 
The Indian chemical industry has received the much-needed boost in the past 4 to 5 years. The 
Government is taking strict measures to cut down on the challenges that the industry is facing. It is 
also coming up with new projects and plants to leverage all the opportunities to the maximum. In fact, 
the Government’s new “Make in India” initiative would also play a pivotal role in boosting the growth 
of the Indian chemical industry. Other favourable Government initiatives such as “Aatmanirbhar 
Bharat and the Production-Linked Incentive Scheme”, are likely to boost the manufacturing sector, 
and thereby indirectly benefit the industry and the Company. 
 
EASE OF DOING BUSINESS 
 
One of the main drivers of India’s economic growth is the country’s strong domestic consumption, 
which is supported by a sizable and expanding middle class. A major factor in maintaining the nation’s 
economic momentum has also been the government’s initiatives to encourage ease of doing business 
and draw foreign investment. According to the National Statistical Office’s (NSO) second advance 
estimate, India’s GDP growth is projected to be 7% in FY 2022–23 compared to 9.1% in FY 2021–22. 
The bilateral trade also reached a record high of USD 447.46 billion with 6.03% growth during FY 
2022– 23, surpassing the previous high of USD 422.00 billion in FY 2021–22, despite the weakening 
external demand. 
 
CHINA PLUS ONE STRATEGY 
 
The global agrochemical industry is dominated by China. Due to growing environmental concerns, 
many specialty chemical companies in China have ceased their activities, and industries that rely on 
specialty chemicals are diversifying to different countries. Consequently, Indian manufacturers are 
looking at expanding their portfolio with value-added products. Rising demand from domestic as well 
as overseas companies for Indian agrochemicals brings an immense opportunity for growth in the 
coming years. 
 
IMPORT SUBSTITUTES 
 
The Indian Speciality Chemicals Industry is heavily dependent on imports. The government is 
nudging domestic producers to fulfil this demand. The situation has been exacerbated by the war 
impeding imports. This can push Indian producers to meet domestic demand. 
 
THREATS 
 
LACK OF AVAILABILITY OF SKILLED MANPOWER: - 
 
Despite having a favourable demographic profile, labour and skill shortage continues to be one of the 
key concerns for the Indian chemical industry. The Government along with Industry bodies are 
putting their best foot forward to have education and vocational training institution arming the 
manpower with appropriate skill set. 

 
CHEAP IMPORTS: - 
 
Structural shifts in the Chinese market arising from over capacity coupled with weakening prices are 
threatening the Indian players. As China threat was partly getting managed through the anti-dumping 
duty route, we now have Russian problem. Russia is a key producer of steel and as its currency has 
hit rock bottom, the Indian market can see cheap imports. 



 

 

  

 
  
 
     19th Annual Report 2024-25                                                                                                       Yash Chemex Limited      19th Annual Report 2024-25                                                                                                             Yash Chemex Limited   

 
COMPETITION: - 
 
Our government has allowed 100% FDI in Chemical Sector. This has resulted in domestic players 
facing stiff competition from foreign multinationals, capable of exerting strong price pressure on local 
markets. Yash Chemex Limited views this as a health indicator of further thriving and leveraging on 
its attributes. Better pricing, quality products, high volumes and strategic locations, compared to its 
peers are some of the factors that places the Company in a better position to face this competition. 
 
HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS: 
 
The employee strength of the Company as on 31st March, 2025 was 4. The relations with the 
employees of the Company remained cordial and harmonious. 
 
The Company encourages the employees to upgrade their knowledge and skills. The training sessions 
on various working parameters are conducted in routine apart from allowing employees for outside 
specialized training, wherever required. 
 
ACCOUNTING TREATMENT: 
 
Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 are in compliance with the Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT: 

 
Statements in “Management Discussion and Analysis” describing the Company’s objectives, 
projections, estimates, expectations or predictions are forward looking statements within the 
meaning of applicable security laws or regulations. These statements are based on certain 
assumptions and expectations of future events. The actual results might differ materially from those 
expressed or implied depending upon factors such as climatic conditions, global and domestic 
demand-supply conditions, finished goods prices, raw materials cost and availability, foreign 
exchange market movements, changes in Governmental regulations and tax structure, economic and 
political developments within India and the countries with which the Company has business. 
 
Therefore, the Company assumes no responsibility in respect of forward looking statements herein 
which may undergo change in future on the basis of subsequent developments, information or events.  
 

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Yash Chemex Limited 

SD/- 
Pritesh Yashwantlal Shah 

                                                                                                                             Managing Director and CFO  
                                                                                                                            DIN: 00239665 

Date: 13th August 2025     
Place: Ahmedaba



 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
To the Members of  
Yash Chemex Limited  

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Yash Chemex Limited 
(“the Company”), which comprises of the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the 
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Standalone 
Statement of Cash Flows, the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended and 
notes to the Standalone Financial Statements including summary of Material accounting policies 
and other explanatory information (herein after referred as “ the standalone financial 
statements”). 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025 
and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year 
ended on that date. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together 
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We 
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 
in our audit of the Standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone financial statements as a whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
 
We have determined that there is no key audit matter to communicate in our report. 
 
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 
The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the Other Information. 
The Other Information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including 



Annexures to Board’s Report, but does not include the Standalone Financial Statements and our 
auditor’s reports thereon. 

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the Other Information and we 
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the 
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
Other Information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

 
Responsibilities of Management, Board of Directors and those charged with Governance for 
the Standalone Financial Statements 
The Company’s Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that 
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified 
under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act, for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgement and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that 
were operating effectively or ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Financial Statements that give a 
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management and Board of Directors is 
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless management and Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
The Company’s management and Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the 
Company’s financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial 
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to 
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial 
Statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  



 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 
 

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal 
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 
 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the management and the Board of Directors. 
 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management and Board of Directors’ use of the going concern 
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial 
Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 
 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements that, 
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the Standalone Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in 
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in 
the Standalone Financial Statements. 
 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.  
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the 
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 



because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 
public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we 
give in the “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, 
to the extent applicable. 
 
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief are necessary for the purpose of our audit. 

 
b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the 

aforesaid standalone financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books; 

 
c) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other 

comprehensive income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone 
Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

 
d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Accounting 

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. 
 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 
2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

 
f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 

of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to or separate report in 
“Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial 
statements. 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 
requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended. In our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid/provided by 
the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 
read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our and 
according to the explanations given to us : 

 
i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on the financial position of its 

Standalone financial statements – Refer Note 34 to the standalone financial statements; 
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 

were any material foreseeable losses as at March 31, 2025. 
iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2025. 
iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief (Refer Note 52 to 

the standalone financial statements ), no funds (which are material either individually or in 
aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share 



premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or 
entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in 
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate 
beneficiaries. 
(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, (Refer Note 53 
to the standalone financial statements ), no funds (which are material either individually or in 
aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity 
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Company shall, whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries. 
(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, 
contain any material misstatement. 

v.  (a) The company had not proposed any final dividend in the previous year, which was declared 
and paid by the Company during the year.  
(b) The Company has not declared and paid any interim dividend during the year and until the 
date of this report. 
(c) The Board of Directors of the Company have not proposed any final dividend for the year which 
is subject to approval of the members in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software 
for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which has a 
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for 
all relevant transactions recorded in the software (Refer Note 55 to the standalone financial 
statements ). Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit 
trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company 
as per statutory requirements for record retention. 
 
For, S. L. Patel & Co 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration Number:  119211W 

 
SD/- 
CA. Shaileshkumar L. Patel   
Proprietor 
Membership No. 106081 
UDIN:- 25106081BMGSTX1298 
 
Place : Ahmedabad,                
Date  : May 27, 2025     

                         
Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditors’ report  
 
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
section of our report to the members of Yash Chemex Limited of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls With reference to financial statement under 
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 



 
We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial 
statements of Yash Chemex Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our 
audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 
the Act. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance 
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and 
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to the standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such 
controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. 
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining 
an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s Judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting with reference to financial statements. 
 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the financial statements 
A company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed 
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purpose in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control with reference to financial 
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 
assets of the company. (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 



necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company, and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statement, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.  Also, projections of 
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial 
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies of procedures may deteriorate. 
 
Opinion 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements were operating effectively as on March 31, 2025 based on the internal 
control with reference financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. 
 

For, S. L. Patel & Co 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration Number:  119211W 
 
SD/- 
CA. Shaileshkumar L. Patel   
Proprietor 
Membership No. 106081 
UDIN:- 25106081BMGSTX1298 
 
Place : Ahmedabad,                
Date  : May 27,2025 
 
Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report 
 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
section of our report to the members of Yash Chemex Limited of even date) 

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company 
and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that: 

i. In respect of Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets : 
(a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 

details and situation of Property, Plant. 
(B) As the Company does not hold any intangible assets, reporting under clause 3(i) of  the 

Order is not applicable. 
 
(b) The Property, Plant & Equipment have been physically verified by the management in a phased 
manner, designed to cover all the items over a period of three years, which in our opinion, is 



reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its business. According to 
information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification. 
 
(c) Based on the examination of the registered sale deed / transfer deed provided to us, we report 
that, the title deeds of all the immovable properties of land and buildings disclosed in the financial 
statements included in (property, plant and equipment), are held in the name of the Company as at 
the balance sheet date. Immovable properties of land and buildings whose title deeds have been 
pledged as security for loans, guarantees, etc., are held in the name of the Company based on the 
confirmations directly received by us from lenders. 
 
(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, plant and equipment 
during the year.  
 
(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at 
March 31, 2025 for holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) 
Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. 
 

ii. (a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, 
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by 
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the 
physical stocks and the book records that were 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of 
inventory. 
 
(b) As per the information and explanations provided to us and based on our verification of 
relevant records, we report that the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess 
of Rs. 5 crores in aggregate from banks during the year, secured against current assets. In our 
opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with such banks are not in 
agreement with the books of account of the Company for the respective periods, which were 
subject to audit/review. (Refer Note 56 to the standalone financial statements ). 
                                                                                                  

iii. According to information and explanation given to us, the Company has not provided any 
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, 
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year. Hence, reporting under Clause 
3(iii)(a), (c), (d), (e) and (f) of the Order are not applicable. Further, the Company has made 
investments in companies  during the year which, in our opinion, prima facie, are not prejudicial to 
the interest of the Company. 

 
iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 

granted loan or given guarantee or provided security as provided in the section 185 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. The Company has complied with provisions of section 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 in respect of investments made. The company has not provided any guarantees or 
securities to which provisions of section 186 applies. 
 

v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
accepted any deposits from the public and is not holding any amounts which are deemed to be 
deposits within the meaning of the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the 
provisions of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 
with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable.  
 



vi. According to the information and explanation given to us, provision regarding maintenance of cost 
records under sub section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the 
company. Hence, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the order is not applicable. 
 

vii.  In respect of statutory dues: 
(a) The Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including 
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, GST and any other statutory dues with 
the appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, no 
undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a 
period of more than six months from the date on when they become payable. 
 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no material dues of  Sales 
Tax, Service Tax, Goods & Service Tax and Customs Duty which have not been deposited with the 
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute. However, according to information and 
explanations given to us, the following dues of Income Tax have not been deposited by the 
Company on account of disputes : 
 

Name of 
statue 

Nature of Dues Amount 
(in Lakhs) 

Period to which 
amount 
relates 

Forum where the 
dispute is 
pending 

The Income Tax 
Act,1961 

Income Tax 138.26 AY 2011-12 CIT- Appeal 
Ahmedabad 

The Income Tax 
Act, 1961 

Income Tax 102.49 AY 2012-13 CIT- Appeal 
Ahmedabad 

The Income Tax 
Act, 1961 

Income Tax 5.10 AY 2013-14 CIT- Appeal 
 

 
viii.  There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered   or 

disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during 
the year. 
 

ix.  (a) the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of 
interest thereon to any lender during the year. 
 
(b)The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
government or any government authority. 
 
(c)To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the company 
were, applied by the company during the year for the purposes for which the loans were obtained. 
 
(d) On an overall examination of the Financial Statements of the Company, funds raised on short-
term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the 
Company. 
 
(e) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the 
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during the year and hence, reporting 
under clause (ix) (e) of the Order is not applicable. 
 
(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its 
subsidiaries or joint ventures or associate companies. Hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the 
Order is not applicable. 
 



x. (a) The company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the 
Order is not applicable.  
 
(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or 
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the 
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 

xi. (a) To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company 
has been noticed or reported during the year.  
 
(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form 
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the 
Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report. 

 
(c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints received by 
the Company during the year (and up to the date of this report). 
 

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not 
applicable.  
 

xiii. In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 for 
all the transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been 
disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24 
“Related Party Disclosures” specified under section 133 of the Act.  

xiv.  
 
(a)  In our opinion, the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the 

size and the nature of its business. 
 

(b)    We have considered the internal audit reports issued to the Company till date for the period 
under audit. 

 
xv. In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or 

persons connected with its directors during the year. Hence provisions of Section 192 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 
 

xvi. (a) The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not 
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3 (xvi)(a) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company. 
(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities 
without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the 
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 
(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve 
Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 
(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report 
on clause 3(xvi) (d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 



xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the 
Company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs.90.08 Lakhs in the in the immediately 
preceding financial year 

 
xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 

3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, 
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, 
other information accompanying the Financial Statements, our knowledge of the Board of 
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the 
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material 
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its 
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year 
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future 
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of 
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due 
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and 
when they fall due. 
 
 

xx. The Company was not having net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more, or turnover of 
rupees one thousand crore or more or a net profit of rupees five crore or more during the 
immediately preceding financial year and hence, provisions of Section 135 of the Act are not 
applicable to the Company during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order 
is not applicable for the year. 
 
For, S. L. Patel & Co 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration Number:  119211W 
 
SD/- 
CA. Shaileshkumar L. Patel   
Proprietor 
Membership No. 106081 
UDIN:- 25106081BMGSTX1298 
 
Place : Ahmedabad,                
Date  : May 27,2025  



YASH CHEMEX LIMITED

 Note 
No. 

 As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 
 A 

    1 
(a)  Property, plant and equipment 5                        377.67                            359.02 

6 1,173.11                   1,220.33                       
7 1.62                          1.92                              

1,552.40                   1,581.27                      

    2 

8 856.87                      656.07                          

9 1,562.00                   1,619.25                       
10 13.87                        7.16                              
11 112.60                      107.22                          

12 -                            24.76                            
13 32.98                        24.40                            

2,578.32                   2,438.86                      
                   4,130.72                        4,020.13 

 B 

    1 EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital 14 1,024.34                   1,024.34                       

15 1,465.22                   1,337.80                       
2,489.56                   2,362.14                      

LIABILITIES 
    2 Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities
(i)   Borrowings 16 -                            3.74                              
(ii)  Deferred Payment Liabilities 17 172.19                      196.78                          

(b) Provisions 18 2.33                          3.80                              
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 19 53.20                        42.98                            

 Total non - current liabilities 227.72                      247.30                          
    3 Current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities
(i)   Borrowings 20 596.91                      512.83                          
(ii)  Trade payables 21

 - Total Outstanding dues of  Small 
Enterprises & Medium Enterprises 

-                            -                                

YASH CHEMEX LIMITED

 Total non - current assets 

 Total current assets 
 Total assets (1+2) 

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
 (iii) Bank balances other than cash and cash 
equivalents 

(a) Inventories
(b) Financial assets 
(i) Trade receivables

(ii)  Other financial assets

(c) Current Tax Assets (net)
(d) Other current assets

(Rs. in lakhs )
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

 Particulars 

Current assets 

 ASSETS 

 Non-current assets 

(b)  Financial assets 
(i)     Investments

 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

 (b)  Other equity  
 Total equity   



YASH CHEMEX LIMITED

(Rs. in lakhs )
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

 - Total Outstanding dues of creditors other 
than Small Enterprises & Medium 
Enterprises 

782.70                      895.81                          

 (iii) Other financial liabilities  -                            -                                
(b) Other current liabilities 22 1.00                          1.73                              
(c) Provisions 23 0.26                          0.32                              
(d) Current tax liabilities (Net) 24 32.57                        -                                

 Total current liabilities 1,413.44                   1,410.69                      
Total equity and liabilities (1+2+3)                    4,130.72                        4,020.13 

Summary of material acounting policies

As per our Report of even date attached.
For, S. L. Patel & Co For, Yash Chemex Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regd. No.119211W

SD/- SD/-

 Pritesh Y. Shah  Dimple P Shah  

 Managing Director 
and CFO 

 Director 

 (DIN: 00239665)  (DIN: 06914755) 

 SD/- 
Shaileshkumar L. Patel  Pragati Jain

Company Secretary

Membership Number:A61567  
Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad
Date : May 27,2025

 The accompanying notes are an integral part of 
financial statements   

M. No.106081

1 to 58

 Date : May 27,2025 

SD/-

Proprietor



YASH CHEMEX LIMITED

(Rs. in lakhs )

 Note 
No. 

 Year Ended
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 Year Ended
March 31, 2024

Rs. 
I Revenue from operations 25 5,796.47                          6,134.90                          
II Other income 26 6.22                                  79.84                               
III Total income  5,802.69                          6,214.74                         

EXPENSES
(a) -                                    -                                    
(b) 5,693.65                          6,186.61                          
(c) 27 (200.80)                            (90.93)                              

(d) Employee benefit expense 28 9.53                                  18.24                               
(e) Finance costs 29 64.63                               77.45                               
(f) Depreciation and amortisation expense 30 1.05                                  1.15                                  
(g) Other expenses 31 37.29                               178.67                             

IV Total expenses 5,605.35                          6,371.19                         
V Profit\(Loss) Before Tax 197.34                             (156.45)                            

Tax expense 32
(1) Current tax 63.15                               8.31                                  
(2) Deferred tax charge\(credit) 8.55                                  (78.39)                              
(3) Tax In Respect of Earlier Year 3.20                                  4.86                                  

VI Total Tax Expense 74.90                               (65.22)                              

VII Profit\(Loss) for the period 122.44                             (91.23)                              

Other comprehensive income
(i)

4.52                                  53.19                               

2.13                                  20.60                               

(1.67)                                (18.57)                              

VIII 4.98                                  55.22                               

IX 127.42                             (36.01)                              

X

(1) Basic 1.20                                  (0.89)                                
(2) Diluted 1.20                                  (0.89)                                
Summary of material acounting policies

As per our Report of even date attached.
For, S. L. Patel & Co For, Yash Chemex Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regd. No.119211W

SD/- SD/-

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

Particulars

Purchases of stock-in-trade
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 

Cost of materials consumed

Total comprehensive income for the period 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit 
or loss

Income tax relating to above items that 
will not be reclassified to profit or loss

1 to 58

Remeasurements of the defined benefit 
plans

45

Equity instruments through other
comprehensive income

Basic & diluted earnings per share of face 
value of Rs.10 each fully paid up

Total other comprehensive income

 The accompanying notes are an integral part 
of financial statements   



YASH CHEMEX LIMITED

Pritesh Y. Shah Dimple P Shah 

 Managing Director and 
CFO 

Director

(DIN: 00239665) (DIN: 06914755)

SD/-
SD/- Pragati Jain

Company Secretary
Proprietor Membership Number:A61567  
M. No.106081

Date : May 27,2025
Place : Ahmedabad
Date : May 27,2025

 Shaileshkumar L. Patel   

Place : Ahmedabad



YASH CHEMEX LIMITED

(Rs. in lakhs )

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit\(Loss) Before Tax 197.34                                     (156.45)                               
Adjustments for :

1.05                                         1.15                                     
Provision for expected credit loss 1.44                                          (6.92)                                   
Finance costs 64.63                                       77.45                                  
Dividend Income -                                           (0.46)                                   
Interest income (5.98)                                        (5.69)                                   
Operating profit before working capital 
changes

258.48                                     (90.92)                                 

Changes in operating assets and 
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories (200.81)                                    (90.93)                                 

57.25                                        643.09                                 

(12.95)                                      
63.89                                   

Increase/(Decrease) in trade payable (113.12)                                    (507.68)                               

(2.27)                                        2.43                                     

(13.41)                                      19.87                                   

Direct taxes paid\(Refund)  (net) (9.02)                                        (21.61)                                 

(22.43)                                      (1.74)                                   

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest Income 5.98                                         5.69                                     
Dividend Income -                                           0.46                                     

(19.69)                                      (26.77)                                 
51.74                                        303.52                                 

38.03                                        282.90                                 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Finance costs Payment (64.63)                                      (77.45)                                 

55.74                                        (198.98)                               

(8.89)                                        (276.43)                               

6.71                                          4.73                                     

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 7.16                                         2.43                                     
13.87                                       7.16                                    

Notes:

YASH CHEMEX LIMITED
Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

(i). The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard 
- 7 Cash Flow Statements specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(ii). Previous Period's / Year's figures have been re-grouped / Re-Classified where necessary to make it comparable with the 
current period.

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Particulars

NET INCREASED / (DECREASED) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A
+ B + C)         

NET CASH FLOW FROM IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B)

NET CASH FLOW (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C)

Proceeds from \(Purchase) of Non Current Investments (net)

Availment \(Repayment) of Current & Non Current Borrowings (net)

Purchase\(Proceeds)  of PPE made during the year (net)

 Year Ended
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

NET CASH FLOW (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A)

(Increase)/Decrease in Other current financial assets , other current 
assets , Loans (Current + Non Current)

Increase/(Decrease) in other current financial liabitlies,  other current 
liabitlies , Provisions (Current + Non Current)

(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables 

Cash flow generated from operations

 Year Ended
March 31, 2025

Rs. 



YASH CHEMEX LIMITED

For, S. L. Patel & Co For, Yash Chemex Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regd. No.119211W SD/- SD/-

 Pritesh Y. Shah  Dimple P Shah  

 Managing Director and CFO  Director 

 (DIN: 00239665)  (DIN: 06914755) 

SD/- SD/-
Shaileshkumar L. Patel   Pragati Jain 
Proprietor  Company Secretary 
M. No.106081 Membership Number:A70953

Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad
Date : May 27,2025 Date : May 27,2025

As per our Report of even date attached.



YASH CHEMEX LIMITED

Equity Share Capital

Particulars
 Note 
No. 

Amount
Rs.

As at March 31, 2023 15      1,024.34             
Changes due to prior period errors -                       
Restated Balance as April 1 ,2023 1,024.34             
Changes during the year 2023-24 -                       
As at March 31, 2024 15      1,024.34             
Changes due to prior period errors -                       
Restated Balance as April 1 ,2024 1,024.34             
Changes during the year 2024-25 -                       
As at March 31, 2025 15      1,024.34             

Other Equity (Rs. in lakhs )

Retained 
Earnings

Security 
Premium

Equity
Instruments

through Other
Comprehensive

Income

Remeasurement of 
Defined Benefit Plan

Balance as at March 31, 2023 15 862.21                163.22                341.13                         7.25                             1,373.81              
Loss for the year (91.23)                 -                       -                               (91.23)                   
Other comprehensive income for the
year (Net of Taxes)

-                       -                       39.80                           15.41                           55.21                    

Balance as at March 31, 2024 15 770.98                163.22                380.94                         22.66                           1,337.80              
Profit for the year 122.44                -                       -                               122.44                  
Other comprehensive income for the
year (Net of Taxes)

-                       -                       3.38                             1.59                             4.98                      

Balance as at March 31, 2025 15 893.41                163.22                384.33                         24.26                           1,465.22              

In terms of our report attached. 
For, S. L. Patel & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regd. No.119211W

SD/- SD/-
Pritesh Y. Shah Dimple P Shah 
Managing Director and CFO Director
(DIN: 00239665) (DIN: 06914755)

SD/-
SD/- Pragati Jain
Shaileshkumar L. Patel  Company Secretary
Proprietor Membership Number:A61567  
M. No.106081

Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad
Date : May 27,2025 Date : May 27,2025

For, Yash Chemex Limited

Other Components of Equity

YASH CHEMEX LIMITED

Reserves and Surplus

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on March 31, 2025

Particulars
Note 
No.

Total



YASH CHEMEX LIMITED

1  Corporate information:

2

(b) Any other item as specifically stated in the accounting policy.

(iii) Functional and Presentation Currency

(v) Rounding of amounts

3

Summary of basis of compliance, basis of preparation and presentation, critical accounting estimates, assumptions and
judgements and material accounting policies

Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements

Notes to standalone financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Yash Chemex Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated on June 3, 2006 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956;
having registered office at 411, Sigma Icon-1, 132ft Ring Road, Opp. Medilink Hospital, Satellite, Ahmedabad - 380015,
Gujarat, India. The Company is egaged in the business of trading of chemical products. 

The principal accounting polices applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to
as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read
with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(a) Certain financial assets/liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments) and

The financial statements have been prepared and presented on the going concern basis and at historical cost basis considering
the applicable provisions of Companies Act 2013, except for the following items that have been measured at fair value as
required by relevant IND AS. 

(ii) Basis of Preparation and presentation

(i) Compliance with Ind-AS

Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date.

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the functional currency of the Company and the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.

(iv) Classification of Assets and Liabilities as Current and Non-Current 

All assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle, and other
criteria set out in Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time lag between the
acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, 12 months period has been considered
by the Company as its normal operating cycle.

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest Lakh (INR 1,00,000) as per the
requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.
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Notes to standalone financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions in the
application of accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results
may differ from these estimates. Continuous evaluation is done on the estimation and judgments based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable. 

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances
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Notes to standalone financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

d) Provisions and contingent liabilities

4  Summary of Material Accounting Policies (MAP) :-

4.1  Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) 

e) Fair value measurement

In measuring the fair value of certain assets and liabilities for financial reporting purpose, the Company uses market
observable data to the extent available. Where such Level 1 inputs are not available, the Company establish appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible,
but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of
inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions
about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Useful lives and residual values of Property, plant and equipment represent a material portion of the Company’s asset base.
The periodic charge of depreciation is derived after estimating useful life of an asset and expected residual value at the end of
its useful life. The useful lives and residual values of assets are estimated by the management at the time the asset is acquired
and reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end. The lives are based on various external and internal factors
including historical experience, relative efficiency and operating costs and change in technology

The Company’s tax jurisdiction is India. Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes
including amounts to be recovered or paid for uncertain tax positions. Management judgment is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits.

c) Employee benefit obligations

Defined benefit obligations are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. Fair value determined by actuary is
based on actuarial assumptions. Management judgement is required to determine such actuarial assumptions. Such
assumptions are reviewed annually using the best information available with the Management.

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions
(excluding retirement benefits and compensated absences) are not discounted to its present value and are determined based
on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. A
contingent asset is neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

These tangible assets are held for use in production, supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Property,
Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses except for freehold
land which is not depreciated. Cost includes purchase price after deducting trade discount/rebate, import duties, non-
refundable taxes, Net of Cenvat and GST input credit wherever applicable, cost of replacing the component parts, borrowing
costs and other directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition in the manner intended by the
management.

If significant parts of an item of PPE have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of PPE.

b) Provision for income tax and valuation of deferred tax assets
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Notes to standalone financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

The cost of an item of PPE is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Company in future periods and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure incurred after
the PPE have been put into operations, such as repairs and maintenance expenses are charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss during the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to standalone financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Useful Life
60 years
10 years
5 years
8 & 10 years
3 years

Items such as spare parts, standby equipment and servicing equipment are recognised as PPE when it is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purpose, and are expected to be used for more than one year.
Otherwise such items are  classified as inventory.

The Company adjusts exchange differences arsing on translation difference/settlement of long term foreign currency
monetary items outstanding and pertaining to the acquisition of a depreciable asset to the cost of asset and depreciates the
same over the remaining life of the asset. The depreciation on such foreign exchange difference is recognised from first day
of its  financial year.

De-recognised upon disposal

An item of PPE is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when asset is
derecognised.

Treatment of Expenditure during Construction Period

Expenditure, net of income earned, during construction (including financing cost related to borrowed funds for construction
or acquisition of qualifying PPE) period is included under capital work-in-progress, and the same is allocated to the respective
PPE on the completion of construction. Advances given towards acquisition or construction of PPE outstanding at each
reporting date are disclosed as Capital Advances under “Other Non-Current Assets”.

The depreciable amount of an asset is determined after deducting its residual value. Where the residual value of an asset
increases to an amount equal to or greater than the asset’s carrying amount, no depreciation charge is recognized till the
asset’s residual value decreases below the asset’s carrying amount. Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for
use, i.e., when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the intended manner.
Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is classified as held for sale in accordance with IND AS
105 and the date that the asset is derecognised. 

The Company depreciates its property, plant and equipment (PPE) over the useful life in the manner prescribed in Schedule II
to the Act. Management believes that useful life of assets are same as those prescribed in Schedule II to the Act, except for
plant and equipment wherein based on technical evaluation, useful life has been estimated to be different from that
prescribed in Schedule II of the Act. Useful life considered for calculation of depreciation for various assets class are as follows:-

Depreciation on fixed assets added/disposed off during the period is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the date of
addition/disposal.

Vehicles
Computers

Depreciation

Asset Class
Non-Factory Building
Furniture & Fixtures
Office Equipment
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The identified component of fixed assets are depreciated over the useful lives and the remaining components are depreciated
over the life of the principal assets
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As a Lessee:

4.2 Intangible assets 

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

4.3 Leases

4.4 Inventories 

Inventories consisting of stock in trade, goods in transit are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. However,
materials held for use in production of inventories are not written down below cost, if the finished products are expected to

As a Lessor:

At the inception of a lease, the lease arrangements is classified as either a finance lease or an operating lease, based on the
substance of the lease arrangement.

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Company, as lessee, has substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s inception at the fair value of the leased
property or, if lower, the present value of minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in borrowing or other financial liabilities as appropriate. 

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Company as lessee are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from lessor) are charged
to profit or loss on straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in other income on straight-line basis over
the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the
expected inflationary cost increases. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

Deposits provided to Lessor:

The Company is generally required to pay refundable security deposits in order to obtain property leases from various lessors.

Such security deposits are financial assets and are recorded at fair value on initial recognition. The difference between the
initial fair value and the refundable amount of deposit is recognised as lease prepayments. The initial fair value is estimated as
the present value of the refundable amount of security deposit, discounted using the market interest rates for similar
instruments

Subsequent to initial recognition, the security deposit is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method with
carrying amount increased over the lease period up to the refundable amount. The amount of increase in the carrying amount
of deposit is recognised as interest income. The lease repayment is amortised on straight-line basis over the lease term as
lease rentals expense.
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Notes to standalone financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025materials held for use in production of inventories are not written down below cost, if the finished products are expected to
be sold at or above cost.

The cost is computed on FIFO basis and is net of credits under GST.

Traded goods includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Goods and materials in transit include materials, duties and taxes (other than those Subsequently recoverable from tax 
authorities) labour cost and other related overheads incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and 
condition.
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4.5 Borrowing Cost 

Borrowing cost includes interest expense, amortisation of discounts, ancillary costs incurred in connection with borrowing of
funds and exchange difference, arising from foreign currency borrowings, to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to
the interest cost.

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised as
part of the cost of such asset till such time the asset is ready for its intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowing cost are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

4.6 Impairment of Non Financial Assets 

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its PPE and other intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss. Where it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. The resulting impairment loss is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. 
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 

In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can
be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset or CGU in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Cash flows are reported using indirect method whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of the transactions of
non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts and payments and items of income or
expenses associated with investing and financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities
of the Company are segregated.

4.7 Cash Flow Statement 

4.8 Taxes  

Income tax expense represents the sum of tax currently payable and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

a) Current Tax
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Current tax includes provision for Income Tax computed under Special provision (i.e., Minimum alternate tax) or normal
provision of Income Tax Act. Tax on Income for the current period is determined on the basis on estimated taxable income
and tax credits computed in accordance with the provisions of the relevant tax laws and based on the expected outcome of
assessments/appeals
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Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the balance
sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. 

Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unabsorbed losses and unabsorbed
depreciation to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences, unabsorbed losses and unabsorbed depreciation can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company
intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

4.9 Employee Benefits 

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering services are classified as short term employee
benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, short-term compensated absences, performance incentives etc., are recognized
during the period in which the employee renders related services and are measured at undiscounted amount expected to be
paid when the liabilities are settled

a) Employee Benefits 

b) Post-employment obligations
i) Defined benefit plans-Gratuity obligations

b) Deferred Tax
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The liability or assets recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the
defined benefit obligations at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets.

The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present value of
the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the
terms of the related obligation. The benefits which are denominated in currency other than INR, the cash flows are discounted 
using market yields determined by reference to high quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which
the benefits will be paid, and that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the
fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and change in actuarial assumptions are recognized in
the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the
statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognized
immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.
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Disputed liabilities and claims against the company including claims raised by fiscal authorities (e.g. Sales Tax, Income Tax,
Excise, GST etc.) pending in appeal / court for which no reliable estimate can be made and or involves uncertainty of the
outcome of the amount of the obligation or which are remotely poised for crystallization are not provided for in accounts but
disclosed in notes to accounts. However, present obligation as a result of past event with possibility of outflow of resources,
when reliable estimation can be made of the amount of obligation, is recognized in accounts in terms of discounted value, if
the time value of money is material using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risk specific to the liability. No contingent
asset is recognized but disclosed by way of notes to accounts.

4.10  Provisions, Contingent Liability and Contingent Assets 

4.11 Trade and Other Payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the company prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the
reporting period. They are recognized initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method

ii) Defined contribution plans
The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered funds as per local regulations. The Company has no 
further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined 
contribution plans and the contributions are recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue
can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or
duties collected on behalf of the Government such as Goods and Services Tax, etc. 

Sale of Goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when control of the products being sold is transferred to our customers and there
are no longer any unfulfilled obligations. The performance obligations in our contracts are fulfilled at the time of dispatch,
delivery or upon formal customer acceptance depending on customer terms.

Revenue from sales excludes GST. It is measured at fair value of consideration received or receivable, net of returns and
allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates.

Rendering of Services
Revenue from rendering of services is recognized as per the terms of the contract with customers when related services are
performed and when the outcome of the transactions involving rendering of services can be estimated reliably.

Dividend Income
Dividend Income is accounted for when the right to receive the same is established, which is generally when shareholders
approve the dividend.

Interest Income
Interest Income on financial assets measured at amortised cost is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective
interest method.

4.13 Cash and Cash Equivalents  

4.12 Revenue Recognition 
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Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash in hand and demand deposits with banks, short-term balances (with an original
maturity of three months or less), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. Margin money deposits, earmarked balances with banks and other
bank balances which have restrictions are presented as other bank balances.
For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company 's cash management.
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ii) Diluted earnings per share

i)  Basic earnings per share

4.17  Fair Value Measurement  

4.14 Earnings per share 

a)The profit attributable to owners of the Company

b) By the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in
equity shares issued during the year

a)The after ‘income-tax’ effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and

b)The weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

4.15  Segment Reporting 

An operating segment is component of the Company that engages in the business activity from which the Company earns
revenues and incurs expenses, for which discrete financial information is available and whose operating results are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker (CODM), in deciding about resources to be allocated to the segment and
assess its performance. The Company’s chief operating decision maker is the Board of Directors. Operating segments are
reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the CODM.

4.16  Foreign Currency Transactions  

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in foreign currencies, other than the Company’s functional
currency are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency, are not retranslated.
Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which these arise
except for:
a) exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future productive use, which
are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency
borrowings; and b) exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks.
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The Company measures financial instruments, such as investments (other than equity investments in Subsidiaries, Joint 
Ventures and Associates) and derivatives at fair values at each Balance Sheet date. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction 
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or In the absence of a principal market,in the most advantageous market for 
the asset or liability. The principal or the most  advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an  
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, 
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic 
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in 
its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available 
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair 
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
whole:
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Financial assets

a) Recognition and initial measurement

All financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss
(FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue

b) Classification and subsequent measurement

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

ii) Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) – equity investment; or

iii) Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or 
indirectly observable.

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
unobservable 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether

transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

i) amortized cost;

4.18 Events occurring after the balance sheet date 

Assets and liabilities are adjusted for events occurring after the reporting period that provides additional evidence to assist
the estimation of amounts relating to conditions existing at the end of the reporting period.

Dividends declared by the Company after the reporting period are not recognized as liability at the end of the reporting
period. Dividends declared after the reporting period but before the issue of financial statements are not recognized as
liability since no obligation exists at that time. Such dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

4.19 Financial Instruments 
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Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its
business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

• the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

• the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. (designated as FVOCI – equity investment). This election is made on
an investment-by-investment basis.

Investments in subsidiary company:
Investments in subsidiary company are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of
impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable
amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiary company, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amounts are recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL. This
includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that
otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI or at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Impairment of financial assets
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Financial liabilities

Financial assets

Financial liabilities

4.20 Recent accounting pronouncements which are not yet effective (Standards issued but not yet effective)

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated March
31, 2025 to amend the following Ind AS which are effective from 01 April 2025., as below:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when,
the company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis
or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is
classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL
are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other
financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is also recognized in
profit or loss

c) De-recognition

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. During the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind
AS 117 - Insurance Contracts and amendments to Ind As 116 - Leases, relating to sale and lease back transactions, applicable
from April 1, 2024. The Company has assessed that there is no significant impact on its standalone financial statements, 

On May 9, 2025, MCA notifies the amendments to Ind AS 21 Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates. These amendments
aim to provide clearer guidance on assessing currency exchangeability and estimating exchange rates when currencies are not
readily exchangeable. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2025. The Company is
currently assessing the probable impact of these amendments on its standalone financial statements.

The company de-recognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset. 

If the company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet, but retains either all or
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

The company de-recognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire. The
company also de-recognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are
substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified
terms is recognized in profit or loss.

d) Offsetting



YASH CHEMEX LIMITED

Note 5:   Property, Plant and Equipment
(Rs. in lakhs )

Gross Carrying Value as on 
March 31, 2023

9.14               309.51          40.40             3.68                  3.08                 2.50               368.30             

Addition during the year -                 26.77             -                  -                    -                   -                 26.77                
Deduction during the year -                 -                 -                  -                    -                   -                 -                    
Gross Carrying Value as on 
March 31, 2024

9.14               336.28          40.40             3.68                  3.08                 2.50               395.07             

Addition during the year -                 19.69             -                  -                    -                   -                 19.69                
Deduction during the year -                 -                 -                  -                    -                   -                 -                    
Gross Carrying Value as on 
March 31, 2025

9.14               355.97          40.40             3.68                  3.08                 2.50               414.76             

Accumulated depreciation as on
March 31, 2023

8.54               -                 17.64             3.49                  2.89                 2.35               34.91                

Addition during the year 0.05               -                 1.07                0.00                  -                   0.03               1.15                  
Deduction during the year -                    
Accumulated depreciation as on
March 31, 2024

8.59               -                 18.71             3.49                  2.89                 2.38               36.06                

Addition during the year 0.03               -                 1.02                0.00                  -                   -                 1.05                  
Deduction during the year -                    
Accumulated depreciation as on
March 31, 2025

8.62               -                 19.73             3.49                  2.89                 2.38               37.11                

Net Carrying Value as on March
31, 2024

0.55               336.28          21.69             0.19                  0.19                 0.12               359.02             

Net Carrying Value as on March
31, 2025

0.52               355.97          20.67             0.19                  0.19                 0.12               377.67             

Notes:

5.3. The Company has not done revaluation of PPE / Intangible assets.

5.4. Capitalised borrowing cost:

Refer Note. 33  for disclosure of Contractual Commitments for the acquisition of property, Plant & Equipment.

Borrowing Cost Capitalised on Property, Plant and Equipment during the year ended March 31, 2025 - Rs. Nil/- (for the period ended March
31, 2024: Rs. Nil/-).

5.1. Assets Given as security: Refer Note. 16, 17 & 20 for disclosure of assets given as security.

5.2. All the title deeds for the immovable properties are in the name of the Company.

5.5. Contractual obligations:

 Vehicles 
 Furniture & 

Fixtures 
 Total  Office 

Equipments 
 Buildings 

Notes to standalone financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

ComputersParticulars
 Free Hold 

Land  
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(Rs. in lakhs )
6  As at 

March 31, 2025
Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

                     893.24                     893.24 

                     274.74                     322.78 

                         2.24                          2.01 

                         0.45                              -   

                         0.10                              -   

                         2.34                          2.30 

1,173.11                 1,220.33                
68.43                      79.32                      

893.24                    893.24                    

7 Other Non-current financial assets  As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Security Deposits 1.62                        1.92                        
1.62                        1.92                        

8  As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Stock in Trade 856.87                    656.07                    
856.87                    656.07                    

9  As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Unsecured,
Considered good 1,562.00                 1619.25
Credit impaired 4.95                        3.51                        

1,566.95                 1,622.76                
Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss -4.95 -3.51

1,562.00                 1,619.25                
Notes:

5 shares as on 31-03-2025,(Nil Shares as on 31-03-2024) of face value  Rs. 10 each 
fully paid up.

5 shares as on 31-03-2025,(Nil Shares as on 31-03-2024) of face value  Rs. 10 each 
fully paid up.

Bajaj Finserve Limited

Trade receivables

i. For Trade Receivable Ageing analysis Refer Note No :- 42 and For Related Parties Transactions Disclosure Refer Note -46

ii. The Fair Values of Trade Receivables are not considered to be significantly different from their carrying values, given their generally short period to maturity, with 
impairment reviews considered on an individual basis rather than when these become overdue.

Sofcom System Limited.
3488 shares as on 31-03-2025,(5000 shares as on 31-03-2024 ) of face value  Rs. 10 
each fully paid up.

Unsecured and considered good

Total

Total

Notes to standalone financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Total

Inventories

Investments in Equity Instruments of  Subsidiary at amortised cost (Quoted) 

Non-current Investments

Total
Aggregate amount of qouted investment - At cost
Aggregate amount of unqouted investment - At cost

Yasons Chemex Care Limited
9935400  shares as on 31-03-2025,(9935400  shares as on 31-03-2024)  of face value 
Rs. 10 each fully paid up.

Investments in Equity Instruments at fair value through other comprehensive 
income (Quoted) - FVOCI

Mahickra Chemical Limited.
217250 shares as on 31-03-2025,(261500 shares as on 31-03-2024 ) of face value  Rs. 
10 each fully paid up.

iii. The Company provides an allowance for impairment of doubtful accounts based on financial condition of the customer, aging of the trade receivable and
historical experience of collections from customers. The activity in the allowance for impairment of trade receivables is given below:

Bajaj Finance Limited

Ushanti Colour Chem Limited.
4000 shares as on 31-03-2025,(4000 shares as on 31-03-2024) of face value  Rs. 10 
each fully paid up.
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Notes to standalone financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025
 As at 

March 31, 2025
Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

3.51                        10.43                      
Add : Allowance made during the year 1.44                        -                          

-                          -6.92

4.95                        3.51                        

10 Cash & Cash Equivalents  As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Balances with Banks - In Current Account 0.00                        0.00                        
Cash on hand 13.87                      7.16

13.87                      7.16                        

11 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents  As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Fixed deposits with banks (with original maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months) 112.60                    107.22

112.60                    107.22                    

12  As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Advance tax (net of income tax provisions) -                          24.76
-                          24.76                      

13 Other Current Assets  As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Unsecured and considered good
Advances to Suppliers Other than Capital Advance 22.94                      2.00
Others 0.88                        0.56
Prepaid Expenses 0.27                        0.22
Balances with Statutory Authorities 8.89                        21.61

32.98                      24.40                      

14  As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

1,100.00                 1,100.00                

1,024.34                 1,024.34                

1,024.34                 1,024.34                

110,00,000  Equity shares of Rs. 10 each as at March 31,2025 (110,00,000  Equity 
shares of Rs. 10 each as at March 31, 2024)

1,02,43,425 equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid as at March 31, 2025 (1,02,43,425 
equity shares of Rs. 10 each  fully paid as at March 31,2024)

Equity Share Capital

Balance at the beginning of the year

Total

Current Tax Assets (net)

Total

Total

Less : Reversal of allowance made during the year

Total

[ii] Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Capital  :

Total

Closing Balance

Allownace Movement for Trade Receivables

[i]Authorised Share Capital:
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Notes to standalone financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

14.1

No. of Shares Amt (Rs.) No. of Shares Amt (Rs.)
1,02,43,425           1,024.34                 1,02,43,425           1,024.34                

-                          -                          -                          -                          
-                          -                          -                          -                          

1,02,43,425           1,024.34                 1,02,43,425           1,024.34                

14.2

 As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Nos. 2552720 2552720
% 24.92                      24.92                      

Nos. 1255642 1255642
% 12.26                      12.26                      

Nos. 799264 799264
% 7.80                        7.80                        

Nos. 721365 721365
% 7.04                        7.04                        

Nos. 1124229 1055283
% 10.98                      10.30                      

14.3

 % Change During 
the year  

As at 
March 31, 2025 

 % Change During 
the year  

As at 
March 31, 2024 

 As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Nos. -                          -                          2552720 2552720
% -                          -                          24.92                      24.92                      

Nos. -                          102.00                    1255642 1255642
% -                          0.00                        12.26                      12.26                      

Nos. -                          -                          799264 799264
% -                          -                          7.80                        7.80                        

Nos. -                          -                          721365 721365
% -                          -                          7.04                        7.04                        

Nos. 68,946.00 1,93,806.00           1124229 1055283
% 0.67 1.89                        10.98                      10.30                      

Nos. -                          -                          60000 60000
% -                          -                          0.59                        0.59                        

Nos. 10,823.00               -                          73823 63000
% 0.11                        -                          0.72                        0.62                        

Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,is set out below:-

Paxal Shah 

Chandrika Yashvantlal Shah 

As at March 31, 2024

Dimple P Shah

Addition
Deletion

Pritesh Y Shah HUF

Yashwantlal C .Shah HUF

Yashwantlal  C . Shah

Dimple P Shah

Particulars

Shares at the end

The details of Promoters holding shares In the company  is set out below. 

Particulars

Pritesh Y Shah

Pritesh Y Shah HUF

Yashwantlal C .Shah HUF

Yashwantlal C .Shah 

Shares at the beginning

Pritesh Y Shah

As at March 31, 2025Particulars

The details of shares held by Parent Company and shareholders holding more than 5% shares is set out below. 



YASH CHEMEX LIMITED

Notes to standalone financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

14.4

14.5

14.6

14.7

14.8

14.9

14.10

Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attached to equity shares 

Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid by way of Bonus Shares :- Nil

Securities which are convertible into Equity Shares :- Nil

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend, if any
proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation, the equity
shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, if any, in proportion to their shareholding.

Aggregate number and class of shares bought back :- Nil

Aggregate Value of Calls unpaid by directors and officers :- Nil

The Company has not reserved any share for issue under options and contracts or commitments for the sale of shares or disinvestment.

Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contracts without payment being received in cash :- Nil
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Notes to standalone financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

15  As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

163.22                    163.22                    
-                          -                          
-                          -                          

163.22                    163.22                    

770.98                    862.21                    
122.44                    (91.23)                    
893.42                    770.98                    

403.60                    348.38                    
4.98                        55.22                      

408.58                    403.60                    

1,465.22                 1,337.80                

16

Unsecured Borrowing from Banks -                          3.74

-                          3.74                        

17 Deferred Payment Liabilities  As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

172.19                    196.78

172.19                    196.78                    

18 Non-Current Provisions  As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Provision for Gratuity 2.33                        3.80

2.33                        3.80                        

Total

Other Comprehensive Income: This represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on the revaluation of equity instruments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income, under an irrevocable option, net of amounts reclassified to retained earnings when such assets are disposed off.It also includes re-
measurement loss and gain on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to profit and loss.

Add: Other Comprehensive Income For the Year (Net of Taxes)
Balance as per last financial Statement
Other Comprehensive Income

Add : Received during the year

Closing Balance  

Other Equity

Securities Premium

Balance as per last financial Statement

Less: Utilised during the year

Add : Profit\(Loss)  for the year

Surplus in Statement of Profit & Loss :

Balance as per last financial Statement

Total

Securities Premium : The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in equity security premium. Being realised in cash, the same can
be utilised by the company for issuance of bonus shares and writing of share issue expenses.

Net Surplus in the statement of profit and loss 

Total

Secured
Deferred payment for acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment

Total
Secured and payable as per agreed repayment schedule of 120 Months, Quarterly Installments carry interest rate ranging from 10.00 % to 11.00 % p.a.

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Non-Current Borrowings  As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

Retained earnings: Retained earnings can be utilised by the company for distribution to its equity shareholders of the company. The amount that can be distributed
by the Company as dividends to its equity shareholders is determined based on the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. Thus, the amounts reported above
are not distributable in entirety.

Business loan is unsecured and payable as per agreed repayment schedule ranging from 12 Months to 36 Months monthly installments carry interest rate ranging 
from 14.00 % to 17.00 % p.a.

Net Surplus in the statement of other comprehensive income 
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Notes to standalone financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

19 Deferred Tax Liabilities \Asset (Net)  As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 
Deferred Tax Assets

1.25                        20.06

0.65                        1.04

-                          0.00

1.90                        21.10                      

Deferred Tax Liabilities
1.89                        1.72

Fair Valuation of investment in Equity Instruments 53.21                      62.36

                       55.10                       64.08 

Net Deferred Tax Liabilities\(Deferred Tax Assets)                        53.20                       42.98 

20.1 Note i. Movement of deferred tax liability:

 Unpaid liability  
allowable on 

payment basis in 
succeding years 
u/s. 43B of the 

Income tax Act, 
1961 

 Allowance for 
Expected Credit 

Loss on Trade 
Receivables 

Fair Valuation of
investment in

Equity
Instruments

 Time difference 
of depreciation as 
per Tax Provision 

and Company Law 
on Property, Plant 

and Equipment 

                         5.60                          2.62 (109.49)                  (1.52)                      

(4.56)                       17.44 -                          (0.20)                       
                              -                                 -   47.13                                                   -   
                         1.04                        20.06 (62.36)                     (1.72)                       

(0.39)                       -18.81 -                          (0.17)                       
                              -                                 -   9.15                                                     -   
                         0.65                          1.25 (53.21)                     (1.89)                       

20  As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

From Banks -Cash Credit Facility 593.10                    475.72

3.81                        37.11

596.91                    512.83                    
Notes:

Time difference of depreciation as per Tax Provision and Company Law on Property, 
Plant and Equipment

Allowance for Expected Credit Loss on Trade Receivables

Total Deferred Tax Assets

Unpaid liability  allowable on payment basis in succeding years u/s. 43B of the Income tax Act, 1961

As at March 31, 2023 *

Time difference of depreciation as per Tax Provision and Company Law on Property, 
Plant and Equipment

(Charged) / credited:
to profit or loss
to other comprehensive income
As at March 31, 2024 *

Cash Credit facility availed from Bank is secured by Charge on Fixed deposits, and Equitable mortgage of Office Premises, Current and Future Assets of the
companies  & personal guarantee of Directors Mr. Pritesh Y Shah having ROI ranging from 9.00% to 11.00%

Current Maturity of non-current borrowings

Total

 Particulars 

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities

(Charged) / credited:
to profit or loss
to other comprehensive income
As at March 31, 2025 *

Secured Borrowing 

Current Borrowings
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Notes to standalone financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025
21  As at 

March 31, 2025
Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

-                          -                          
782.70                    895.81

782.70                    895.81                    

22  As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 
Statutory dues 1.00                        1.73

1.00                        1.73                        

23  As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 
0.26                        0.32

0.26                        0.32                        

24  As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 
Provision For Income tax (Net) 32.57                      -                          

32.57                      -                          

25 Revenue from operation

Sale of Products 5,796.47 6,134.90

5,796.47                 6,134.90                

26 Other Income

Interest Income 5.98 5.69
Other Income 0.24 73.69
Dividend Income -                          0.46

Total 6.22                        79.84                      

Trade payables

Total

Current Tax Liabilities \(Assets)(Net)

Current Provisions

Provision for Gratuity

 Year Ended March 
31, 2025

Rs. 

Dues to Micro and Small enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of the information collected by the
Management.For Disclosures as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 Refer Note - 39 and For Trade Payables Ageing
analysis Refer Note No :- 43

Total

 Year Ended March 
31, 2025

Rs. 

Total

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises

 Year Ended 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

 Year Ended 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Total

Total

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

Other Current Liablities
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Notes to standalone financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

27

Inventory at the beginning of the year
Stock in Trade 656.07                    565.14                    

656.07                    565.14                    
Inventory at the end of the year
Stock in Trade 856.87 656.07

856.87                    656.07                    
Net (Increase) / decrease in Inventory (200.80)                  (90.93)                    

28 Employee Benefit Expense  Year Ended March 
31, 2025

Rs. 

 Year Ended 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

8.93 15.76
Gratuity Expenses 0.60 2.48

9.53                        18.24                      

29 Finance Costs

Interest Paid to Banks & Financial Institutions 56.78 68.33
Interest Paid to Others 5.64 0.68
Other borrowing cost 2.21 8.45

64.63 77.45

30 Depreciation And Amortisation Expense  Year Ended March 
31, 2025

Rs. 

 Year Ended 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment 1.05 1.15
1.05                        1.15                        

31 Other Expenses  Year Ended March 
31, 2025

Rs. 

 Year Ended 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Import related Charges and Expenses 3.57 9.94
Transportation Expenses 8.35 7.92
Advertisement Expenses 0.26 0.46
Auditor's Remuneration 4.60 4.00
Bad Debts Written Off -                          145.19
Director Sitting Fees 0.60 0.85
Electricity Charges 0.73 0.65
Insurance Charges 2.68 2.20
Reparing & Maintenance Expenses -  Others 0.61 0.55
Other Expenses 2.94 2.52
Legal & Professional Fees 8.53 8.46
Telephone Expenses 0.43 0.38
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 0.24 0.35
Foreign Exchange Loss -                          1.50
Rent Rates & Taxes  (excluding taxes on income) 0.34 0.28

1.44 (6.92)                       
1.96 0.35

37.29                      178.67                    

Total

Total

Change In Inventories Of Stock In Trade  Year Ended 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

 Year Ended March 
31, 2025

Rs. 

 Year Ended March 
31, 2025

Rs. 

 Year Ended 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Salary, Wages & Bonus Expenses

Expected Credit Losse Allowance\(Reversal)
Printing & Stationery & Postage Expenses

Total

Total
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Notes to standalone financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

32     Income tax recognised in profit or loss

Current tax:

In respect of the current year 63.15                      8.31                        
In respect of the prior year 3.20                        4.86                        
Sub-Total (i) 66.35                      13.17                      
Deferred tax:
In respect of the current year 8.55 -78.39
Sub-Total (ii) 8.55 -78.39

74.90 -65.22

32.1 Income tax reconciliation
Particulars  Year Ended March 

31, 2025
Rs. 

 Year Ended 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Profit Before tax 197.34 (156.45)                  

49.67 (39.38)                    

Effect of expenses not allowed for tax purpose 84.02                      163.40                    
Effect of Income not considered for tax purpose & Other deductible expenses (70.54)                     (115.72)                  

8.55 (78.39)                    
Effect of Impact of earlier year tax 3.20                        4.86                        

Total Income Tax Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss 74.90 -65.22

 Year Ended 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Total (I + ii)

Effect of Related to Deferred Tax Balances

Income tax expenses calculated at effective tax rate (25.168% current year and 
25.168 % previous year)

 Year Ended March 
31, 2025

Rs. 



YASH CHEMEX LIMITED

(Rs. in lakhs )
33 Capital Commitment

 As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

-                        -                        
                           -                              -   
                           -                              -   

34 Contingent Liabilities

 As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

                  138.26                   138.26 

                  102.49                   102.49 

                       5.10                        5.10 

35 Details of Employee Benefits: 
(a) Defined Contribution Plans

(b) Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity: 

(iii) Demand U/s 143(3) r.w.e. 147 of the Income Tax Act for 
A.Y.2013-14 against which Appeal filled by company and 
matter is pending before CIT (Appeals).

Details of contingent liabilities are as under:

Particulars

(ii) Demand U/s 143(3) r.w.e. 147 of the Income Tax Act for 
A.Y.2012-13 against which Appeal filled by company and 
matter is pending before CIT (Appeals).

Notes to standalone financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Details of outstanding capital commitments are as under:

As the company does not meet the employees' threshold, currently the company is not required to contribute towards
any plan under any law for the time being in force. The company shall start contributing as and when it is required by
the law. 

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service
gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The scheme is
unfunded.

For the year ended March 31, 2025; the company provides for the Liability for Gratuity to employees determined on
the basis of actuarial Valuation based on Projected Unit Credit method. 

The following table summarizes the components of net benefit expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
and the funded status and the amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet for the plan:

Particulars

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on 
capital account and not provided for Capital goods / Capital 
work in progress

Advance paid against such contracts
Remaining outstanding commitment

Oustanding Tax Matters:
(i) Demand U/s 143(3) r.w.e. 147 of the Income Tax Act for 
A.Y.2011-12 against which Appeal filled by company and 
matter is pending before CIT (Appeals).
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Notes to standalone financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025
A. Expenses Recognized during the period (Rs. in lakhs )

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2025
Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 
In Income Statement 0.60 2.48
In Other Comprehensive Income                      (2.13)                    (20.60)

Total Expenses Recognized                      (1.53)                    (18.12)

A1.Expenses Recognized in the Income Statement
 As at 

March 31, 2025
Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Current Service Cost 0.31 0.88
Net Interest Cost 0.29 1.6

                       0.60                        2.48 

B. Net Liability recognized in the balance sheet

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2025
Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Present Value of Obligation 2.59                      4.12                      
Fair value of plan assets -                        -                        
Surplus / (Deficit) 2.59                      4.12                      

Net (Liability) recognized in the Balance 
sheet

                     (2.59)                      (4.12)

Current Liability 0.26 0.32
Non-current Liability 2.33 3.80

Particulars

 As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Present Value of Obligation as at the 
beginning 4.12                      22.24                    
Current Service Cost 0.31                      0.88                      
Interest Expense or Cost 0.29                      1.60                      
Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss :                      (2.13)                    (20.60)
Past Service Cost -                        -                        
Benefits Paid -                        -                        
Present Value of Obligation as at the end of the year                        2.59                        4.12 

C. Actuarial Assumptions

Particulars

 As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars

B1. Changes in the Present value of Obligation
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Notes to standalone financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025
Discount Rate  6.85% p.a.  7.20% p.a. 
Expected rate of salary increase  7.00% p.a.  7.00% p.a. 
Expected Return on Plan Assets  Not Applicable  Not Applicable 
Mortality  Indian Assured 

Lives Mortality 
(2012-14) Table 

 Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 
(2012-14) Table 

Retirement Age  60 Years  60 Years 

D. Sensitivity Analysis

 Decrease  Increase  Decrease  Increase 
Discount Rate (- / + 0.5%) 
(% change compared to base due to 
sensitivity)

2.72                        2.48 4.31                        3.96 

Salary Growth Rate (- / + 0.5%) 
(% change compared to base due to 
sensitivity)

2.54                        2.66 4.02                        4.25 

Attrition Rate (W.R. x 90% / W.R. x 110%) 
(% change compared to base due to 
sensitivity)

2.51                        2.66 4.04                        4.19 

 Year Ended March 31, 2025
Rs. Particulars

 Year Ended March 31, 2024
Rs. 
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Notes to standalone financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

E. Maturity Profile of Project Benefit Obligation

Particulars

 As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Weighted average duration (based on 
discounted cash flows)

 11.16 years  11.16 years 

E. Characteristics of defined benefit plans and risks associated with them:

(i) Actuarial Risk:

(ii) Investment Risk:

(iii) Liquity Risk:

(iv) Market Risk: 

(v) Legislative Risk: 

Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate significant level of benefits.
If  some  of  such  employees  resign/retire  from  the  company there can be strain on the cashflows.

It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the following reasons:
Adverse Salary Growth Experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary escalation will result into an
increase in Obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.

Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality rate assumption than the
Gratuity Benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Since there is no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the
acceleration of cashflow will lead to an actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the assumed salary
growth and discount rate.

Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption
than the Gratuity Benefits will be paid earlier than expected. The impact of this will depend on whether the
benefits  are  vested  as at  the resignation date.

For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified by the insurer may not be
the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, the present value of the assets is independent of the
future discount rate. This can result in wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant
changes in the discount rate during the inter-valuation period.

Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets. One
actuarial assumption that has a material effect is the discount rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money.
An increase in discount rate leads to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This
assumption depends on the yields on the corporate/government bonds and hence the valuation of liability is
exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date.

Valuation of defined benefit plan are performed on certain basic set of pre-determined assumptions and other
regulatory framework which may vary over time. Thus, the Company is exposed to various risks in providing the above
benefit plans which are as follows:
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Notes to standalone financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

36 Segment Reporting

The Company operates in a single segment and in line with Ind AS - 108 - “Operating Segments”, the operation of the
Company fall under Chemical Business which is considered to be the only reportable business segment, and therefore,
no separate disclosure on segment information is given in these standalone financial statements.

Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due to change in the
legislation/regulation. The government may amend the Payment of Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay
higher benefits to the employees. This will directly affect the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the
same will have to be recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.
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Financial instrument by category and their fair value

FVTPL FVTOCI
 Amortised

Cost 
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets
Investments - Non Current -            279.87          -                    279.87             279.87          -              -                279.87          
Other Non Current Financial 1.62                  1.62                  -                 -              1.62              1.62               
Trade Receivables -            -                 1,562.00          1,562.00          -                 -              1,562.00      1,562.00       
Cash and Cash Equivalents -            -                 13.87               13.87               -                 -              13.87            13.87             
Other Bank Balances -            -                 112.60             112.60             -                 -              112.60          112.60          
Total Financial Assets -            279.87          1,690.09          1,969.96          279.87          -              1,690.09      1,969.96       

Financial Liabilities
Non - Current Borrowings -            -                 -                    -                    -                 -              -                -                 
Deferred Payment Liabilities 172.19             172.19             172.19          172.19          
Current Borrowings -            -                 596.91             596.91             -                 -              596.91          596.91          
Trade Payables -            -                 782.70             782.70             -                 -              782.70          782.70          

Total Financial Liabilties -            -                 1,551.79          1,551.79          -                 -              1,551.79      1,551.79       

FVTPL FVTOCI
 Amortised

Cost 
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets
Investments - Non Current -            327.09          893.24             1,220.33          327.09          -              893.24          1,220.33       
Other Non Current Financial 1.92                  1.92                  -                 -              1.92              1.92               
Trade Receivables -            -                 1,619.25          1,619.25          -                 -              1,619.25      1,619.25       
Cash and Cash Equivalents -            -                 7.16                  7.16                  -                 -              7.16              7.16               
Other Bank Balances -            -                 107.22             107.22             -                 -              107.22          107.22          
Total Financial Assets -            327.09          2,628.79          2,955.88          327.09          -              2,628.79      2,955.88       

Financial Liabilities
Non - Current Borrowings -            -                 3.74                  3.74                  -                 -              3.74              3.74               
Deferred Payment Liabilities 196.78             196.78             196.78          196.78          
Current Borrowings -            -                 512.83             512.83             -                 -              512.83          512.83          
Trade Payables -            -                 895.81             895.81             -                 -              895.81          895.81          

Total Financial Liabilties -            -                 1,609.17          1,609.17          -                 -              1,609.17      1,609.17       

Notes to standalone financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Fair Value Measurements

(Rs. in lakhs )

As at 
March 31, 2024

Carrying Amount

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilties
Level 2 -Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liabilty, either directly (i.e. as prices ) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)
Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilties that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

As at 
March 31, 2025

Carrying Amount Fair Value 

Fair Value 

The above fair value hierarchy explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a)
recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide
the indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments in to three levels
prescribed is as under:
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I

i)

ii) Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

II

The audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the company’s risk management policies and
procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The
audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of
risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

Notes to standalone financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Trade Receivables:

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The
Company’s primary risk management focus is to minimize potential adverse effects of market risk on its financial
performance. The Company’s risk management assessment and policies and processes are established to identify and analyse
the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance with the
same. 

Financial risk management 

The Company’s risk management is governed by policies and approved by the board of directors. The Company identifies,
evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the Company’s operating units. The Company has policies for
overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk,
use of non-derivative financial instruments.

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The
demographics of the customer, including the default risk of the industry and country in which the customer operates, also has
an influence on credit risk assessment. The Company with various activities as mentioned above manages credit risk. An
impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major customers. In addition, a large
number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The calculation
is based on historical data. The Company does not hold collateral as security.

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in
accordance with the Company’s assessment of credit risk about particular financial institution. None of the Company’s cash
equivalents, including term deposits (i.e., certificates of deposit) with banks, were past due or impaired as at each balance
sheet date.

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers. Credit risk is managed through
credit approvals, establishing credit limits, and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the
Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The history of trade receivables shows a negligible provision
for bad and doubtful debts. The Company establishes an allowance for doubtful debts and impairment that represents its
estimate of expected losses in respect of trade and other receivables and investments. The company has adopted simplified
approach of ECL model for impairment.

Credit Risk

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The level of
liquidity risk is very low considering the fact that the company relies on operating cash flows and owned equity. Currently the
company has borrowed funds from bank mainly for day to day business needs (i.e. Cash Credit Facilities are being availed by
the company).  

Further the Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking facilities by continuously
monitoring the forecasted and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. The
Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when due. 
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III

a) Currency Risk

i)

As at 
March 31, 2025 

Rs.

As at 
March 31, 2024 

Rs.

0.05                       -                         
4.13                       -                         

Trade Payables

The following table analyses foreign currency risk from non-derivative financial instruments as at each balance sheet date

CurrencyParticulars

USD
INR

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. 
The Company’s foreign exchange risk arises from its foreign currency purchase of Stock-in-trade, (primarily in USD). A
significant portion of the Company’s purchases are in foreign currencies, while its revenue are in Indian Rupees. As a result, if
the value of the Indian rupee depreciates relative to these foreign currencies, the Company’s purchase costs measured in
Indian Rupees may increase. The exchange rate between the Indian rupee and these foreign currencies has changed
substantially in recent periods and may continue to fluctuate substantially in the future. As of March 31, 2025, the Company
had not entered into any material derivative contracts to hedge exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency risk.

Market Risk
Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from adverse changes in
market rates and prices (such as interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and commodity prices) or in the price of
market risk-sensitive instruments as a result of such adverse changes in market rates and prices. Market risk is attributable to
all market risk-sensitive financial instruments, all foreign currency receivables and payables and all short term and long-term
debt. The Company is exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and commodity
risk.
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ii) Foreign Currency Risk Sensitivity

5% Increase 5% Decrease 5% Increase 5% Decrease

USD (0.21)                 0.21                    -                         -                         

 b) Interest Risk

i) Exposure to interest rate risk

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2025 
Rs.

As at 
March 31, 2024 

Rs.

Non Current Borrowings                             -                           3.74 
Deferred Payment Liabilities                    172.19                     196.78 
Current Borrowings                    596.91                     512.83 
Total                    769.09                     713.36 

ii) Interest Rate Sensitivity

As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs.

As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs.

(3.85)                      (3.57)                      
3.85 3.57

c) Price Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. In order to optimize the Company’s position with regards to the interest income and interest expenses
and to manage the interest rate risk, treasury performs
a comprehensive corporate interest rate risk management by balancing the proportion of fixed rate and floating rate financial
instruments in it total portfolio.
With all other variables held constant, the following table demonstrates the impact of the borrowing cost on floating rate
portion of loans and borrowings and excluding loans on which interest rate swaps are taken.Interest rate risk is the risk that
the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates related primarily to the Company’s short-term borrowings
with floating interest rates. Company’s treasury department monitors the interest rate movement and manages the interest
rate risk based on its policies.

The sensitivity of profit or loss due to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from non-derivative foreign currency
denominated financial instruments (mainly financial instruments denominated in USD currency). The same is summarized as
below:

The exposure of the company's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Impact on Profit before tax

50bp decrease would increase the profit before tax by

Particulars

50bp increase would decrease the profit before tax by

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates. The below
sensitivity does not include the impact of interest rate swap contracts which largely mitigate the risk.

For details of the Company’s Non Current and Current borrowings, including interest rate profiles, refer to Note 16,17,and 20
of these Standlaone financial statement.

Particulars

Year Ended
March 31, 2024 Rs.

Year Ended
March 31, 2025 Rs.
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Exposure to market risk with respect to commodity prices primarily arises from the Company’s purchases and sales of active
chemical products. These are commodity products, whose prices may fluctuate significantly over short periods of time. The
prices of the Company’s stock generally fluctuate in line with commodity cycles. Purchase Cost of the products form the
largest portion of the Company’s cost of revenues. Commodity price risk exposure is evaluated and managed through
operating procedures and sourcing policies. As of March 31, 2025, the Company had not entered into any material derivative
contracts to hedge exposure to fluctuations in commodity prices.
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i) Exposure

ii) Sensitivity

(Rs. in lakhs )
Impact on Other Comprehensive Income - OCI

Movement in 
Rate

%.

As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs.

As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs.

Equity Shares (Quoted) 5% 13.99                     16.35                     
Equity Shares (Quoted) -5% (13.99)                   (16.35)                    

39

(Rs. in lakhs )

As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs.

As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs.

-                         -                         

-                         -                         

-                         -                         

-                         -                         

-                         -                         

-                         -                         

-                         -                         

Interest due and remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of accounting year

Amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 
2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the 
appointed day during the accounting year

Amount of interest due and payable for the reporting period of delay in making 
payment [which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year] but 
without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in succeeding years, until 
such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for 
the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of MSMED 
Act, 2006 

Particulars

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, (MSMED), certain disclosers are required to be made
relating to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises. On the basis of the information and records available with management,
outstanding dues to the Micro and Small enterprise as defined in the MSMED Act, 2006 are disclosed as below:

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of accounting year

Total

The Company’s exposure to equity securities price risk arises from investments held by the Company and classified in the
balance sheet either at fair value through OCI and at amortised cost. To manage its price risk arising from investments in
equity securities, the Company diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set
by the Company.

The table below summarizes the impact of increases/decreases of the BSE index on the Company’s equity and Gain/Loss for
the period. The analysis is based on the assumption that the index has increased by 5 % or decreased by 5 % with all other
variables held constant, and that all the Company’s equity instruments moved in line with the index.

Above referred sensitivity pertains to quoted equity investment.Profit for the year would increase/ (decrease) as a result of
gains/ losses on equity securities as at fair value through other comprehensive income before net of tax.

Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise
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As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs.

As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs.

769.09                  713.36                   
13.87                     7.16                        

755.23                  706.20                   
2,489.56               2,362.14                

30.34% 29.90%
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As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs.

As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs.

4.00                       4.00                        
-                         -                         

0.50                       0.50                        

Total 4.50                       4.50                       

Net gearing ratio

Particulars

Debt
Cash and bank balances 
Net debt
Equity

Statutory Audit Fees
Tax Audit Fees

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

Capital Management:
The Company’s capital management is intended to maximise the return to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
for meeting the long-term and short-term goals of the Company; and reduce the cost of capital through the optimization of
the capital structure i.e. the debt and equity balance.
The Company monitors the capital structure on the basis of Net gearing ratio and maturity profile of the overall debt portfolio
of the Company.

Details of Payment to Auditors

Payment to auditors:

Particulars

Others (Fees for Other Audit Related Services)
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 a) Undisputed trade receivables (Rs. in lakhs )

Outstanding for following periods 
from due date
of receipts
Not Due
Less than 6 months              1,556.23       1,559.46                                     -   
6 months - 1 year                    10.72            62.82                                     -   
1-2 years                          -                 0.48                                     -   
2-3 years                          -                     -                                       -   
More than 3 Years                          -                     -                                       -   

Total              1,566.95       1,622.76                                     -   
Allowance for Expected Credit 
Loss

(4.95)                   (3.51)            -                                 

Total              1,562.00       1,619.25                                     -   

 b) Disputed trade receivables

Considered
Good

Considered
Doubtful

Considered
Good

Considered
Doubtful

Outstanding for following periods 
from due date
of receipts
Not Due                          -                             -                     -                                       -   
Less than 6 months                          -                             -                     -                                       -   
6 months - 1 year                          -                             -                     -                                       -   
1-2 years                          -                             -                     -                                       -   
2-3 years                          -                             -                     -                                       -   
More than 3 Years                          -                             -                     -                                       -   

Total                          -                             -                     -                                       -   
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Particulars

Less Than 1 Year 1-2 Year 2-3 Years More than 3 Years

MSME                          -                             -                     -                                       -                                -   
Others                 576.89                  205.81                   -                                       -                       782.70 
Disputed dues – MSME                          -                             -                     -                                       -                                -   
Disputed dues - Others                          -                             -                     -                                       -                                -   

Particulars

Less Than 1 Year 1-2 Year 2-3 Years More than 3 Years

Considered
Good

As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs.

Total

Notes to standalone financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Trade receivables Ageing Schedule

Particulars

Particulars

Trade Payables Ageing Schedule

Outstanding as on 31st March 2024 for following periods from due 
date of payment Total

As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs.

As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs.

As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs.

Outstanding as on 31st March 2025 for following periods from due 
date of payment

Considered
Good



MSME                          -                             -                     -                                       -                                -   
Others                 765.37                  130.44                                     -                       895.81 
Disputed dues – MSME                          -                             -                     -                                       -                                -   
Disputed dues - Others                          -                             -                     -                                       -                                -   
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 Sr. 
No Ratio

 Ratio as at 
March 31, 2025 

 Ratio as at 
March 31, 2024 % Deviation 

      1 Current Ratio
Current Assets 1.82 1.73 5.51%
Current Liabilities

      2 Debt-to-equity Ratio
Total Debt 0.31 0.30 2.30%
Shareholder’s Equity

      3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio
Earnings available for debt service 
= Net Profit after taxes + Non-cash 
operating expenses like 
depreciation and other 
amortizations + Interest + other 
adjustments like loss on sale of 
Fixed assets etc. 0.05 -0.14 136.48%

Debt Service =Interest & Lease 
Payments + Principal Repayments

      4 Return on Equity Ratio
Net Profits after taxes – Preference 
Dividend (if any) 0.05 -0.04 -231.69%
Average Shareholder’s Equity

      5 Inventory Turnover Ratio
Sales 7.66 10.05 -23.74%
Average Inventory

      6 Receivables Turnover Ratio
Net Credit Sales 3.64 3.17 15.08%
Avg. Accounts Receivable

      7 Payables Turnover Ratio
Net Credit Purchases 6.78 13.81 -50.88%

Average Trade Payables

      8 Net capital turnover Ratio
Net Sales 4.98 5.97 -16.61%
Working capital = Current assets – 
Current liabilities

      9 Net profit ratio
Net Proift After Tax 0.02 -0.01 242.05%

Net Sales

    10 Return on Capital employed Ratio

Earning before interest and taxes 7.91% -2.53% 412.25%
Capital Employed = Tangible Net 
Worth + Total Debt + Deferred Tax 
Liability

    11 Return on investment Ratio
Interest (Finance Income) 5.44% 4.97% 9.49%
Average of Bank Deposits

-

-

-

Primary on account of Increase in  
Profitability as compared to last year.  

Due to Increase in  Profitability as 
compared to last year.

-

-

Majority Due to increase in  average trade 
payables during the year as compared to 
last year 

-

During the year, Profitability has improved 
as compared to last year.  

During the year, Profitability has improved 
as compared to last year.  

Reasons for variance of above 25%
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(Rs. in lakhs )
45 Particulars  As at 

March 31, 2025
Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

122.44                             -91.23                           
1,02,43,425.00             1,02,43,425.00           

1.20                                 -0.89                              
10.00                              10.00                            
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(i)

a)

Name of related party Nature of relationship

Yasons Chemex Care Limited Subsidiary Company
Yash Chem Controlled by Key Managerial Persons 
Yashwantlal C. Shah HUF Controlled by Key Managerial Persons 
Pritesh Shah HUF Controlled by Key Managerial Persons  - Pritesh Y. Shah (HUF) is a Propritior
Pritesh Yashwantbhai Shah Key Managerial Person (Managing Director & Chief Financial Officer)

 Dimple Pritesh Shah 
 Jinal Dineshbhai Shah 
 Angee Shah 
 Kiritkumar Shah 
Paxal P. Shah
Smit Shah Key Managerial Person (Independent Director) of subsidiary Company

vinodkumar Key Managerial Person (Independent Director) of subsidiary Company

Yash Corporation Pritesh Y. Shah (HUF) is a Propritior
Rishit Ploysurf LLP
Riddhi Shah Key Managerial Person (Company Secretary for period from 10th April, 2024 to May 25,2025)
Pragati Jain Key Managerial Person (Company Secretary w.e.f  August 13,2024)

(ii)

(Rs. in lakhs )

Name of related party  Nature of Transaction 
 Year Ended March 31, 

2025
Rs. 

 Year Ended March 
31, 2024

Rs. 
Yasons Chemex Care Limited  Sales of Goods                               500.33                           805.75 

Purchase of Goods 351.76                             605.70                          

 Yash Chem  Sales of Goods                               115.89                              67.10 
Purchase of goods 257.75                             179.27                          

 Yash Corporation  Sales of Goods                                 90.22                              63.23 
Purchase of goods 235.75                             172.95                          

 Rishit Polysurf LLP  Sales of Goods  116.79                             127.98                          
Purchase of goods 211.63                             208.81                          

 Himali Thakkar  Key Managerial Person (Company Secretary of 
Subsidiary Company) 

                                      -                                  3.28 

 Jinal Dineshbhai Shah Director's Sitting Fees 0.30                                 0.40                               
 Angee Shah Director's Sitting Fees -                                   0.25                               
 Rushabh Anilbhai Shah  Director's Sitting Fees 0.30                                 0.30                               

 Transactions during the period and balances outstanding with related parties are as under:

Transactions with related parties during the year:

 Key Managerial Person (Chief Financial Officer) 

Yasons Chemex Care Limited (Designated Partner and Pritesh Y. Shah is a Nominnee)

Notes to standalone financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Net Profit for calculation of basic / diluted EPS 
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares in calculating Basic and Diluted EPS
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share 
Nominal Value of Equity Shares

Related Party Disclosures and Their Relatives 

Related Party Disclosures as required by Accounting Standard Ind AS 24 issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India are given below:

Related Parties and Nature of Relationship

The Enterprises in which Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and their relatives have significant influence:

Relative of Key managerial person

 Key Managerial Person (Director) 
 Key Managerial Person (Independent Director) 
 Key Managerial Person (Independent Director) 
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(iii) Balances outstanding at each reporting date 
(Rs. in lakhs )

 Name of party  Nature of Amount 
 As at 

March 31, 2025
Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Yasons Chemex Care Limited  (Advance from Customers) / Receivables (81.40)                             (127.17)                        
 Investment                               893.24                           893.24 

 Angee Shah   Director's Sitting Fees (0.15)                               (0.18)                             

46.9

47.9

48.9

49.9

50.9

51.9

a.

b.

52.9

a.

b.

53.9

54.9

The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:

Note: Figures in bracket denotes credit balance.

The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami
property.

The company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of accout which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has been operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, there are no instances of audit trail being
tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail of prior year(s) has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention
to the extent it was enabled and recorded in the respective years.

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

Subsequent Events : Subsequent to Balance Sheet Date, there are no events occurred which require disclosure or adjustments in the financial
statements.

The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during
the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act,
1961
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(Rs. in lakhs )

Name of 
the Bank 

Quarter

Particulars
of

securities
provided

 Amount
as per

books of
accounts 

 Amount as
reported in
quarterly
return/

statement 

 Amount
of

difference 

Reason for material
discrepancies

Axis Bank 
Limited April to June 2024 Book Debts              1,880.37 1,711.94                                168.43 

Axis Bank 
Limited 

July to September 
2024 Book Debts              2,239.22 2,183.95                                  55.26 

Axis Bank 
Limited 

October to 
December 2024 Book Debts              1,771.95 1,839.47                   -              67.52 

Axis Bank 
Limited 

January to March 
2025 Book Debts              1,566.52 1,854.97                   -           288.45 

Name of 
the Bank 

Quarter

Particulars
of

securities
provided

 Amount
as per

books of
accounts 

 Amount as
reported in
quarterly
return/

statement 

 Amount
of

difference 

Reason for material
discrepancies

Axis Bank 
Limited April to June 2024 Inventories                 736.95 736.91                                       0.04 
Axis Bank 
Limited 

July to September 
2024 Inventories                 827.33 827.33                                           -   

Axis Bank 
Limited 

October to 
December 2024 Inventories                 981.26 981.24                                       0.02 

Axis Bank 
Limited 

January to March 
2025 Inventories                 878.50 578.49                                   300.02 
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For, S. L. Patel & Co For, Yash Chemex Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regd. No.119211W SD/- SD/-

Pritesh Y. Shah Dimple P Shah 
 Director

(DIN: 00239665) (DIN: 06914755)
SD/-
Shaileshkumar L. Patel  
Proprietor SD/-
M. No.106081

Membership Number:A70953
Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad
Date : May 27,2025 Date : May 27,2025

Notes to standalone financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Managing Director and CFO

Pragati Jain
Company Secretary

As per our report of even date attached.

Borrowing based on security of current assets 
Details of quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with bank: 

Approval of the Standalone Financial Statements: The Standalone Financial Statements were approved for issue by the board of directors 
on May 27,2025.

Previous year's figures have been regrouped/re-arranged/recasted, wherever necessary, so as to make them comparable with current 
year's figures.

The quarterly statements are 
submitted to banks were prepared 
and filed before the completion of 
financial statement closure activities 
including Ind AS adjustments / 
reclassification and regrouping as 
applicable, which led to these 
difference between final books of 
accounts and provisional quarterly 
statement submitted to banks.

Mainly due change in the basis of 
valuation of inventories and Ind AS 
impact during the course of audit.



 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 

To the Members of  
Yash Chemex Limited 
 
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Yash Chemex Limited (“the 
Holding Company”), its subsidiary (hereinafter “The Holding and its subsidiary” together referred to as 
the “Group”) which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31 2025, the Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of 
Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended, including 
summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information. (herein after referred as 
“the consolidated financial statements”). 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its profit, total 
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards 
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of 
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that 
the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 
on the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in 
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
 
We have determined that there is no key audit matter to communicate in our report. 
 
Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the Other Information. The Other 
Information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s 
Report, but does not include the Consolidated Financial Statements and our auditor’s reports thereon. 

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the Other Information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 



 
 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information, compare with the financial statements of the subsidiary audited by the other 
auditor, to the extent it relates to these subsidiary and, in doing so, place reliance on the work of the 
other auditors and consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. Other information so far as it relates to the subsidiary is 
traced from their financial statements audited by the other auditor. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
Other Information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors and those charged with Governance for 
the Consolidated Financial Statements 
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors and management is responsible for the matters stated in 
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these Consolidated 
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated 
financial performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and 
consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act, for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgement and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively or ensuring 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of 
the  Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of 
the consolidated financial statements by the Management and Board of Directors of the Holding 
Company, as aforesaid. 
 
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors 
of the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of respective entities to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Management and Board of Directors either 
intends to liquidate their respective company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 
to do so. 

 
The respective Management and Boards of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also 
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group of each company. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial 
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue 
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 
not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated Financial Statements. 
 



 
 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:  
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 
 Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, 
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Group have adequate 
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by the management. 
 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management and Board of Directors’ use of the going 
concern basis of accounting in preparation of the consolidated financial statements and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 
 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial 

Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities 
or business activities of Group to express an opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements. 
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial 
statements of such entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of which we are 
the independent auditors. For the other entities or business activities included in the 
consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by the other auditors, such other 
auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits 
carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 
 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements that, 
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the Consolidated Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in 
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 
 



 
 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding of the Holding Company and such 
other entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent 
auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit.  
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards.  
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period 
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication. 
 
Other Matters :- 
The accompanying consolidated financial statement include the Audited Financial Statement of one 
subsidiary whose financial statement reflect (before consolidation adjustments) Total assets of Rs. 
5,280.16 Lakhs as at March 31, 2025, Total revenues (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 1,750.35 
Lakhs and Rs.4,583.91 Lakhs, Total Profit After Tax (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 49.73 
Lakhs and Rs. 161.17 Lakhs, Total Comprehensive Income of (before consolidation adjustments) 
Rs.49.03 Lakhs and Rs. 160.47 Lakhs, for the Quarter and the Year ended March 31, 2025 respectively, 
and Net Cash Outflow of Rs. 5.46 Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2025, as considered in the 
Statement whose financial statements audited by the other auditor, which has been approved by the 
respective management of this entity and  have been furnished to us by the Management and our 
opinion on the audited consolidated financial statements in so far as it relates to the amounts and 
disclosures included in respect of this Subsidiary is based solely on the report of the auditor and the 
procedures performed by us as stated under auditor responsibilities section above. This Financial 
information is Material to the Group. 

  

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statement  is not modified in respect of the above matter with 
respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in 
the “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent 
applicable. 
 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief are necessary for the purpose of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the 
aforesaid consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books and reports of other auditor. 

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other 
comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated 
Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of accounts 
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements. 



 
 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 
2015, as amended. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding company 
as on March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding company and the 
reports of the statutory auditor of the subsidiary incorporated in India , none of the directors is 
disqualified as on  March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 
164(2) of the Act 
 

f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified 
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial 
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding company. 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 
requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the 
Holding Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 
197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our and according to the explanations given to us:  
 

i. The Consolidated Financial Statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its 
consolidated financial position of the Group in its Consolidated Financial Statements – Refer 
Note 38 to the Consolidated Financial Statements;  
 

ii. The Group do not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 
were any material foreseeable losses as at March 31, 2025. 
 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2025. 
 

iv.  (a) The respective Managements of the Group has represented that, to the best of its 
knowledge and belief, (Refer Note 53 to the consolidated financial statements), no funds 
(which are material either individually or in aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or 
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of 
funds) by the Group to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity 
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate 
beneficiaries. 
 
(b) The respective Managements of the Group has represented that, to the best of its 
knowledge and belief, (Refer Note 54 to the consolidated financial statements), no funds 
(which are material either individually or in aggregate) have been received by the Group from 
any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or 



 
 

indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by 
or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security 
or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries. 
 
(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in 
the circumstances performed by us, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to 
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under 
(a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement. 
 

v. (a) The Holding company had not proposed any final dividend in the previous year, which was 
declared and paid by the Holding Company during the year.  
(b) The Holding Company has not declared and paid any interim dividend during the year and 
until the date of this report. 
(c) The Board of Directors of the Holding Company have not proposed any final dividend for 
the year which is subject to approval of the members in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 
 

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Group have used accounting 
software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated 
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software (Refer Note 56 to 
the consolidated financial statements ). Further, during the course of our audit we did not 
come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit 
trail has been preserved by the Group as per statutory requirements for record retention. 

                
For, S. L. Patel & Co 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration Number:  119211W 
 
SD/- 
CA. Shaileshkumar L. Patel   
Proprietor 
Membership No. 106081 
UDIN:- 25106081BMGSTY2056 
 
Place : Ahmedabad,                

            Date  : May 27,2025  
 

                                                      Annexure ‘A’ to the Independent Auditors’  

Referred to in paragraph “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements section of our 
report to the members of Yash Chemex Limited of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (1) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”) 

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the 
year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
Yash Chemex Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiary company which is incorporated in India as 
of that date. 
 
Opinion: 



 
 

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based 
on the consideration of the report of the other auditor referred to in the Other Matters paragraph 
below, the Holding company, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to 
consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the criteria 
for internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements established by the 
Holding company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
issued by the ICAI. 
 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls: 
The respective Board of Directors of the Holding, its subsidiary company, which is a company 
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with 
reference to consolidated financial statements based on the internal control with reference to 
consolidated financial statements criteria established by the respective Companies considering the 
essential  of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business,  including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies 
Act, 2013. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility: 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to 
consolidated financial statements of the Holding, its subsidiary , based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing, 
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects. 
 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. 
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other 
auditor of the subsidiary company, in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph 
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial 
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding company. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting: 



 
 

The Holding company’s internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is 
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial 
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, 
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and 
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations 
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets 
that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting: 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated 
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of 
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections 
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements 
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to 
consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate 
 
Other Matters 
Our aforesaid reports under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act on the adequacy and 
reporting effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting in so far as it relates to 
an one subsidiary company incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding report of the auditor 
of such subsidiary company incorporated in India. 
  
Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters. 
 
For, S. L. Patel & Co 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration Number:  119211W 
 
SD/- 
CA. Shaileshkumar L. Patel   
Proprietor 
Membership No. 106081 
UDIN:- 25106081BMGSTY2056 
 
Place : Ahmedabad,                
Date  : May 27,2025  

 
                                                           Annexure ‘B’ to the Independent Auditors’  

(Referred to in paragraph “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements section of our 
report to the members of Yash Chemex Limited  of even date) 

With respect to matters specified in paragraph 3 (xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 
2020 (“the Order” or “CARO”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub- section (11) 
of section 143 of the Act, according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the 
CARO reports issued by the respective auditor of company included in the consolidated financial 
statements, to which reporting under CARO is applicable, we report that as provided to us by the 



 
 

Management of the Holding company, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks by 
the respective auditor in the CARO reports of the said respective companies included in the 
consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xxi) of the Order 
is not applicable to the Holding Company. 
 
For, S. L. Patel & Co 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration Number:  119211W 
 
SD/- 
CA. Shaileshkumar L. Patel   
Proprietor 
Membership No. 106081 
UDIN:- 25106081BMGSTY2056 
 
Place : Ahmedabad,                
Date  : May 27,2025  

  
 



YASH CHEMEX LIMITED

(Rs. in lakhs )

 Note 
No. 

 Year Ended                
31.03.2025                 Rs.                      

 Year Ended                
31.03.2024                 

Rs.                      

 A 
  1 

(a)  Property, plant and equipment  5                              414.63                            402.21 
(b)  Capital Work-in-progress                                        -                                       -   
(c)  Financial assets  Goodwill                                 74.57                              74.57 
(d)  Financial assets 

(i)     Investments 6                           1,094.84                         1,051.97 
(ii)  Other financial assets 7                                24.82                              44.27 

(e) Deferred Tax Assets 8                                   4.35                                     -   
(f) Non Current Asstes 9                                       -                                  1.68 

 Total non - current assets 1,613.21                         1,574.69                      
  2 Current assets 

(a) Inventories 10                           2,116.84                         1,731.51 
(b) Financial assets 

(i) Trade receivables 11                           4,199.49                         4,106.32 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 12                                23.88                              22.63 
 (iii) Bank balances other than cash and 
cash equivalents 

13                              217.68                            107.22 

(c) Current Tax Assets (net) 14                                       -                                  5.13 
(d) Other current assets 15                              339.71                            178.35 

 Total current assets 6,897.60                         6,151.16                      
                          8,510.81                       7,725.85 

 B 
  1 EQUITY

(a) Equity share capital 16                           1,024.34                         1,024.34 
17                           2,740.34                         2,530.33 

3,764.68                         3,554.67                      

                          1,974.33                         1,896.44 
5,739.01                         5,451.11                      

LIABILITIES 
  2 Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities
(i)   Borrowings 18                                       -                                45.82 
(ii)  Deferred Payment Liabilities 19                              172.19                            196.78 

(b) Provisions 20                                   9.93                                8.07 
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 21                                53.20                              33.78 

 Total non - current liabilities 235.32                            284.45                         
  3 Current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities
(i)   Borrowings 22                           1,205.85                            945.94 
(ii)  Trade payables 23                                    -   
 - Total Outstanding dues of  Small 
Enterprises & Medium Enterprises 

                                      -                                       -   

YASH CHEMEX LIMITED
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

 Total assets (1+2) 

 Particulars 

 ASSETS 
 Non-current assets 

 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

 (b)  Other equity  
 Equity attributable to equity holders of the 
company 

(c ) Non-controlling interest
Total equity



YASH CHEMEX LIMITED

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
 - Total Outstanding dues of creditors 
other than Small Enterprises & Medium 
Enterprises 

                          1,071.17                            999.67 

 (iii) Other financial liabilities                                         -                                       -   
(b) Other current liabilities 24                              212.01                              44.33 
(c) Provisions 25                                   0.36                                0.35 
(d) Current tax liabilities (Net) 26                                47.09                                     -   

 Total current liabilities 2,536.48                         1,990.29                      
Total equity and liabilities (1+2+3)                           8,510.81                       7,725.85 

As per our Report of even date attached.
For,  S. L. Patel & Co For, Yash Chemex Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regd. No.119211W SD/- SD/-

Pritesh Y. Shah Dimple P Shah
 Managing Director and 
CFO 

 Director 

 (DIN: 00239665)  (DIN:06914755)

Proprietor SD/-
M. No.106081 Pragati Jain 

Company Secretary
Membership Number:A61567  

Place : Ahmedabad Place: Ahmedabad
Date : May 27,2025  Date : May 27,2025 

 The accompanying notes are an integral part of 
financial statements   

 Summary of material acounting policies 
1 to 64

 Shaileshkumar L. Patel   

SD/-



YASH CHEMEX LIMITED

(Rs. in lakhs )
 Note 
No.   Year Ended  31.03.2025

Rs. 

  Year Ended  
31.03.2024

Rs. 

INCOME 
I Revenue from operations 27          9,528.29                              9,490.92                         
II Other income 28          224.46                                 161.65                             
III Total income 9,752.75                              9,652.57                         

EXPENSES
(a) Cost of materials consumed 29          1,346.87                              3,199.47                         
(b) 30          7,926.50                              6,224.09                         
(c) 31          (244.90)                                (243.50)                           

(d) Employee benefit expense 32          83.16                                   75.93                               
(e) Finance costs 33          155.84                                 154.87                             
(f) 34          9.89                                     11.37                               

(g) Other expenses 35          87.33                                   237.42                             
IV Total expenses 9,364.69                              9,659.65                         
V Profit\(Loss) Before Tax 388.06                                  (7.08)

Tax expense 36          
(1)   Current tax 83.41                                   35.91                               
(2)   Deferred tax charge\(credit) 13.64                                   -86.02
(3)   Tax In Respect of Earlier Year 7.40                                     10.17                               

VI Total tax expense 104.45                                 (39.94)
VII Profit for the period (V-VI) 283.61                                 32.86                               

Other comprehensive income
(i) -                                       

4.52                                     53.19                               

1.20                                     18.98                               

(ii) (1.44)                                                                  (18.16)

VIII 4.28                                     54.01                               
IX

287.89                                 86.87                               

X Profit for the year attributable to
Equity holders of the company 205.39                                                                (27.36)
Non-controlling interest 78.22                                    60.22                               

XI

Equity holders of the company 4.62                                      54.59                               
Non-controlling interest                                     (0.34) -0.59                                

 Remeasurements of the defined 
benefit plans 

Total other comprehensive income
 Total comprehensive income for the period 
(VII+VIII) 

 Other comprehensive income attributable 
to 

 Items that will not be reclassified to 
profit or loss 

 Income tax relating to items that will 
not be reclassified to profit or loss 

Particulars

 Purchases of stock-in-trade 
Changes in inventories of finished

goods and stock-in-trade  

 Depreciation and amortisation 
expense 

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

YASH CHEMEX LIMITED

Equity instruments through other
comprehensive income 



YASH CHEMEX LIMITED

XII

Equity holders of the company 210.01                                  27.24                               
Non-controlling interest 77.88                                    59.64                               

XIII 46          

(1)  Basic 2.01                                                                      (0.27)
(2)  Diluted 2.01                                                                      (0.27)

Material Accounting Policies 

As per our Report of even date attached.
For,  S. L. Patel & Co For, Yash Chemex Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regd. No.119211W SD/- SD/-

Pritesh Y. Shah Dimple P Shah

Director
SD/- (DIN: 00239665) (DIN:06914755)

Proprietor SD/-
M. No.106081

Membership Number:A61567  
Place : Ahmedabad Place: Ahmedabad
Date : May 27,2025 Date : May 27,2025

Pragati Jain 

Company Secretary

 1 to 64 

 Shaileshkumar L. Patel   

 Basic & diluted earnings per share of face 
value of Rs.10 each fully paid up 

 Total comprehensive income attributable 
to 

 The accompanying notes are an 
integral part of financial statements   

 Managing Director and CFO 



YASH CHEMEX LIMITED

 Cash flow from operating activities 
 Profit\(Loss) Before Tax                                  388.06                                (7.08)
 Adjustments for : 

                                      9.89                               11.37 
 Provision for Expected Credit Loss                                   (22.92)                               18.08 
 Finance costs                                  155.84                             154.87 
 Dividend Income                                           -                                  (0.46)
Share of Profit from Investment In LLP                                   (90.09)                              (66.19)

 Interest income                                   (11.86)                                (6.90)
 Operating profit before working capital 428.92                                103.71                           

 Changes in operating assets and 
 (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories                                 (385.35)                           (360.91)

                                  (70.25)                           (729.98)
                                (249.49)                              (41.60)

 Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payable                                    71.50                           (696.03)
                                 169.55                               47.23 

 Cash flow generated from operations (35.12)                                 (1,677.58)                       

 Direct taxes paid (net)                                   (38.58)                              (80.65)
(73.70)                                 (1,758.23)                       

 Cash flows from investing activities 
                                  (22.30)                              (28.46)

 Interest Income                                     11.86                                  6.90 
 Dividend Income                                           -                                    0.46 

                                   51.74                             303.52 

41.30                                   282.42                           

 Cash flows from financing activities  
 Finance Costs Payment (155.84)                               (154.87)                          

                                          -                            1,712.63 

                                 189.49                              (70.19)

33.65                                   1,487.57                        

1.25                                     11.76                              

22.63                                   10.87                              

YASH CHEMEX LIMITED

NET INCREASED / (DECREASED) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(A + B + C)          
 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

 NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) 

 Availment \(Repayment) of Current & Non Current Borrowings 
(Net) 

 NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) 

 Year Ended  
31.03.2024

Rs. 

 Proceeds from Issue of Equity Shares (Including Security Premium 
Reserve  and Net of Issue of Shares (IPO) Expenses) 

 (Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables  

 Proceeds From Sale of Non Current Investments made during the 
year (net) 

 Particulars 

 (Increase)/Decrease in Other current financial assets , other current 
assets , Loans (Current + Non Current) 

 Increase/(Decrease) in other current financial liabitlies,  other 
current liabitlies , Provisions (Current + Non Current) 

 NET CASH FLOW FROM / (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) 

 Purchase of property, plant and equipments (Including CWIP) (Net) 

 Year Ended  31.03.2025
Rs. 

 Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 



YASH CHEMEX LIMITED

23.88                                   22.63                              

 Notes: 

For,  S. L. Patel & Co For, Yash Chemex Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regd. No.119211W SD/- SD/-

 Pritesh Y. Shah Dimple P Shah
 Managing Director and 
CFO 

Director

 (DIN: 00239665) (DIN:06914755)

SD/- SD/-
Shaileshkumar L. Patel  Pragati Jain 
Proprietor Company Secretary
M. No.106081 Membership Number:A70953

Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad
 Date : May 27,2025 Date : May 27,2025

 As per our Report of even date attached. 

 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

(i) The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Indian Accounting 

 (ii). Previous Period's / Year's figures have been re-grouped / Re-Classified where necessary to make it comparable with 
the current period. 

Cash Flow Statements specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.



Equity Share Capital
(Rs. in lakhs )

Particulars
Note 
No.

 Amount
Rs. 

As at March 31, 2023 16 1,024.34             
Changes due to prior period errors -                      
Restated Balance as April 1 ,2023 1,024.34             
Changes during the year 2023-24 -                      
As at March 31, 2024 16 1,024.34             
Changes due to prior period errors -                      
Restated Balance as April 1 ,2024 1,024.34             
Changes during the year 2024-25 -                      
As at March 31, 2025 16 1,024.34             

Other Equity (Rs. in lakhs )

 Retained 
Earnings 

Security 
Premium

Equity
Instruments
through Other
Comprehensive
Income

Remeasurement 
of Defined Benefit 
Plant 

Balance as at March 31, 2023 17 1,387.86             163.22        343.95                  4.66                        1,899.69              
(Loss) for the year -27.36 -              -                        -                          -27.36
Other comprehensive income for the
year (Net of Tax)

-              39.80                    14.79                      54.60                    

Add : Effect of Movement in NCI During
the year

603.40                -              -                        -                          603.40                  

Balance as at March 31, 2024 17 1,963.90             163.22        383.76                  19.45                     2,530.33              
Profit for the year 205.39                 -              -                        -                          205.39                  
Other comprehensive income for the
year (Net of Tax)

-              1.23                       3.38                        4.62                      

Balance as at March 31, 2025 17 2,169.29             163.22        385.00                  22.83                     2,740.34              

In terms of our report attached. 
For,  S. L. Patel & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regd. No.119211W

SD/- SD/-
Pritesh Y. Shah Dimple P.Shah

Director
(DIN:06914755)

SD/- SD/-
 Shaileshkumar L. Patel   
 Proprietor 
 M. No.106081 

Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad
Date : May 27,2025 Date : May 27,2025

YASH CHEMEX LIMITED

Company Secretary

Managing Director
(DIN: 00239665)

 Pragati Jain  

Membership Number:A61567  

Other Components of Equity

For, Yash Chemex Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on March 31, 2025

Particulars
Note 
No.

Reserves and Surplus

Total



YASH CHEMEX LIMITED

Note 5:   Property, Plant and Equipment
(Rs. in lakhs )

 Gross Carrying Value as on 
March 31, 2023 44.24           309.51         40.40            8.42                           67.05 3.68                   6.11             2.56                     481.96 
 Addition during the year -                26.77           -                 -                 1.69                   -               -            28.46            
 Deduction during the year -                -                -                 -                 -                     -               -            -                 
 Gross Carrying Value as on 
March 31, 2024 44.24           336.28         40.40            8.42                           67.05 5.37                   6.11             2.56                     510.42 
 Addition during the year 0.98              19.69           -                 -                 0.60               1.03                   -               -            22.30            
 Deduction during the year -                -                -                 -                 -                     -               -            -                 
 Gross Carrying Value as on 
March 31, 2025 45.22           355.97         40.40            8.42                           67.65 6.40                   6.11             2.56                     532.72 

 Accumulated depreciation as 
on March 31, 2023 38.22           -                17.64            2.25              27.08            3.49                   5.77             2.37          96.82            
 Addition during the year 1.74              -                1.07               0.59               7.47               0.47                   -               0.04          11.38            
 Deduction during the year -                -                -                 -                 -                     -               -            -                

 Accumulated depreciation as 
on March 31, 2024 39.96           -                18.71            2.84              34.55            3.96                   5.77             2.41          108.20          

 Addition during the year 1.23              -                1.02               0.53               6.14               0.96                   -               -            9.88              

 Deduction during the year -                -                -                 -                 -                     -               -            -                
 Accumulated depreciation as 
on March 31, 2025 42.93           -                20.80            3.96              48.16            5.39                   5.77             2.45          118.08          

 Net Carrying Value as on 
March 31, 2024               4.28           336.28              21.69                5.58              32.50                     1.42               0.34           0.15            402.21 

 Net Carrying Value as on 
March 31, 2025               2.29           355.97              19.60                4.46              19.49                     1.01               0.34           0.11            414.63 

Vehicles
Furniture 

& 
Fixtures

Total Office 
Equipments

Office 
Building

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

ComputersParticulars
Plant &  

Machinery 

Free Hold 
Land - 

Saykha GIDC

Factory 
Building



YASH CHEMEX LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025
Notes:               0.02                    -                       -                       -                       -                       0.01              -0.00           0.00                     -   

5.2. Capitalised borrowing cost:

5.4.  All the title deeds for the immovable properties are in the name of the Company.

5.5.  The Company has not done revaluation of PPE / Intangible assets.

Refer Note. 18,19, & 22 for disclosure of assets given as security.
5.1. Assets Given as security:

Refer Note. 37  for disclosure of Contractual Commitments for the acquisition of property, Plant & Equipment.

5.3. Contractual obligations:

Borrowing Cost Capitalised on Property, Plant and Equipment during the year ended March 31, 2025 - Rs. Nil/- 
(for the year ended March 31, 2024: Rs. Nil/-).



YASH CHEMEX LIMITED

(Rs. in lakhs )

6          As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

                           814.97                         724.88 

                           274.74 322.78                       

                                2.24                             2.01 

Bajaj Finance Limited                                 0.45                                 -   

Bajaj Finserve Limited                                 0.10                                 -   

                                2.34                             2.30 

1,094.84                       1,051.97                    
Aggregate amount of qouted investment - At cost                              68.43                           79.32 
Aggregate amount of Unqouted investment - At cost                            814.97                         724.88 

7         Other Non-current financial assets  As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Security Deposits 24.82                             25.58                         
                                    -   18.69                         
                             24.82                           44.27 

8         Deferred Tax Assets  As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

 5 shares as on 31-03-2025,(Nil Shares as on 31-03-2024) of face value  
Rs. 10 each fully paid up. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

 Capital Contributions in Subsidiary LLP (unquoted) 
 Investment in Subsidiary LLP at cost 

 Rishit Polysurf LLP 

 Mahickra Chemical Ltd. 

 Non-current Investments 

 Investments in Equity Instruments at fair value through other 
comprehensive income (Quoted)  

4000 shares as on 31-03-2025,(4000 shares as on 31-03-2024) of face
value  Rs. 10 each fully paid up. 

 5 shares as on 31-03-2025,(Nil Shares as on 31-03-2024) of face value  
Rs. 10 each fully paid up. 

 
217250 shares as on 31-03-2025,(261500 shares as on 31-03-2024 ) of
face value  Rs. 10 each fully paid up. 

Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity (Balance held as 

Unsecured and considered good

 3488 shares as on 31-03-2025,(5000 shares as on 31-03-2024 ) of face 
value  Rs. 10 each fully paid up. 

 Ushanti Colour Chem Ltd 

 Total 

 Total 

Deferred Tax Assets

 Sofcom System Limited. 



YASH CHEMEX LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

                                0.81                                 -   

                                1.60                                 -   

                                1.94                                 -   

4.35                               -                             

                                    -                                   -   

                                    -                                   -   

-                                                                 -   
Net Deferred Tax Assets                                 4.35                                 -   

8.01    Note i. Movement of deferred tax liability:  (Rs. in lakhs ) 
 Time difference of 
depreciation as per 

Tax Provision and 
Company Law on 

Property, Plant and 
Equipment 

                            0.70 

0.48                           
                                -   

                            1.18 

                            0.42 
                                -   

                            1.60 

8.02    Note i. Movement of deferred tax liability:  (Rs. in lakhs ) 
 Unpaid liability  

allowable on payment 
basis in succeding 

years u/s. 43B of the 
Income tax Act, 1961 

 Allowance for 
Expected Credit Loss 

on Trade 
Receivables 

                              (0.19)                             0.65 

1.27                               6.29                           
                                    -                                   -   

                                1.08                             6.94 

Total Deferred Tax Assets

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities

 Particulars 

 At March 31, 2025 

 to other comprehensive income 
 At March 31, 2024  
(Charged) / credited:
to profit or loss

 to other comprehensive income 

 Movements in Deferred Tax Liabilities 

 At March 31, 2023  
(Charged) / credited:

 At March 31, 2023  

 Allowance for Expected Credit Loss on Trade Receivables 

 Time difference of depreciation as per Tax Provision and Company 
Law on Property, Plant and Equipment 

 Unpaid liability  allowable on payment basis in succeding years u/s. 
43B of the Income tax Act, 1961 

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Time difference of depreciation as per Tax Provision and Company

Law on Property, Plant and Equipment 

to profit or loss
 to other comprehensive income 
 At March 31, 2024  
(Charged) / credited:

(Charged) / credited:
to profit or loss

 Fair Valuation of investment in Equity Instruments 



YASH CHEMEX LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

                                0.86                           (6.14)
                                    -                                   -   

                                1.94                             0.81 

to profit or loss
 to other comprehensive income 
 At March 31, 2025 



YASH CHEMEX LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

9         Non-Current Assets  As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Advances for Capital Goods Supplier -                                 1.68                           
                                    -                               1.68 

10        As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Raw materials 468.84                           328.41                       
Work-in-Process 0.24                               -                             
Finished Stock 272.74                           440.61                       
Stores & Others 13.19                             13.11                         
Stock in Trade 1,361.83                       949.38                       

                        2,116.84 1,731.51                    

(Rs. in lakhs )
11        As at 

March 31, 2025
Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 
Unsecured,
Considered Good 4,199.49                       4,106.32                    
Credit impaired 8.16                               31.08                         

4,207.65                       4,137.40                    
Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss (8.16)                              (31.08)                        

4,199.49                       4,106.32                    
 Notes: 

11.01  Allownace Movement for Trade Receivables  As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

 Balance at the beginning of the                              31.08                           13.00 
Add : Allowance made during the year                                     -                             18.08 
Less : Reversal of allowance made during the year                             (39.24)                                 -   

 Closing Balance                               (8.16) 31.08                         

 i. For Dues from Related Parties ,- Refer Note No -47  and for Ageing analysis Refer Note No :-57 
ii. The Fair Values of Trade Receivables are not considered to be significantly different from their carrying values,
given their generally short period to maturity, with impairment reviews considered on an individual basis rather
than when these become overdue.
iii. The Company provides an allowance for impairment of doubtful accounts based on financial condition of the
customer, aging of the trade receivable and historical experience of collections from customers.

Unsecured and considered good

 Total 

 Total 

Trade receivables

 Total 

Inventories

The activity in the allowance for impairment of trade receivables is given below:



YASH CHEMEX LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Rs. in lakhs )
12       Cash & Cash Equivalents  As at 

March 31, 2025
Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Balances with Bank - In Current Account 1.36                               1.36                           
Cash on hand 22.52                             21.27                         

                             23.88 22.63                         

13       Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents  As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

                           217.68 107.22                       

                           217.68 107.22                       

14        As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Advance tax (net of income tax provisions)                                     -                               5.13 
-                                 5.13                           

15       Other Current Assets  As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Advances to Suppliers Other than Capital Advance 230.94                           11.90                         
Prepaid Expenses 1.27                               1.28                           
Balances with Statutory Authorities 106.10                           149.60                       
Others 1.40                               15.56                         

                           339.71 178.35                       

 Current Tax Assets (net)

 Total 

 Total 

 Total 

 Fixed deposits with banks (with original maturity more than 3 months 
but less than 12 months) 

 Unsecured, considered good 

 Total 



YASH CHEMEX LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Rs. in lakhs )
16        As at 

March 31, 2025
Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

                        3,211.11 3,211.11                    

                                    -   

                        1,024.34 1,024.34                    

                        1,024.34 1,024.34                    

16.01  

No of Shares (Rs. in lakhs )
1,02,43,425.00            1,024.34                    

-                                 -                             
-                                 -                             

1,02,43,425.00            1,024.34                    

16.02  

No of Shares (Rs. in lakhs )
1,02,43,425.00            1,024.34                    

-                                 -                             
-                                 -                             

1,02,43,425.00            1,024.34                    

Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital as at March 31, 2025 is set out
below:- 

 Shares at the end 

110,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each as at March 31,2025
(110,00,000  Equity shares of Rs. 10 each as at March 31, 2024) 

 As at March 31, 2025 

Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital as at March 31, 2024 is set out
below:- 

Particulars  As at March 31, 2024 

 Shares at the beginning 
Addition
Deletion

 Shares at the end 

Addition

[i]Authorised Share Capital:

 Shares at the beginning 

 Total 

Equity Share Capital

[ii] Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Capital  :

Deletion

Particulars

1,02,43,425 equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid as at March 31,
2025 (1,02,43,425 equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid as at March
31,2024) 



YASH CHEMEX LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

16.02  

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

Nos. 3442282
% 33.60                         

Nos. 366080
% 3.57                           

Nos. 799264
% 7.80                           

Nos. 721365
% 7.04                           

Nos. 1124229
% 10.98                         

 The details of shares held by Parent Company and shareholders holding more than 5% shares is set out below as at 
March 31, 2025.  

Pritesh Y Shah

Yashvantbhai  C Shah

Dimple P Shah

Pritesh Y Shah HUF

Yashvantbhai  C Shah HUF



YASH CHEMEX LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

16.03  

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Nos. 2552720
% 24.92                         

Nos. 1255642
% 12.26                         

Nos. 799264
% 7.80                           

Nos. 721365
% 7.04                           

Nos. 1055283
% 10.30                         

16.04  
Particulars  % Change During the year  

As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Pritesh Y Shah Nos. -                                              25,52,720.00                25,52,720.00            
% -                                              24.92                             24.92                         

Pritesh Y Shah HUF Nos. -                                              12,55,642.00                12,55,642.00            
% -                                              12.26                             12.26                         

Yashvantbhai  C Shah HUF Nos. -                                              7,99,264.00                  7,99,264.00              
% -                                              7.80                               7.80                           

Yashvantbhai  C Shah Nos. -                                              7,21,365.00                  7,21,365.00              
% -                                              7.04                               7.04                           

Dimple P Shah Nos. 68,946.00                                  11,24,229.00                10,55,283.00            
% 0.67                                            10.98                             10.30                         

Chandrika Yashvantlal Shah Nos. -                                              60,000.00                     60,000.00                 
% -                                              0.59                               0.59                           

Paxal Shah Nos. 10,823.00                                  73,823.00                     63,000.00                 
% 0.11                                            0.72                               0.62                           

16.05  
Particulars  % Change During the year  

As at 
March 31, 2024 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2023

Rs. 

Yashvantbhai  C Shah

Dimple P Shah

 The details of shares held by Parent Company and shareholders holding more than 5% shares is set out below as at 
March 31, 2024.  

Pritesh Y Shah

Pritesh Y Shah HUF

Yashvantbhai  C Shah HUF

 The details of Promoters holding shares In the company  is set out below.  

 The details of Promoters holding shares In the company  is set out below.  
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Pritesh Y Shah Nos. -                                              25,52,720.00                25,52,720.00            
% -                                              24.92                             24.92                         

Pritesh Y Shah HUF Nos. 102.00                                        12,55,642.00                12,55,540.00            
% 0.00                                            12.26                             12.26                         

Yashvantbhai  C Shah HUF Nos. -                                              7,99,264.00                  7,99,264.00              
% -                                              7.80                               7.80                           

Yashvantbhai  C Shah Nos. -                                              7,21,365.00                  7,21,365.00              
% -                                              7.04                               7.04                           

Dimple P Shah Nos. 1,93,806.00                               10,55,283.00                8,61,477.00              
% 1.89                                            10.30                             8.41                           

Chandrika Yashvantlal Shah Nos. -                                              60,000.00                     60,000.00                 
% -                                              0.59                               0.59                           

Paxal Shah Nos. (10,823.00)                                 63,000.00                     73,823.00                 
% (0.11)                                           0.62                               0.72                           

16.06  

16.07  

16.08  

16.09  

16.10  

16.11  

16.12  

The Company has not reserved any share for issue under options and contracts or commitments for the sale of
shares or disinvestment. 

 Aggregate number and class of shares bought back :- Nil 

 Aggregate Value of Calls unpaid by directors and officers :- Nil 

 Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid by way of Bonus Shares :- Nil 

Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contracts without payment being
received in cash :- Nil 

Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contracts without payment being
received in cash :- Nil 

 Securities which are convertible into Equity Shares :- Nil 
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(Rs. in lakhs )
17        As at 

March 31, 2025
Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Security Premium
                           163.22 163.22                       
                                    -   -                             
                                    -   -                             

Closing Balance 163.22                          163.22                       

Surplus in Statement of Profit & Loss :
                        1,963.91 1,387.87                    
                           205.39 (27.36)                        
                                    -                           603.40 

2,169.30                       1,963.91                    

Other Comprehensive Income
                           403.20 348.60                       
                                4.62 54.59                         
                           407.82 403.20                       

2,577.12                       2,367.11                    
                        2,740.34 2,530.33                    

Securities Premium: The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in equity 

Retained earnings: Retained earnings can be utilised by the company for distribution to its equity shareholders of 

 Less: Utilised During the year  

Net Surplus in the statement of profit and loss 

 Net Surplus in the statement of other comprehensive income  

 Add : Effect of Movement in NCI During the year  

 Add : Received during the year 

Being realised in cash, the same can be utilised by the company for issuance of bonus shares and writing of share
issue expenses.

The amount that can be distributed by the Company as dividends to its equity shareholders is determined based on
the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. Thus, the amounts reported above are not distributable in entirety.

net of amounts reclassified to retained earnings when such assets are disposed off.It also includes re-measurement
loss and gain on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to profit and loss.

 Balance as per last Consolidated Financial Statement 

 Balance as per last Consolidated Financial Statement 
 Add : Profit\(Loss) for the year 

Other Comprehensive Income: This represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on the revaluation of equity 

 Other Equity 

 Balance as per last Consolidated Financial Statement 

 Total  

 Add: Other Comprehensive Income For the Year (Net of Taxes) 
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 (Rs. in lakhs ) 

18       Non-Current Borrowings

                                    -   21.99                         
Secured Borrowing from Banks                                     -   23.83                         

-                                 45.82                         
Unsecured Borrowings:

19       

Secured 
172.19                           196.78                       

Total 172.19                          196.78                       

20       

9.93                               8.07                           
Total 9.93                               8.07                           

21       Deferred Tax Liability (Net)  As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

                                1.25                           27.00 
                                    -                               1.18 

                                0.65                             2.12 

1.90                               30.30                         

Business loan is unsecured and payable as per agreed repayment schedule ranging from 12 Months to 36 Months
monthly installments carry interest rate ranging from 8.00% to 17.00% p.a.

 Deferred payment for acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Deferred Payment Liabilities

Non-Current Provisions  As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Secured and payable as per agreed repayment schedule of 120 Months, Quarterly Installments carry interest rate 
ranging from 10.00 % to 11.00 % p.a.

 As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

 Unpaid liability  allowable on payment basis in succeding years u/s. 
43B of the Income tax Act, 1961 

 Provision for Gratuity 

Deferred Tax Assets

 Time difference of depreciation as per Tax Provision and Company 
Law on Property, Plant and Equipment 

 Allowance for Expected Credit Loss on Trade Receivables 

Total Deferred Tax Assets

 Total 

 As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 Unsecured Borrowing from Banks 
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                                1.89                             1.72 

                             53.21                           62.36 

55.10                                                       64.08 
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities                              53.20                           33.78 

 Fair Valuation of investment in Equity Instruments 

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities

Time difference of depreciation as per Tax Provision and Company
Law on Property, Plant and Equipment 

Deferred Tax Liabilities



YASH CHEMEX LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

21.01  Note i. Movement of deferred tax liability:  (Rs. in lakhs ) 
 Fair Valuation of 

investment in Equity 
Instruments 

 Time difference of 
depreciation as per 

Tax Provision and 
Company Law on 

Property, Plant and 
Equipment 

                         (109.49)                           (1.52)

-                                 (0.20)                          
                             47.13                                 -   

                            (62.36)                           (1.72)

-                                                           (0.17)
                                9.15                                 -   

                            (53.21)                           (1.89)

21.02  Note i. Movement of deferred tax liability:  (Rs. in lakhs ) 
 Unpaid liability  

allowable on payment 
basis in succeding 

years u/s. 43B of the 
Income tax Act, 1961 

 Allowance for 
Expected Credit Loss 

on Trade 
Receivables 

                                5.60                             2.62 

(4.56)                              17.44                         
                                    -                                   -   

                                1.04                           20.06 

                              (0.39)                         (18.81)
                                    -                                   -   

                                0.65                             1.25 

22       Current Borrowings  As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

                        1,172.19 775.22                       
                             33.66 170.72                       

                        1,205.85                         945.94 
Notes:

 Particulars 

 Total 

to profit or loss
 to other comprehensive income 

 At March 31, 2024  

 Secured From Banks - Cash Credit Facility  

(Charged) / credited:
 At March 31, 2023  

 At March 31, 2023  
(Charged) / credited:

 to other comprehensive income 
 At March 31, 2025 

 Current Maturity of long term borrowings  

 At March 31, 2024  
(Charged) / credited:
to profit or loss

(Charged) / credited:
to profit or loss

 to other comprehensive income 
 At March 31, 2025 

 Movements in Deferred Tax Liabilities 

to profit or loss
 to other comprehensive income 
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23       Trade payables  As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

                                    -   -                             
                        1,071.17 999.67                       

                        1,071.17                         999.67 

24       Other Current Liablities  As at  
 March 31, 2025 

Other Statutory dues 12.01                             44.33                         
Advance From Customers 200.00                           -                             

                           212.01                           44.33 

(Rs. in lakhs )
25       Current Provisions  As at  

 March 31, 2025 

Provisions for Gratuity 0.36                               0.35                           
                                0.36                             0.35 

26       Current Tax Liabilities (Net)  As at  
 March 31, 2025 

Provision For Income tax 47.09                             -                             
-                                 

                             47.09                                 -   

 Total 

 Total 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Note: Dues to Micro and Small enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on
the basis of the information collected by the Management. 

 Total 

This has been relied upon by the Auditors.For Disclosures as required under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006.- Refer Note - 43  and for Ageing analysis Refer Note No :-58

Cash Credit facility availed from Bank is secured by Charge on Fixed deposits, and Equitable mortgage of Office
Premises, Current and Future Assets of the companies & personal guarantee of Directors Mr. Pritesh Y Shah and
Yashwant C Shah having ROI ranging from 9.00% to 11.00%

 Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
 Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

 Total 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 
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(Rs. in lakhs )
27       Revenue from operation

Sale of Products 9,528.29                       9,490.92                    

 Total                         9,528.29                     9,490.92 

28       Other Income

Interest income 11.86                             6.90                           
Foreign Exchange Gain 0.24                               0.25                           
Other Income 2.81                               87.86                         
Dividend Income -                                 0.46                           
Commission Income 119.46                           -                             

90.09                             66.19                         

 Total                            224.46                         161.65 

29       Cost of Materials Consumed

Inventory at the beginning of the year 328.41                           211.00                       
Add: Purchase 1,487.30                       3,316.87                    
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 468.84                           (328.40)                      
Cost of Materials Consumed 1,346.87                       3,199.47                    

30       Purchase of Stock in Trade  Year Ended      March 
31, 2025

Rs. 

 Year Ended      
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Trading Purchase 7,926.50                       6,224.09                    
Total 7,926.50                       6,224.09                    

31        Year Ended      March 
31, 2025

Rs. 

 Year Ended      
March 31, 2024

Rs. 
Inventory at the beginning of the year

 Change In Inventories Of  Stock In Trade,Finished Goods and Packing 
Material Stock 

 Year Ended      
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

 Year Ended      
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

 Year Ended      March 
31, 2025

Rs. 

 Year Ended      March 
31, 2025

Rs. 

 Year Ended      March 
31, 2025

Rs. 

Share of Profit from Investment In LLP 

 Year Ended      
March 31, 2024

Rs. 



YASH CHEMEX LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Work-in-process 0.24                           
Stock in Trade 949.38                           753.91                       
Finished Stock 440.61                           392.43                       
Packing Material Stock 13.11                             13.02                         

-                                 
1,403.10                       1,159.60                    

Inventory at the end of the year
Work-in-process 0.24                               -                             
Stock in Trade 1,361.83                       949.38                       
Finished Stock 272.74                           440.61                       
Packing Material Stock 13.19                             13.11                         

1,648.00                       1,403.10                    
Decretion / (Accretion) to Inventory (244.90)                         (243.50)                      
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(Rs. in lakhs )
32       Employee Benefit Expense  Year Ended      March 

31, 2025
Rs. 

 Year Ended      
March 31, 2024

Rs. 
Salary, Wages & Bonus Expenses 26.08                             26.51                         
Directors Remuneration 54.00                             45.00                         
Gratuity Expenses 3.08                               4.42                           
Total 83.16                             75.93                         

33       Finance Costs

Interest Paid to Banks & Financial Institutions 136.28                           124.47                       
Interest Paid to Others 5.64                               2.15                           
Other Borrowing cost 13.92                             28.26                         
Total 155.84                          154.87                       

34       Depreciation And Amortisation Expense

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment 9.89                               11.37                         
Total 9.89                               11.37                         

35       Other Expenses

Import related Charges and Expenses 3.57                               9.94                           
Transportation Expenses 14.54                             14.21                         
Advertisement Expenses 0.26                               0.46                           
Auditor's Remuneration 5.85                               5.25                           

Bad Debts Written Off -                                 145.19                       
Director Sitting Fees 0.60                               0.85                           
Electricity Charges 0.98                               0.91                           
Insurance Charges 5.05                               4.24                           
Labour chages 0.67                               0.43                           
Other Expenses 9.58                               4.92                           
Legal & Professional Fees 19.83                             16.24                         
Telephone Expenses 0.43                               0.38                           
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 18.78                             0.62                           
Foreign Exchange Loss -                                 1.50                           
Rent Rates & Taxes 4.13                               0.83                           
Repair & Maintenance - Computers & Others 0.61                               0.55                           
Repair & Maintenance - Machinery 0.08                               0.02                           

 Year Ended      March 
31, 2025

Rs. 

 Year Ended      March 
31, 2025

Rs. 

 Year Ended      March 
31, 2025

Rs. 

 Year Ended      
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

 Year Ended      
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

 Year Ended      
March 31, 2024

Rs. 
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Repair & Maintenance - Vehicle 1.39                               0.46                           
Expected Credit Losse Allowance\(Reversal) (22.92)                           18.08                         
Printing & Stationery & Postage Expenses 7.95                               0.72                           
Sales & Marketing Exp 0.95                               1.95                           
Factory Expenses 14.97                             9.68                           
Total 87.33                             237.42                       
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36       Income tax recognised in profit or loss

Current tax:
In respect of the current year 83.41                             35.91                         
In respect of the prior year 7.40                               10.17                         
Sub-Total (i) 90.81                             46.08                         
Deferred tax:
In respect of the current year 13.64                             (86.02)                        
Sub-Total (ii) 13.64                             -86.02                        
Total (I + ii) 104.45                          (39.94)                        

36.1    Income tax reconciliation
Particulars  Year Ended      March 

31, 2025
Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Profit\(Loss) before tax 371.01                           (7.08)                          

                             93.37 -                             

Effect of expenses not allowed for tax purpose 92.86                             233.14                       
(192.28)                                               (123.91)

7.40                                                         10.17 
Effect of Related to Deferred Tax Balances 13.64                                                     (86.02)

89.46                                                     (73.32)
                           104.45 (39.94)

 Year Ended      March 
31, 2025

Rs. 

 Total Income Tax Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and 
loss 

 Effect of Impact of earlier year tax  

 Income tax expenses calculated at effective tax rate (25.168% current 
year and 25.168 % previous year) 

  Effect of Other Items 

 Effect of Income not considered for tax purpose & Other deductible 
expenses 

 Year Ended      
March 31, 2024

Rs. 
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1  Corporate information:

2 Basis of Preparation of  consolidated Ind 
AS financial statements

(b) Any other item as specifically stated in the accounting policy.

Notes to consolidated financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

The Consolidated Ind AS financial statements relate to Yash Chemex Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiary company "Yasons Chemex Care Limited". The Company and its subsidiary is collectively
referred to as "the Group". The Company is a listed entity and incorporated on June 3, 2006 under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956; having registered office at 411, Sigma Icon-1, 132ft Ring Road,
Opp. Medilink Hospital, Satellite, Ahmedabad - 380015, Gujarat, India. 

The principal accounting polices applied in the preparation of these consolidated Ind AS financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

(i) Compliance with Ind-AS
These consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate
Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with Rule 3 of the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

iii) Principles of consolidation:
The consolidated Ind AS financial statements relate to Yash Chemex Limited (‘the Company’) and its
subsidiary company (" the group"). The consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been prepared on
the following basis:

Summary of basis of compliance, basis of preparation and presentation, critical accounting estimates, 
assumptions and judgements and material accounting policies

(ii) Basis of Preparation and presentation

The consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been prepared and presented on the going concern
basis and at historical cost basis considering the applicable provisions of Companies Act 2013, except for
the following items that have been measured at fair value as required by relevant IND AS. 

Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
(a) Certain financial assets/liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments) and
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Notes to consolidated financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025
a)

b)

Subsidiary are those entities over which the group has control. The group controls an entity when
the group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the
entity. Subsidiary are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The group combines the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the parent and its subsidiary
line by line adding together the book value of like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and
expenses. Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between
group company are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
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c)

d)

e)

f)

(iv) Functional and Presentation Currency

(vi) Rounding of amounts

3

All assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-current as per the Group’s normal operating
cycle, and other criteria set out in Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of
products and the time lag between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
and cash equivalents, 12 months period has been considered by the Group as its normal operating
cycle.

The consolidated Ind AS financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the functional
currency of theGroup and the currency of the primary economic environment in which theGroup
operates.

(v) Classification of Assets and Liabilities as Current and Non-Current 

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Group and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiary is
attributed to the owners of the Group and to the noncontrolling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the
Company’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

Non-Controlling Interest share of net assets of consolidated subsidiary is identified and presented
in the consolidated balance sheet separate from liabilities and the equity of the Company’s
shareholders.

As far as possible, the consolidated Ind AS consolidated Ind AS financial statements are prepared
using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances
and are presented in the same manner as the Company’s separate Ind AS financial statements.

i)the size of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of
the other vote holders;

ii) potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;

iii) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

iv) any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Group has, or does not have, the
current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including
voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

The  consolidated Ind AS financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the 
nearest Lakh (INR 1,00,000) as per the requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.

Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements
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The preparation of consolidated Ind AS financial statements requires management of the group to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions in the application of accounting policies that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. Continuous evaluation is done on the estimation and judgments based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable. 

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Group and that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances
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a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

d) Provisions and contingent liabilities

4  Summary of Material Accounting Policies (MAP) :-
4.1  Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) 

Useful lives and residual values of Property, plant and equipment represent a material portion of the
Group’s asset base. The periodic charge of depreciation is derived after estimating useful life of an asset
and expected residual value at the end of its useful life. The useful lives and residual values of assets are
estimated by the management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at
each financial year end. The lives are based on various external and internal factors including historical
experience, relative efficiency and operating costs and change in technology.

b) Provision for income tax and valuation of 
The Group has tax jurisdiction is India. Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision
for income taxes including amounts to be recovered or paid for uncertain tax positions. Management
judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits.

e) Fair value measurement
In measuring the fair value of certain assets and liabilities for financial reporting purpose, the Group
uses market observable data to the extent available. Where such Level 1 inputs are not available, the
group establish appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The inputs to these models
are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment
is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk,
credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions
about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

c) Employee benefit obligations
Defined benefit obligations are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. Fair value
determined by actuary is based on actuarial assumptions. Management judgement is required to
determine such actuarial assumptions. Such assumptions are reviewed annually using the best
information available with the Management.

A provision is recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a
reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement benefits and compensated absences)
are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle
the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimates.Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. A
contingent asset is neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.
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These tangible assets are held for use in production, supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses except for freehold land which is not depreciated. Cost includes
purchase price after deducting trade discount/rebate, import duties, non-refundable taxes, Net of
Cenvat and GST input credit wherever applicable, cost of replacing the component parts, borrowing
costs and other directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition in the manner
intended by the management of the group.
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Depreciation

If significant parts of an item of PPE have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate
items (major components) of PPE.

The cost of an item of PPE is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the group in future periods and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. Expenditure incurred after the PPE have been put into operations, such as repairs
and maintenance expenses are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which
they are incurred.

Items such as spare parts, standby equipment and servicing equipment are recognised as PPE when it is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purpose, and are
expected to be used for more than one year. Otherwise such items are  classified as inventory.

The Group adjusts exchange differences arsing on translation difference/settlement of long term
foreign currency monetary items outstanding and pertaining to the acquisition of a depreciable asset
to the cost of asset and depreciates the same over the remaining life of the asset. The depreciation on
such foreign exchange difference is recognised from  first day of its  financial year.

De-recognised upon disposal

An item of PPE is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from use
or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when asset is derecognised.

Treatment of Expenditure during Construction Period

Expenditure, net of income earned, during construction (including financing cost related to borrowed
funds for construction or acquisition of qualifying PPE) period is included under capital work-in-
progress, and the same is allocated to the respective PPE on the completion of construction. Advances
given towards acquisition or construction of PPE outstanding at each reporting date are disclosed as
Capital Advances under “Other Non-Current Assets”.
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The depreciable amount of an asset is determined after deducting its residual value. Where the residual
value of an asset increases to an amount equal to or greater than the asset’s carrying amount, no
depreciation charge is recognized till the asset’s residual value decreases below the asset’s carrying
amount. Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use, i.e., when it is in the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the intended manner. Depreciation of an asset
ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is classified as held for sale in accordance with IND AS
105 and the date that the asset is derecognised. 

TheGroup depreciates its property, plant and equipment (PPE) over the useful life in the manner
prescribed in Schedule II to the Act. Management believes that useful life of assets are same as those
prescribed in Schedule II to the Act, except for plant and equipment wherein based on technical
evaluation, useful life has been estimated to be different from that prescribed in Schedule II of the Act.
Useful life considered for calculation of depreciation for various assets class are as follows:-
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Notes to consolidated financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025
Useful Life
60 years
10 years
5 years
8 & 10 years
3 years

As a Lessee:

Asset Class
Non-Factory Building
Furniture & Fixtures

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

4.3 Leases
At the inception of a lease, the lease arrangements is classified as either a finance lease or an operating
lease, based on the substance of the lease arrangement.

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group, as lessee, has substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
inception at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of minimum lease
payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in borrowing or
other financial liabilities as appropriate. 

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to
profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the
Group as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from lessor) are charged to profit or loss on straight-line basis over the period of the
lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

Office Equipment
Vehicles
Computers

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (PPE) added/disposed off during the period is provided
on pro-rata basis with reference to the date of addition/disposal.

The identified component of property, plant and equipment (PPE) are depreciated over the useful lives
and the remaining components are depreciated over the life of the principal assets

4.2 Intangible assets 

As a Lessor:
Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is recognised in other income on
straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The respective
leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.
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Notes to consolidated financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Deposits provided to Lessor:

The Group is generally required to pay refundable security deposits in order to obtain property leases 
from various lessors.

Such security deposits are financial assets and are recorded at fair value on initial recognition. The
difference between the initial fair value and the refundable amount of deposit is recognised as lease
prepayments. The initial fair value is estimated as the present value of the refundable amount of
security deposit, discounted using the market interest rates for similar instruments
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Notes to consolidated financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

4.4 Inventories 

Inventories consisting of stores and spares, raw materials, work in progress, stock in trade, goods in
transit and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. However, materials held
for use in production of inventories are not written down below cost, if the finished products are
expected to be sold at or above cost.

The cost is computed on FIFO basis and is net of credits under GST.

Traded goods includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Goods and materials in transit include materials, duties and taxes (other than those subsequently
recoverable from tax authorities) labour cost and other related overheads incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

4.5 Borrowing Cost 

Subsequent to initial recognition, the security deposit is measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method with carrying amount increased over the lease period up to the refundable amount.
The amount of increase in the carrying amount of deposit is recognised as interest income. The lease
repayment is amortised on straight-line basis over the lease term as lease rentals expense.

Borrowing cost includes interest expense, amortisation of discounts, ancillary costs incurred in
connection with borrowing of funds and exchange difference, arising from foreign currency borrowings,
to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised as part of the cost of such asset till such time the asset is ready for its intended use.
A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. All
other borrowing cost are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

4.6 Impairment of Non Financial Assets 
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Notes to consolidated financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset or CGU in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its PPE and other
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that these assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, theGroup estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(CGU) to which the asset belongs. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. The resulting
impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss Recoverable amount is the higher of
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 

In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.
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Notes to consolidated financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

4.6 Cash Flow Statement 
Cash flows are reported using indirect method whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects
of the transactions of non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts and payments and items of income or expenses associated with investing and financing cash
flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated.

4.7 Taxes  
Income tax expense represents the sum of tax currently payable and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in
the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in
equity or in other comprehensive income.

a) Current Tax
Current tax includes provision for Income Tax computed under Special provision (i.e., Minimum
alternate tax) or normal provision of Income Tax Act. Tax on Income for the current period is
determined on the basis on estimated taxable income and tax credits computed in accordance with the
provisions of the relevant tax laws and based on the expected outcome of assessments/appeals

b) Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the balance sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. 

Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unabsorbed
losses and unabsorbed depreciation to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary differences, unabsorbed losses and unabsorbed
depreciation can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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4.8 Employee Benefits 
a) Employee Benefits 
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering services are classified as short 
term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, short-term compensated absences, 
performance incentives etc., are recognized during the period in which the employee renders related 
services and are measured at undiscounted amount expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled
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b) Post-employment obligations

4.9  Trade and Other Payables

i) Defined benefit plans-Gratuity obligations

The liability or assets recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the
present value of the defined benefit obligations at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of
plan assets.

The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit
method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the
reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related
obligation. The benefits which are denominated in currency other than INR, the cash flows are
discounted using market yields determined by reference to high quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms approximating to
the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in
the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and change in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.
They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or 

ii) Defined contribution plans
The Group pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered funds as per local regulations. 
TheGroup has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions 
are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognized as employee 
benefit expense when they are due.

4.8  Provisions, Contingent Liability and Contingent Assets 
Disputed liabilities and claims against the Group including claims raised by fiscal authorities (e.g. Sales
Tax, Income Tax, Excise, GST etc.) pending in appeal / court for which no reliable estimate can be made
and or involves uncertainty of the outcome of the amount of the obligation or which are remotely
poised for crystallization are not provided for in accounts but disclosed in notes to accounts. However,
present obligation as a result of past event with possibility of outflow of resources, when reliable
estimation can be made of the amount of obligation, is recognized in accounts in terms of discounted
value, if the time value of money is material using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risk specific to
the liability. No contingent asset is recognized but disclosed by way of notes to accounts.
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Notes to consolidated financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless
payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognized initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method

4.10 Revenue Recognition 
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to theGroup
and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually
defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the Government such as
Goods and Services Tax, etc. 

Sale of Goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when control of the products being sold is transferred to our
customers and there are no longer any unfulfilled obligations. The performance obligations in our
contracts are fulfilled at the time of dispatch, delivery or upon formal customer acceptance depending
on customer terms.

Revenue from sales excludes GST. It is measured at fair value of consideration received or receivable,
net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates.

Rendering of Services
Revenue from rendering of services is recognized as per the terms of the contract with customers when
related services are performed and when the outcome of the transactions involving rendering of
services can be estimated reliably.
Dividend Income
Dividend Income is accounted for when the right to receive the same is established, which is generally
when shareholders approve the dividend.

Interest Income
Interest Income on financial assets measured at amortised cost is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

4.11 Cash and Cash Equivalents  
Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash in hand and demand deposits with banks, short-term 
balances (with an original maturity of three months or less), highly liquid investments that are readily 
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. 
Margin money deposits, earmarked balances with banks and other bank balances which have 
restrictions are presented as other bank balances.

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term 
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part 
of the Group's cash management.

4.12 Earnings per share 
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ii) Diluted earnings per share

i)  Basic earnings per share

a)The profit attributable to owners of the Group 

b) By the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for 
bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year

a)The after ‘income-tax’ effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential 
equity shares, and

b)The weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding 
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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4.14  Foreign Currency Transactions  
In preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Group , transactions in foreign
currencies, other than the Group’s functional currency are recognised at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency, are not retranslated.
Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the
period in which these arise except for:
a) exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment
to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings; b) exchange
differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks.

4.15  Fair Value Measurement  

4.13  Segment Reporting 
An operating segment is component of the Group that engages in the business activity from which the
Group earns revenues and incurs expenses, for which discrete financial information is available and
whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker (CODM), in
deciding about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance. The Group ’s chief
operating decision maker is the Board of Directors. Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the CODM.



YASH CHEMEX LIMITED

Notes to consolidated financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025
The Group measures financial instruments, such as investments (other than equity investments in 
subsidiary, Joint Ventures and Associates) and derivatives at fair values at each Balance Sheet date. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is 
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place 
either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or In the absence of a principal market,in the most 
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most  advantageous market must be 
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an  asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that 
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act 
in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to 
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another 
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

TheGroup uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient 
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and 
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the  consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest 
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable 
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Financial assets

ii) Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) – equity investment; or

iii) Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

4.17 Financial Instruments 
a) Recognition and initial measurement

All financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when theGroup becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue

b) Classification and subsequent measurement

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
i) amortized cost;

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

4.16 Events occurring after the balance sheet date 
Assets and liabilities are adjusted for events occurring after the reporting period that provides
additional evidence to assist the estimation of amounts relating to conditions existing at the end of the
reporting period.

Dividends declared by the Group after the reporting period are not recognized as liability at the end of
the reporting period. Dividends declared after the reporting period but before the issue of consolidated
Ind AS financial statements are not recognized as liability since no obligation exists at that time. Such
dividends are disclosed in the notes to the  consolidated Ind AS financial statements.
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Financial liabilities

Financial assets

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period
theGroup changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

• the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

• the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. (designated as FVOCI – equity
investment). This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

Investments in subsidiary Group:
Investments in subsidiary Group are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where
an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down
immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiary Group, the difference
between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognised in the Standalone Statement
of Profit and Loss.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Group may
irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at 

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified
as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including
any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange
gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is also recognized in
profit or loss

c) De-recognition

The Group de-recognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which theGroup neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and
does not retain control of the financial asset. 
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Financial liabilities

4.20 Recent accounting pronouncements which are not yet effective (Standards issued but not yet 
effective)

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2023 dated March 31, 2025 to amend the following Ind AS which are effective from 01 April
2025., as below:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. During the year
ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS 117 - Insurance Contracts and amendments to Ind As
116 - Leases, relating to sale and lease back transactions, applicable from April 1, 2024. The Group has
assessed that there is no significant impact on its consolidated financial statements. 

On May 9, 2025, MCA notifies the amendments to Ind AS 21 Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates. These amendments aim to provide clearer guidance on assessing currency exchangeability and
estimating exchange rates when currencies are not readily exchangeable. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2025. The Group is currently assessing the
probable impact of these amendments on its consolidated financial statements.

The Group de-recognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire. The Group also de-recognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and
the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability
based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognized in
profit or loss.

d) Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it
intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

does not retain control of the financial asset. 

If the Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet, but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred
assets are not derecognized.
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37  Capital Commitment

 (Rs. in lakhs ) 

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2025
Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

-                              -                              
Advance paid against such contracts                                  -                                    -   

                                 -                                    -   

38 Contingent Liabilities

 As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

                        138.26                         138.26 

102.49                       102.49                       

5.10                            5.10                            

0.43                            0.43                            

0.02                            0.02                            

39 Details of Employee Benefits: 
(a) Defined Contribution Plans

(b) Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity: 

A. Expenses Recognized during the period

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2025
Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

In Income Statement 3.08 4.42
In Other Comprehensive Income                            (1.20)                          (19.10)
Total Expenses Recognized                             1.88                          (14.68)

(v) TDS Default Demand Online for A.Y. 2020-21

(iii) Demand U/s 143(3) r.w.e. 147 of the Income Tax Act for A.Y.2013-14 against which Appeal filled
by company and matter is pending before CIT (Appeals).

Remaining outstanding commitment

Oustanding Tax Matters:
(i) Demand U/s 143(3) r.w.e. 147 of the Income Tax Act for A.Y.2011-12 against which Appeal filled by
company and matter is pending before CIT (Appeals).

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

The group has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 
days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The scheme is unfunded.

For the year ended March 31, 2024; the group provides for the Liability for Gratuity to employees determined on the basis of actuarial Valuation 
based on Projected Unit Credit method. 

As the group does not meet the employees' threshold currently & hence the group is not required to contribute towards any plan under any law 
for the time being in force. The group shall start contributing as and when it is required by the law. 

The following table summarizes the components of net benefit expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the funded status and 
the amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet for the plan:

Details of contingent liabilities are as under:

Details of outstanding capital commitments are as under:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for

Particulars

(ii) Demand U/s 143(3) r.w.e. 147 of the Income Tax Act for A.Y.2012-13 against which Appeal filled by
company and matter is pending before CIT (Appeals).

(iv) Income Tax Demand Online for A.Y. 2018-19.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025
A1.Expenses Recognized in the Income Statement  (Rs. in lakhs ) 

 As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 
Current Service Cost 2.48                            2.76                            
Net Interest Cost 0.60                            1.66                            

                            3.08                              4.42 

B. Net Liability recognized in the balance sheet

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2025
Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 
Present Value of Obligation 10.29                         8.24                            
Fair value of plan assets -                              -                              
Surplus / (Deficit) 10.29                         8.24                            
Net (Liability) recognized in the Balance sheet                         (10.29)                            (8.24)

Current Liability 0.36                            0.35                            
Non-current Liability 9.93                            8.07                            

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2025
Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 
Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning 8.42                            22.98                          
Current Service Cost 2.48                            2.76                            
Interest Expense or Cost 0.60                            1.66                            
Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss :                            (1.20)                          (19.10)
Past Service Cost -                              -                              
Benefits Paid -                              -                              
Present Value of Obligation as at the end of the year                           10.29                              8.42 

C. Actuarial Assumptions

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2025
Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 
Discount Rate  6.70 to 6.85% p.a.  7.20% p.a. 
Expected rate of salary increase  4.75% to 7.00% p.a.  4.75% to 7.00% p.a. 

Expected Return on Plan Assets  Not Applicable  Not Applicable 
Mortality  Indian Assured Lives 

Mortality (2012-14) 
Table 

 Indian Assured Lives 
Mortality (2012-14) 
Table 

Retirement Age  60 Years  60 Years 

D. Sensitivity Analysis

 Decrease  Increase 

10.78                              9.85 

9.81                           10.57 

10.19                           10.39 

 Year Ended March 31, 2025
Rs. Particulars

Discount Rate (- / + 0.5%) (% change compared to base due to sensitivity)

Salary Growth Rate (- / + 0.5%) (% change compared to base due to sensitivity)

Attrition Rate (W.R. x 90% / W.R. x 110%) (% change compared to base due to sensitivity)

B1. Changes in the Present value of Obligation

Particulars

Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
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 (Rs. in lakhs ) 

 Decrease  Increase 

8.82                              8.05 

8.04                              8.63 

8.33                              8.48 

E. Maturity Profile of Project Benefit Obligation

Particulars

 As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

 9.32 to 11.16 years  9.88 to 11.16 years 

E. Characteristics of defined benefit plans and risks associated with them:

(i) Actuarial Risk:

(ii) Investment Risk:

(iii) Liquidity Risk:

(iv) Market Risk: 

(v) Legislative Risk: 

40 Segment Reporting

Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due to change in the legislation/regulation. The
government may amend the Payment of Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. This will directly
affect the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the same will have to be recognized immediately in the year when any such
amendment is effective.

Salary Growth Rate (- / + 0.5%) (% change compared to base due to sensitivity)

The Group operates in a single segment and in line with Ind AS - 108 - “Operating Segments”, the operation of the Group which is considered to
be the only reportable business segment, and therefore, no separate disclosure on segment information is given in these consolidated financial
statements.

It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the following reasons:
Adverse Salary Growth Experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary escalation will result into an increase in Obligation at a
rate that is higher than expected.

Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality rate assumption than the Gratuity Benefits will be paid
earlier than expected. Since there is no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of cashflow will lead to an actuarial loss or gain
depending on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and discount rate.

Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption than the Gratuity Benefits
will be paid earlier than expected. The  impact  of  this  will  depend  on  whether  the  benefits  are  vested  as at  the resignation date.

 Year Ended March 31, 2024
Rs. 

Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets. One actuarial assumption that
has a material effect is the discount rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads to decrease in
Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption depends on the yields on the corporate/government bonds and
hence  the  valuation  of liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date.

Weighted average duration (based on discounted cash flows)

Valuation of defined benefit plan are performed on certain basic set of pre-determined assumptions and other regulatory framework which may
vary over time. Thus, the group is exposed to various risks in providing the above benefit plans which are as follows:

Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate significant level of benefits. If some of such
employees  resign/retire  from  the  company there can be strain on the cashflows.

Attrition Rate (W.R. x 90% / W.R. x 110%) (% change compared to base due to sensitivity)

For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified by the insurer may not be the fair value of instruments
backing the liability. In such cases, the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result in wide fluctuations in
the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in the discount rate during the inter-valuation period.

Particulars

Discount Rate (- / + 0.5%) (% change compared to base due to sensitivity)
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(Rs. in lakhs )

FVTPL FVTOCI  Amortised 
Cost 

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets
Investments - Non Current -            279.87          -                   279.87          279.87          -             -               279.87              
Other Non Current Financial 
Assets

-            -                 24.82               24.82            -                 -             24.82           24.82                

Trade Receivables -            -                 4,199.49          4,199.49       -                 -             4,199.49      4,199.49           
Cash and Cash Equivalents -            -                 23.88               23.88            -                 -             23.88           23.88                
Other Bank Balances -            -                 217.68             217.68          -                 -             217.68         217.68              
Total Financial Assets -            279.87          4,465.87         4,745.74       279.87          -             4,465.87     4,745.74           
Financial Liabilities

Deferred Payment Liabilities -            -                 172.19             172.19          -                 -             172.19         172.19              
Current Borrowings -            -                 1,205.85          1,205.85       -                 -             1,205.85      1,205.85           
Trade Payables -            -                 1,071.17          1,071.17       -                 -             1,071.17      1,071.17           

Total Financial Liabilties -            -                 2,449.21         2,449.21       -                 -             2,449.21     2,449.21           

FVTPL FVTOCI  Amortised 
Cost 

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets
Investments - Non Current -            327.09          724.88             1,051.97       327.09          -             724.88         1,051.97           
Loans - Non Current -            -                 -                   -                -                 -             -               -                    

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Fair Value Measurements
Financial instrument by category and their fair value

As at 
March 31, 2024

Carrying Amount Fair Value 

As at 
March 31, 2025

Carrying Amount Fair Value 
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Other Non Current Financial 
Assets

-            -                 44.27               44.27            -                 -             44.27           44.27                

Trade Receivables -            -                 4,106.32          4,106.32       -                 -             4,106.32      4,106.32           
Cash and Cash Equivalents -            -                 22.63               22.63            -                 -             22.63           22.63                
Other Bank Balances -            -                 107.22             107.22          -                 -             107.22         107.22              
Total Financial Assets -            327.09          5,005.32         5,332.41       327.09          -             5,005.32     5,332.41           
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings
Non Current Borrowings -            -                 45.82               45.82            -                 -             45.82           45.82                
Deferred Payment Liabilities 196.78             196.78          -                 -             196.78         196.78              
Current Borrowings -            -                 945.94             945.94          -                 -             945.94         945.94              
Trade Payables -            -                 999.67             999.67          -                 -             999.67         999.67              

Total Financial Liabilties -            -                 2,188.21         2,188.21       -                 -             2,188.21     2,188.21           

The above fair value hierarchy explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are
(a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed in the Consolidated Financial
Statements. To provide the indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the group has classified its financial
instruments in to three levels prescribed is as under:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilties

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liabilty, either directly (i.e. as prices ) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)
Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilties that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)
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I

i)

ii) Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

II

Credit Risk

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The level of liquidity
risk is very low considering the fact that the Group relies on operating cash flows and owned equity. Currently the Group has
borrowed funds from bank mainly for day to day business needs (i.e. Cash Credit Facilities are being availed by the Group).
Long term loans borrowed are mainly for the purpose of vehicles the group has accquired during the current year. 

Further the Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking facilities by continuously monitoring
the forecasted and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. The Group manages its
liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. 

The audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s risk management policies and
procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. The audit
committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk
management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers. Credit risk is managed through
credit approvals, establishing credit limits, and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Group
grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The history of trade receivables shows a negligible provision for bad and
doubtful debts. The Group establishes an allowance for doubtful debts and impairment that represents its estimate of expected
losses in respect of trade and other receivables and investments. The Group has adopted simplified approach of ECL model for
impairment.

Trade Receivables:
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of
the customer, including the default risk of the industry and country in which the customer operates, also has an influence on
credit risk assessment. The Group with various activities as mentioned above manages credit risk. An impairment analysis is
performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major customers. In addition, a large number of minor receivables
are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The calculation is based on historical data. The
Group does not hold collateral as security.

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Group’s treasury department in accordance
with the Group’s assessment of credit risk about particular financial institution. None of the Group’s cash equivalents, including
term deposits (i.e., certificates of deposit) with banks, were past due or impaired as at each balance sheet date.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

The Group’s risk management is governed by policies and approved by the board of directors. The Group identifies, evaluates
and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the Group’s operating units. The Group has policies for overall risk
management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of non-
derivative financial instruments.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
primary risk management focus is to minimize potential adverse effects of market risk on its financial performance. The Group’s
risk management assessment and policies and processes are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to
set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance with the same. 

Financial risk management 
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III Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from adverse changes in market
rates and prices (such as interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and commodity prices) or in the price of market risk-
sensitive instruments as a result of such adverse changes in market rates and prices. Market risk is attributable to all market risk-
sensitive financial instruments, all foreign currency receivables and payables and all short term and long-term debt. The Group
is exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and commodity risk.
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a) Currency Risk

(Rs. in lakhs )
i)

Particulars
 As at 

March 31, 2025
Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Trade Payables 0.05                         -                        

4.13                         -                        

ii) Foreign Currency Risk Sensitivity

 5% Increase  5% Decrease  5% Increase  5% Decrease 
USD -0.21 0.21                  -                            -                         
Total ….. -0.21 0.21                 -                            -                        

 b) Interest Risk

The sensitivity of profit or loss due to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from non-derivative foreign currency
denominated financial instruments (mainly financial instruments denominated in USD currency). The same is summarized as
below:

 Impact on Profit before tax 

Particulars

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. In order to optimize the Group’s position with regards to the interest income and interest expenses and
to manage the interest rate risk, treasury performs a comprehensive corporate interest rate risk management by balancing the
proportion of fixed rate and floating rate financial instruments in it total portfolio.

With all other variables held constant, the following table demonstrates the impact of the borrowing cost on floating rate
portion of loans and borrowings and excluding loans on which interest rate swaps are taken.Interest rate risk is the risk that the
fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s
exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates related primarily to the Group’s short-term borrowings with floating
interest rates. Group’s treasury department monitors the interest rate movement and manages the interest rate risk based on
its policies.

The following table analyses foreign currency risk from non-derivative financial instruments as at each balance sheet date

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. 

The Group’s foreign exchange risk arises from its foreign currency purchase of Stock-in-trade, (primarily in USD). A significant
portion of the Group’s purchases are in foreign currencies, while its revenue are in Indian Rupees. As a result, if the value of the
Indian rupee depreciates relative to these foreign currencies, the Group’s purchase costs measured in Indian Rupees may
increase. The exchange rate between the Indian rupee and these foreign currencies has changed substantially in recent periods
and may continue to fluctuate substantially in the future. As of March 31, 2025, the Group had not entered into any material
derivative contracts to hedge exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency risk.

 As at 
March 31, 2024

 Currency 

USD

INR

 As at 
March 31, 2025
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i) Exposure to interest rate risk

Particulars

Non Current Borrowings
Current Borrowings
Total

ii) Interest Rate Sensitivity

Particulars

c) Price Risk

i) Exposure

ii) Sensitivity

(Rs. in lakhs )
Impact on Other Comprehensive Income - OCI

Movement in 
Rate

%.

As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs.

As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs.

Equity Shares (Quoted) 5% 13.99                       16.35                    
Equity Shares (Quoted) -5% (13.99)                     (16.35)                   

The table below summarizes the impact of increases/decreases of the BSE index on the Group’s equity and Gain/Loss for the
period. The analysis is based on the assumption that the index has increased by 5 % or decreased by 5 % with all other variables
held constant, and that all the Group’s equity instruments moved in line with the index.

The exposure of the Group's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

50bp decrease would increase the profit before tax by 6.89                                             

Exposure to market risk with respect to commodity prices primarily arises from the Group’s purchases and sales of active
chemical and perfume products. These are commodity products, whose prices may fluctuate significantly over short periods of
time. The prices of the Group’s stock generally fluctuate in line with commodity cycles. Purchase Cost of the products and cost
of materials consumed form the largest portion of the Group’s cost of revenues. Commodity price risk exposure is evaluated
and managed through operating procedures and sourcing policies. As at March 31, 2025, the Group had not entered into any
material derivative contracts to hedge exposure to fluctuations in commodity prices.

The Group’s exposure to equity securities price risk arises from investments held by the Group and classified in the balance
sheet either at fair value through OCI or at fair value through profit and loss. To manage its price risk arising from investments
in equity securities, the Group diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set by
the Group.

Above referred sensitivity pertains to quoted equity investment.Profit for the year would increase/ (decrease) as a result of
gains/ losses on equity securities as at fair value through other comprehensive income before net of tax.

 As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

5.94                                                           
50bp increase would decrease the profit before tax by

For details of the Group’s Current and Non Current borrowings, including interest rate profiles, Refer to Note 18,19,and 22 of
these financial statement.

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates. The below
sensitivity does not include the impact of interest rate swap contracts which largely mitigate the risk.

(6.89)                                            

                                         172.19 
                                      1,205.85 
                                      1,378.04 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

(5.94)                                                          

                                                       242.60 
                                                       945.94 
                                                    1,188.54 

 As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 
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 (Rs. in lakhs ) 

 As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

-                           -                        

-                           -                        

-                           -                        

-                           -                        

-                           -                        

-                           -                        

44

Particulars

Debt
Cash and cash equivalents
Net debt
Equity
Gearing  ratio

45 (Rs. in lakhs )

Particulars

Statutory Audit 
Tax Audit Fees

Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise

5.85                                             
-                                               
-                                               

5,739.01                                     
23.60%

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, (MSMED) certain disclosers are required to be made
relating to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises. On the basis of the information and records available with management,
outstanding dues to the Micro and Small enterprise as defined in the MSMED Act, 2006 are disclosed as below:

Capital Management:

Details of Payment to Auditors

Others (Fees for Other Audit Related Services) -                                                             

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Payment to auditors:

 As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

Particulars

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the year end

Interest due and remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of accounting year

Amount of interest paid by the Group in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006, 
along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day 
during the accounting year

Amount of interest due and payable for the reporting period of delay in making payment 
[which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year] but without 
adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006
Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in succeeding years, until 
such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for 
the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of MSMED 
Act, 2006 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 
1,188.54                                                   

22.63                                                         
1,165.91                                                   
5,451.11                                                   

21.39%

 As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 
1,378.04                                     

23.88                                           
1,354.16                                     

5.25                                                           
-                                                             

Total

The Group’s capital management is intended to maximise the return to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders for
meeting the long-term and short-term goals of the Group; and reduce the cost of capital through the optimization of the capital
structure i.e. the debt and equity balance.
The Group monitors the capital structure on the basis of gearing ratio and maturity profile of the overall debt portfolio of the
Group.
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Total 5.85                                             5.25                                                           
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46 Earnings Per Share (EPS)
(Rs. in lakhs except No of Equity Shares)

 As at March 31,2025 
Rs. 

 As at March 31,2024 
Rs. 

                             205.39                               -27.36 

1,02,43,425                   1,02,43,425                   

                                  2.01                                 -0.27 
10.00                               10.00                               

47 Related Parties Disclosures

(i) List of related parties:
Name of related party

Yash Chem Controlled by Key Managerial Persons 
Yashwantlal C. Shah HUF Controlled by Key Managerial Persons 
Pritesh Shah HUF Controlled by Key Managerial Persons 
Yash Corporation

Pritesh Yashwantbhai Shah Key Managerial Person (Managing Director & Chief Financial Officer)
 Dimple Pritesh Shah 
 Jinal Dineshbhai Shah 
 Angee Shah 
Paxal P. Shah
Smit Shah Key Managerial Person (Independent Director) of subsidiary Company
Vinodkumar Key Managerial Person (Independent Director) of subsidiary Company
Riddhi Shah

Pragati Jain Key Managerial Person (Company Secretary w.e.f  August 13,2024)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Particulars

Nominal Value of Equity Shares

Net Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of Holding Company 

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares in calculating Basic and Diluted EPS

Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share 

 Controlled by Key Managerial Persons  - Pritesh Y. Shah (HUF) is a Propritior 

Nature of relationship

 Key Managerial Person (Director) 
 Key Managerial Person (Independent Director) 

Relative of Key managerial person

 Key Managerial Person (Company Secretary Appointed as on 10th April, 2023) 

 Key Managerial Person (Independent Director) 
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(ii) Transactions during the period and balances outstanding with related parties are as under:

Transactions with related parties during the year: (Rs. in lakhs )

Name of related party
 Year Ended      March 

31, 2025
Rs. 

 Year Ended      March 
31, 2024

Rs. 
Sale of  goods                              246.17 209.00                            

Yash Chem Purchase of goods 679.08                             215.03                            

 Yash Corporation Sale of  goods                              246.64 246.80                            
Purchase of goods 580.76                             406.44                            

Pritesh Yashwantbhai Shah Director remuneartion 36.00                               30.00                               
Dimple Pritesh Shah Director remuneartion 18.00                               15.00                               

Kiritkumar Shah 1.20                                 -                                   

Himali Thakkar -                                   3.28                                 

 Riddhi Sumit Shah 1.88                                 -                                   

Jinal Dineshbhai Shah Director's Sitting Fees 0.30                                 0.40                                 
Angee Shah Director's Sitting Fees 0.25                                 
Rushabh Anilbhai Shah Director's Sitting Fees 0.30                                 0.30                                 
 Silva Shah Director's Sitting Fees 0.14 -                                   
Smit Shah Director's Sitting Fees -                                   0.40                                 
Vinodkumar Director's Sitting Fees -                                   0.40                                 

Key Managerial Person (Chief 
Financial Officer)

Nature of Transaction

Key Managerial Person 
(Company Secretary)

Key Managerial Person 
(Company Secretary)
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Balances outstanding at each reporting date:

Name of party
Nature of 

Amount

 As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs. 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs. 

Angee Shah Director's Sitting 
Fees                                 (0.15)                                 (0.18)

Yash Chem  Receivable of 
Goods  

                                  7.20                                41.69 

 Yash Corporation  Receivable of 
Goods  

                             247.80                                33.05 

Kiritkumar Shah  Employees 
Payables                                 (0.05)

                                    —   

 Vinodkumar  Director's Sitting 
Fees                                       -                                   (0.10)

Note: Figures in bracket denotes credit balance.

48

49
50

51

52

53

54

55 Subsequent Events:

56

Subsequent to Balance Sheet Date, there are no events occurred which require disclosure or adjustments in the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for 
holding any Benami property.

The Group have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

The Group have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

The Group have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

The Group have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed
as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other
relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

The group has used accounting software for maintaining its books of accout which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further,
there are no instances of audit trail being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail of prior year(s) has been preserved by the
Group as per the statutory requirements for record retention to the extent it was enabled and recorded in the respective years.

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

a)directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

The Group do not have any transactions with companies struck off.
The Group do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
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 a) Undisputed trade receivables

Considered
Good

Considered
Doubtful

Considered
Good

Considered
Doubtful

Outstanding for following periods 
from due date
of receipts
Not Due                               -                             -                           -                                  -   
Less than 6 months                   3,782.49                           -               3,532.04                                -   
6 months - 1 year                      279.63                           -                   304.86                                -   
1-2 years                      114.96                           -                   275.18                                -   
2-3 years                         30.57                           -                     25.32                                -   
More than 3 Years                               -                             -                           -                                  -   

Total                   4,207.65                           -               4,137.40                                -   
Allowance for Expected Credit Loss (8.16)                        -                       (31.08)                -                            

Total                   4,199.49                           -               4,106.32                                -   

 b) Disputed trade receivables

Considered
Good

Considered
Doubtful

Considered
Good

Considered
Doubtful

Outstanding for following periods 
from due date
of receipts
Not Due                               -                             -                           -                                  -   
Less than 6 months                               -                             -                           -                                  -   
6 months - 1 year                               -                             -                           -                                  -   
1-2 years                               -                             -                           -                                  -   
2-3 years                               -                             -                           -                                  -   
More than 3 Years                               -                             -                           -                                  -   

Total                               -                             -                           -                                  -   

    58 

Particulars

Less Than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years

MSME   -      -      -                                 -   

Others                      809.25 147.39                 114.53                  1,071.17 

Disputed dues – MSME   -      -      -                                 -   

Disputed dues - Others   -      -      -                                 -   

Particulars

Less Than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Trade receivables Ageing Schedule

Particulars

Particulars

Trade Payables Ageing Schedule

Outstanding as on 31st March 2024 for following periods from due date 
of payment Total

Outstanding as on 31st March 2025 for following periods from due date 
of payment Total

As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs.

As at 
March 31, 2025

Rs.

As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs.

As at 
March 31, 2024

Rs.
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MSME   -      -      -                                 -   
Others                      752.11                  128.03                 119.53   -                        999.67 

Disputed dues – MSME   -                              -     -      -                                 -   
Disputed dues - Others   -                              -     -      -                                 -   
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 Sr. 
No Ratio

 Ratio as at March 
31, 2025 

 Ratio as at 
March 31, 2024 % Deviation 

       1 Current Ratio
Current Assets 2.72 3.09 -12.01%

Current Liabilities
       2 Debt-to-equity Ratio

Total Debt 0.24 0.22 10.13%

Shareholder’s Equity
       3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio 1.24 1.29 -3.80%

Earnings available for debt service = 
Net Profit after taxes + Non-cash 
operating expenses like depreciation 
and other amortizations + Interest + 
other adjustments like loss on sale of 
Fixed assets etc.

Debt Service =Interest & Lease 
Payments + Principal Repayments

       4 Return on Equity Ratio
Net Profits after taxes – Preference 
Dividend (if any) 0.05 0.01 602.05%
Average Shareholder’s Equity

       5 Inventory Turnover Ratio
Sales 4.95 6.12 -19.07%
Average Inventory

       6 Receivables Turnover Ratio
Net Credit Sales 2.29 2.53 -9.34%
Avg. Accounts Receivable

       7 Payables Turnover Ratio
Net Credit Purchases 9.09 7.08 28.42%

Average Trade Payables
       8 Net capital turnover Ratio

Net Sales 2.18 2.28 -4.22%
Working capital = Current assets – 
Current liabilities

       9 Net profit ratio
Net Proift After Tax 0.03 0.00 759.66%
Net Sales

    10 Return on Capital employed Ratio

Earning before interest and taxes 7.59% 2.21% 242.51%

Capital Employed = Tangible Net Worth 
+ Total Debt + Deferred Tax Liability

    11 Return on investment Ratio
Interest (Finance Income) 5.45% 4.37% 24.68%
Average of Bank Deposits

Reasons for variance of above 25%

-

Due to Increase in  Profitability as 
compared to last year.

-

-

Majority Due to increase in  average 
trade payables during the year as 
compared to last year 

During the year, Profitability has 
improved as compared to last year.  

During the year, Profitability has 
improved as compared to last year.  
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(Rs. in lakhs )

Name of the Bank Quarter

Particulars
of

securities
provided

 Amount
as per

books of
accounts 

 Amount as
reported in
quarterly
return/

statement 

 Amount
of

difference 

Reason for material
discrepancies

Axis Bank Limited & HDFC Bank 
Limited 

April to June 
2024 Book Debts             4,811.71 4,531.74                                   279.97 

Axis Bank Limited & HDFC Bank 
Limited 

July to 
September 
2024 Book Debts             5,545.79 5,285.48                                   260.30 

Axis Bank Limited & HDFC Bank 
Limited 

October to 
December 2024 Book Debts             5,107.56 4,392.41                                   715.15 

Axis Bank Limited & HDFC Bank 
Limited 

January to 
March 2025 Book Debts             4,288.63 4,792.27              -                   503.64 

Name of the Bank Quarter

Particulars
of

securities
provided

 Amount
as per

books of
accounts 

 Amount as
reported in
quarterly
return/

statement 

 Amount
of

difference 

Reason for material
discrepancies

Axis Bank Limited & HDFC Bank 
Limited 

April to June 
2024 Inventories             1,671.66 989.79                                      681.87 

Axis Bank Limited & HDFC Bank 
Limited 

July to 
September 
2024 Inventories             1,597.12 1,076.99                                   520.13 

Axis Bank Limited & HDFC Bank 
Limited 

October to 
December 2024 Inventories             1,896.16 1,243.57                                   652.59 

Axis Bank Limited & HDFC Bank 
Limited 

January to 
March 2025 Inventories             2,047.54 666.09                                  1,381.46 
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As % of
consolidated

net assets Rs. In Lakhs

As % of
consolidated

profit and
(loss) Rs. In Lakhs

As % of
consolidated

other
comprehensive

income Rs. In Lakhs

As % of
consolidated

total
comprehensive

income Rs. In Lakhs

Indian Holding 
 Yash Chemex Limited 43.38% 2,489.56              43.17% 122.44                  116.37% 4.98                                  44.26% 127.42                  

Indian Subsidiary
 Yasons Chemex Care Limited 70.89% 4,068.12              29.25% 82.95                    -8.43% -0.36                                 28.69% 82.59                    

Non Controlling Interest 34.40% 1,974.33              27.58% 78.22                    -7.94% -0.34                                 27.05% 77.88                    

Less :- Adjustment Arising out of 
Consolidation -48.67% -2,793.00             0.00% 0.00                      0.00% -                                    0.00% 0.00                      

Total 100.00% 5,739.01              100.00% 283.61                  100.00% 4.28                                  100.00% 287.89                  

As % of
consolidated

net assets Rs. In Lakhs

As % of
consolidated

profit and
(loss) Rs. In Lakhs

As % of
consolidated

other
comprehensive

income Rs. In Lakhs

As % of
consolidated

total
comprehensive

income Rs. In Lakhs

Indian Holding 
 Yash Chemex Limited 64.69% 2,362.14              -277.63% -91.23                   101.07% 54.59                                -42.18% -36.64                   

Share in Other Comprehensive Income
Share in Total Comprehensive 

Income

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Disclosure of additional information pertaining to the hodling , subsidiary companies as per Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013

As at March 31,2024

Particulars

Borrowing based on security of current assets 
Details of quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with bank: 

As at March 31,2025

Particulars

Net Assets Share in Profit or Loss Share in Other Comprehensive Income
Share in Total Comprehensive 

Income

The quarterly 
statements are 
submitted to banks 
were prepared and 
filed before the 
completion of 
financial statement 
closure activities 
including Ind AS 
adjustments / 
reclassification and 
regrouping as 
applicable, which led 
to these difference 
between final books 
of accounts and 
provisional quarterly 
statement submitted 
to banks.

Mainly due change in 
the basis of valuation 
of inventories and Ind 
AS impact during the 
course of audit.

Net Assets Share in Profit or Loss
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Indian Subsidiary
 Yasons Chemex Care Limited 107.01% 3,907.64              377.63% 124.09                  -1.09% -0.59                                 142.17% 123.50                  

Non Controlling Interest 51.93% 1,896.44              183.26% 60.22                    -1.09% -0.59                                 68.65% 59.64                    

Less :- Adjustment Arising out of 
Consolidation -123.63% -2,715.12             -183.26% -60.22                   1.09% 0.59                                  -68.65% -59.64                   

Total 100.00% 5,451.11              100.00% 32.86                    100.00% 54.01                                100.00% 86.87                    
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As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

 India  51.47% 51.47% 48.53% 48.53%

63 Approval of the consolidated Financial Statements:
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For, Yash Chemex Limited
For,  S. L. Patel & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regd. No.119211W SD/- SD/-

Director
(DIN:06914755)

SD/- SD/-
 Shaileshkumar L. Patel   
 Proprietor 
 M. No.106081 Membership Number A61567  
Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad
Date : May 27,2025

Company Secretary

Pritesh Y. Shah Dimple P.Shah

 Date : May 27,2025 

Disclosure of Interests in other entities as per Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013

The subsidiary company of the Group at March 31, 2024 and March 31,2023, are set out below. Unless otherwise stated. The country of incorporation or registration is also their 
principal place of business.

Ownership interest
held by the Group

Ownership interest
held by the

non-controlling
interest

Place of
business |
country of

incorporation

Trading of chemicals and 
manufacturing of dyes and 
intermediates and FMCG 
Products like hand senitizers, 
hair oil, soap, perfumes, 
deodrants , etc

 Yasons Chemex Care Limited

Principal
activity

Name of entity

Managing Director and CFO
(DIN: 00239665)

Pragati Jain 

 As per our Report of even date attached. 

The Consolidated Financial Statements were approved for issue by the board of directors on May 30,2025.

Previouse Periods' / Years' figures have been re-grouped / Re-Classified where necessary to make it comparable with the current period.
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19TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING  
 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 
 

Registered Folio No. / DP ID No./ Client ID No. 
 

Name and address of the Member(s) 
 

Name of the Proxy (To be filled only when a 
proxy attends the meeting) 

 

Number of Shares held 
 

 
I certify that I am a member / proxy for the member of the Company 
 
I hereby record my presence at the 19th Annual General Meeting of the Company 
being held at 411, Sigma Icon-1, 132ft Ring Road, Opp. Medilink Hospital, Satellite, 
Ahmedabad- 380015 on Tuesday, September 30, 2025, at 04:30 P.M. 
 
 
Signature of the Shareholder/Proxy present …………………………………….……  
 
Notes: Shareholder/Proxy holder wishing to attend the meeting must bring the 
Attendance Slip and handover the same duly signed at the entrance of the meeting 
hall. 
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PROXY FORM 
 

(Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014) 

 

Name of Member(s): 
 

Registered Address: 

 

Email id:  

Folio No./ Client id:              | DP ID:  
 
 

I/ We being the member of                           , holding          Equity shares, hereby appoint: 
 
1. Name:                                        
    Address: 
    E-mail Id: 
    Signature:  
 
2. Name:                           
    Address: 
    E-mail Id: 
    Signature: 
 
3. Name:                           
    Address: 
    E-mail Id: 
    Signature: 
 

As my/ our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 19th 
Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Tuesday, 30th day of September, 2025 
at the registered office of the Company 4th Floor, 411 Sigma Icon-1, 132ft Ring Road, Opp. 
Medilink Hospital, Satellite, Ahmedabad-380015 at 04:30 pm and at any adjournment thereof 
in respect of the such resolutions as are indicated below 

 

 
 
 

Resolution 
No. 

Resolutions 

Ordinary Business 

1. 

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the 
Financial Year ended March 31, 2025 and the Reports of the Board of 
Directors and the Statutory Auditors thereon, including Annexures thereto. 

2. 
To appoint a director in place of Mr. Pritesh Y. Shah (DIN: 00239665), who 
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

3.  Appointment of the Secretarial Auditor. 
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Signed this ….. day of          2025 
 
 
 
Signature of Shareholder:   
                        
 
Signature of Proxy holder(s):                           
 
Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and 
deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the 
commencement of the Meeting. 

 

Affix Rs. 1 
Revenue 

Stamp 
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Route Map of the Venue for 19th Annual General Meeting 
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